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Vision

Our vision is to be a leading bank which would
play a positive role to generate economic
activities for empowering the people by
meeting their financial needs for running a
successful business and create employment
opportunities.

Mission
To develop as a leading Commercial Bank in
the country by meeting its stated objectives
of promoting economic development of the
country in general and in the Province of Sindh
in particular.
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Entity Ratings

Long - Term Rating A+
Short - Term Rating A-1

Definitions by VIS Credit Rating Co. Ltd
(Formerly JCR-VIS Credit Rating Co. Ltd)

Long - Term Rating A+
Good credit quality; Protection factors are adequate. Risk factors
may vary with possible changes in the economy.

Short -Term Rating A-1

Highest certainty of timely payment; Liquidity factors are excellent
and supported by good fundamental protection factors. Risk factors
are minor.

Core Values

Integrity
Take pride in everything that is fair, honest and build trust in every
situation.

Customer Focus
We live by our customers’ success.VVe build lasting relationships
with our clients.

Team Work
We communicate actively and openly. We build trust by honoring
our commitments.VWe show respect for each other.

Innovation
We are constantly looking for ways to innovate and improve.
We embrace change as an opportunity.
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Chairman’s Review

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Sindh Bank, | present below a brief review, along-with the financial statements
of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2022. A detailed review is presented in the Directors Report.

| am pleased to report about noteworthy improvements in the Bank's performance indicators was witnessed as
total Income for the year stood at Rs.6.40 bn compare to last year Rs.5.48 bn, depicting an increase by Rs. 925
mn (i.e. 16.87%) over 2021. Major reasons for the improvement in total income are (i) increase in net Interest
Income by Rs.412.049 mn i.e. 8.4%, and (ii) increase in non markup income by Rs.513 mn , main contribution factors
are FX income increased by Rs 483 mn and Fee commission income increased by Rs 77 mn during the year.

Pre-tax loss for the year ended December 31, 2022 amounted to Rs.2.269 bn contrasting with pre-tax loss of
Rs.6.064 bn reported last year. Post tax loss for the year amounted to Rs.1.385 bn compared to post tax loss of
Rs.3.727 bn last year. Major reason for improvement in post tax loss was less provisioning requirement during this
year i.e Rs.1.938 bn with compare to Rs.5.82 bn in reported period last year.

Deposits registered an slight increase by Rs 6 bn (i.e. 2.50%) and stood at Rs.223.0 bn compared to Rs.217.6 bn
on December 31, 2021. This increase is net of major withdrawal of TDRs of Rs.26 bn by Finance Department KPK.
Gross Advances decreased by Rs.2.125 bn (i.e. 2.91%) and stood at Rs.70.89 bn at year-end 2022 compared to
Rs.73.02 bn on December 31, 2021, mainly due to reduced exposure by Rs.2.990 bn under Commodity Financing.
Hectic recovery efforts continue to reduce/contain NPLs, bank managed to reduce its older NPLs by way of
restructuring /recovery of Rs.2.15 bn resulting reversal of provision by Rs.861 mn.



The financial results, as recommended by the Board, are summarized below:

Rupees in "000

Total income 6,405,754
Loss before provisions and tax (330,455)
Provision/diminution in value of investment (80,939)
Provision against loans and advances (1,857,699)
Loss before tax (2,269,093)
Taxation
- Current 468,263
- Deferred ( 1,351,606)
(883,343)
Loss after tax (1,385,750)
Accumulated loss brought forward (11,236911)
Other comprehensive income (3,720)
Accumulated loss carried forward (12,626,381)

So far, cash injection of Rs.15.7 bn to support Bank's Tier | Capital has been made by the Government of
Sindh during the years 2019 to 2021. In addition to this, Rs.3.8 bn was added after merger of Sindh Leasing
Company Limited (SLCL) with and into Sindh Bank, made effective from December 31, 2020.

As at the year-end, Sindh Bank's Equity (i.e. Paid up Capital, Reserves, deficit on revaluation & accumulated
losses) stood at Rupees Rs.17.150 bn, decreasing by about 7.93% over Rs.18.627 bn last year. The Bank's
risk adjusted Capital Adequacy ratio (CAR) stood at 5.38 percent against requirement of |1.50 percent.
The Bank has approached Government of Sindh for injection of capital of Rs.2.0 bn to meet the stipulated
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) requirement.

I would like to thank the Government of Sindh for the continued help and support towards promotion and
progress of the Bank. | am also thankful to the State Bank of Pakistan and other regulators for their guidance
and support. The Board, management myself are collectively grateful for the support of our customers who
are the real purpose for us to be in business.

| would also like to appreciate the continued efforts of Bank's management and staff in bringing about
significant improvements in the Bank's financial indicators despite very challenging circumstances, especially
in the areas of deposit mobilization, improving operating profitability, recovery of NPLs and strengthening
risk management. | am confident that with their dedication and hard work, the Bank would be able to tide
over these challenges enabling the Bank to stage a turnaround, InshaAllah.

I, on behalf of the Board would like to assure all the stakeholders of our full cooperation and support for
the future development and progress of the Bank.

W

/

Anis.A. Khan
Chairman

Karachi: March 08, 2023

This review forms an integral part of the Directors' Report to the Shareholders.
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Profile of the Board of Directors

Anis A. Khan

Chairman & Non-Executive Director

Mr. Khan is a businessman and possesses rich experience in marketing and
corporate affairs particularly in media industry. He has travelled widely and
is well known in business & Commercial spheres. He is a Certified Director
from IBA.

Imran Samad
President & CEO

Mr. Imran Samad is the President & CEO of Sindh Bank Limited.
Mr. Samad has more than 33 years of experience in Bank/ Financial
Institutions as President & CEO, Managing Director and Senior
Executive / Group Head. His expertise includes Credits, Portfolio
Management, Retail Banking, Corporate Finance, Islamic Banking, Agriculture
Finance, IT related functions, SME, Micro Credit. He is a seasoned banker
with extensive experience in turning around the organizations. He joined
the Bank on September 20, 2019.

Sajid Jamal Abro

Finance Secretary-GoS/Non-Executive Director

Mr. Abro is a Civil Servant and Finance Secretary, GoS, He remained as
Principal Secretary to Chief Minister Sindh, Secretary in several departments
of GoS including, SGA & CD Deptt., Agriculture Deptt., Supply & Prices
Deptt., Land Utilization Deptt., Minorities Affairs Deptt. He also remained
as Commissioner Hyderabad & Mirpurkhas Divisions, Managing Director
of SPPRA in furtherance to other important positions in GoS. He is a
Certified Director from PICG.

Asif Jahangir
Nominee Director of GoS/
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Jahangir is a nominee Director of GoS having experience as Secretary,
Rehabilitation Department, GoS, prior to that he remained Finance
Secretary, GoS, Additional/Special Finance Secretary, GoS, Director of
National Finance Commission, Acting Finance Secretary, Additional Finance
Secretary-Finance Deptt., Additional Secretary-Energy Deptt., Additional
Secretary-Education Deptt., Director-Finance & Admin (Provincial Disaster
Management Authority) and other key posts of Government of Sindh and
also a Certified Director from PICG.



Javaid B. Sheikh

Independent Director

Mr. Javaid B. Sheikh has experience of more than 45 years of various
Banks/DFls. He Possesses MBA Degree from USA and Certified Director
from ICAP. He is a senior partner in a Lahore based consulting firm. He
has vast experience of investment and development banking and is well
known in commercial and corporate network.

N Y
M. Aftab Alam

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Aftab Alam is a Senior Chartered Accountant, fellow Member of
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and Institute of Corporate
Secretaries of Pakistan as well as Certified Director from IBA. He is
presently working with Mega & Forbes Group (MFG) as Group Chief
Financial Officer. He holds experience of IT functions including Financials
accounting reporting and monitoring with automation on computer based
accounting system and exposure of computerization of the system from
basis transaction processing to timely financial reports.

M. Adnan Ali Khan

Independent Director

Mr. Khan holds bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from NED
University and remained visiting faculty member of NED. He attended
several trainings/certifications from University of Minnesota (Leadership
Development Program), Harvard Business School (Leadership Development),
3M Training Center (Lean Six Sigma Master Black Belt). He possesses
experience in Digital Business Transformation, Lean Six Sigma, Key account
development etc. He is currently associated with Fatima Group , heading
‘Operational Excellence’, having businesses in Fertilizer, Sugar, Textile, Mining
and Energy Sectors in Pakistan. Mr. Khan joined the board in August 2022,
after SBP approval.

Shaista Bano Gilani

Independent Director

Mrs. Shaista Gilani holds twenty (20) years of varied experience in matters of
corporate law & regulations, competition law, economic policy, enforcement,
advocacy and research. She remained in SECP as Deputy Registrar of Companies
and focal person and in CCP she served as Joint Director & Director General,
lastly she served as a member & acting Chairperson of CCP as well as nominated
member of the complaints redressal committee of Audit Oversight Board
Pakistan. During association with CCP she has adjudicated various important
cases and her judgments have been reported in the PLD as well. She is also
a voluntary Executive Member of the UGOOD, a non-governmental organization.
She holds Masters in Economics in Competition Law from UK & MBA from
Pakistan, as well as Member of ACCA & its Sub Committee on "Corporate

Governance". She is a Certified Director from the ICAP.
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From left to right: Adnan Ali Khan, Javaid Bashir Sheikh, Shaista Bano, Anis A. Khan (Chairman), Sajid Jamal Abro,
Imran Samad (President & CEO), Asif Jahangir and Aftab Alam
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Board of Directors:

) Anis A. Khan Chairman / Non-Executive Director

2) Sajid Jamal Abro Finance Secretary-GoS /Non-Executive Director

3) Asif Jahangir Nominee Director of GoS /Non-Executive Director
4) Javaid Bashir Sheikh Independent Director

5) Mohammed Aftab Alam Non-Executive Director

6) Adnan Ali Khan Independent Director

7) Shaista Bano Gilani Independent Director

8) Imran Samad President / CEO




Committees of the Board:

Audit Committee:

Javaid B. Sheikh Chairman
Mohammed Aftab Alam Member
Asif Jahangir Member
Shaista Bano Gilani Member
Head of Internal Audit Division Secretary

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee:

Adnan Ali Khan Chairman
Anis A. Khan Member
Finance Secretary (GoS) Member
Head of HR Division Secretary
Risk Management Committee:

Finance Secretary (GoS) Chairman
Javaid B. Sheikh Member
Asif Jahangir Member
Shaista Bano Gilani Member

Head of Risk Management Division  Secretary

Information Technology Committee:

Anis A. Khan Chairman
Adnan Ali Khan Member
Mohammed Aftab Alam Member
Head of IT Division Secretary

Nomination Committee:

Anis A. Khan Chairman
Finance Secretary (GoS) Member
Asif Jahangir Member
Company Secretary Secretary

Special Assets Management Committee:

Anis A. Khan Chairman
Finance Secretary (GoS) Member
Mohammed Aftab Alam Member

Head of SAM Division Secretary
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Terms of Reference

The number of meetings of the Board of Directors (BOD) and its Sub-Committees held during the year 2021 and the attendance
by each director/committee member are provided in the Directors Report.

The Key terms of reference of the Board Committees are as follows.

Risk Management Committee

The Bank has formed a Board Risk Management Committee. The BRMC is primarily responsible for effective functioning of the risk
management function within the Bank, and as a committee of the Board, acts with the delegated authority of the Board. It provides
a platform to cover all material risk and also their mitigating tools.

The principle responsibilities of the Committee are as follows:

I. Review and oversee implementation of the Risk Management Policy including Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework
and Risk Appetite Framework (RAF) and provide recommendation to the Board to facilitate in decision regarding approval.

2. Review the tools and models developed by the Risk Management Division to measure and monitor risks; and Review regular
risk reports related to Market, liquidity, credit and operational risk prepared by the Risk Management Division.

3. Ensure that the Bank has adequate capital available to absorb expected & unexpected losses and is able to achieve its strategic
goals / objectives in short and long run.

4. Ensure appropriate risk controls and limits are established, properly implemented, communicated and monitored. Enforce actions
upon violation of risk policies and procedures.

5. Review and administer the implementation of IFRS 9 as per SBP BPRD Circular 04 of 2019, dated 23rd October 2019.
6. Review any other risk related matters / regulatory changes that warrant discussion at the Committee

Nomination Committee

To review the structure, size and composition of the Committee and skills, knowledge, expertise, experience and diversity of the
Board members and to suggest any changes and modification.

To identify and suggest for approval name(s) of the candidate(s) to fill the Board vacancies and to ensure that the proposed candidate(s)
have sufficient time and skill to perform their obligations and meet FPT Criteria of SBP.

Prior to the appointment of Director(s) the Committee shall require the prospective candidate(s) to disclose any other business
interest which may cause a result of conflict of interest between the prospective candidate(s) with the Bank and the Committee shall
also require from him to submit his future business interest that may cause a conflict of interest. Upon receipt of the aforesaid
information, the Committee shall minutely observe the nature of conflict of interest and make its own independent observations
thereon.

Apart from the Directors the Committee shall seek candidature for CEO's position if fell vacant and select the best available candidates
for final approval by the Board and the Government of Sindh. The Committee meets on need basis.

Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee is responsible under the Code of Corporate Governance to review and recommend to the Board of
Directors, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the Bank particularly focusing on the reasonableness of significant
adjustment, major judgments and estimates, the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements, going concern assumption,
change in accounting policies, related party transactions and compliance with applicable accounting standards.

BAC administers the Bank's financial reporting process on behalf of the Board and BAC has direct responsibility for appointment,
retention, remuneration / compensation and oversight of work of external auditors.

BAC is also responsible for reviewing and approving annual audit plan; scope, extent and procedure of internal audit and reporting
framework. BAC is responsible to regularly reviews significant issues or audit observations as raised by External & Internal Auditors
along with progress thereon.

BAC also confers with the management to ensure the scope, sufficiency, adequacy and effectiveness of Internal Control Systems of
the Bank including financial and operational controls, accounting systems, and reporting structures.

The other terms of reference of BAC include consideration of major findings of internal investigations and results of investigation
of Whistle Blow. BAC is also responsible for monitoring and reviewing implementation of Whistle Blowing Policy.

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

The BHR&RC is responsible for reviewing & recommending the HR Policy to the Board, appointment of Key Executives, Performance
Appraisals & Performance Bonuses, revision in Salary Scales / Ranges, Incentive Schemes & Retirement Benefits. The Committee has
a composition of three members & a secretary while President & CEO attends the meeting by invitation. The Committee meets on
need basis but preferably once in a quarter.

Information Technology Committee

I.T. Committee principally manages the procurement requirements of the IT function ensuring unhindered performance of IT services
and keeping in line with market dynamics and business objectives of the bank. Reporting to the BOD with recommendations for
approval and changes in IT policies as needed with guidance on the application of IT resources. Additionally ITC also manages the
security system requirements & policy of the bank.




Profiles of the Shariah Board Members

Mufti Muhammad Hassan Ashraf Usmani
Chairman Shariah Board

Mufti Muhammad Hassan Ashraf Usmani is the Chairman Shari'ah Board of Sindh Bank- Islamic Banking Division. He has
completed Takhassus Fill Ifta (Specialization in Islamic Jurisprudence) from Jamia Darul Uloom, Karachi, under the supervision
of Justice (R) Mufti Tagi Usmani. Further, he has done his doctorate from Karachi University in the field of Islamic Finance.
He is associated as a member of Shariah Supervisory Board of mutual funds, as well as member of the Teaching Faculty of
Darul-Uloom, Karachi.

Mufti Zeeshan Abdul Aziz
Member Shariah Board

Mufti Zeeshan Abdul Aziz is Member Shariah Board of Sindh Bank-Islamic Banking Division. He has completed Takhassus
Fill Ifta (Specialization in Islamic Jurisprudence) majoring in Islamic Banking & Finance from Jamia Darul Uloom, Karachi,
under the supervision of Justice (R) Mufti Taqi Usmani. Besides being Shariah Advisor to some other Islamic Financial
Institutions, Consultancy Firms and Halal Certification bodies within and outside Pakistan, he is also involved in teaching
Islamic Banking & Takaful on different forums/universities as visiting faculty member.

Mufti Muhammad Nadeem Siddiquie
Resident Shariah Board Member (RSBM)

Mufti Muhammad Nadeem Siddiquie is Resident Shariah Board Member (RSBM) of Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking Division.
He is a learned Shariah Scholar and has completed his Shahadat-ul -Aalamiyyah from Tanzeem ul Madaris. He has done
Specialization in Islamic Jurisprudence (Takhassus-fil-Ifta) and having Fatawa experience of over seven years. He started his
career with Ernst & Young and have over eight years of Islamic Banking experience, his field of expertise are Shariah Advisory,
Shariah Audit, and Product Structuring. He has diversified educational background with Bachelors of Commerce and Masters
in Islamic Banking & Finance from University of Karachi and Junior Associates of Institute of Bankers Pakistan (JAIBP) from
IBP. He holds teaching experience of Figh, Tafseer, Arabic Adab, and Hadith in various Madaris and Business Management
in different institutions.

Terms of Reference and Meeting of Shariah Board

The IBI shall have a SB comprises of three Shariah Scholars, i.e., Board Chairperson (Chairperson) and Board Members
including one of the member designated as Resident Shariah Board Members (RSBM) as per FAPC given in SGF provided
by SBP. Further every IBI shall have a Shariah Compliance Department (SCD) which may be headed by a RSBM or a suitably
qualified, trained and experienced officer recommended by SB.

Shariah Board Meetings

Details of Meetings of the Shariah Board held during the year 2022 and attendance by each Shariah Board Member are

given below:

Shariah Board Meetings

Held During the Year | Attended

I Mufti Hassan Ashraf Usmani 4 4
2 Mufti Zeeshan Abdul Aziz 4 4
3 Mufti Muhammad Nadeem Siddiquie 4 4

Total Meetings Held During the Year 2022 4
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Disclosure on Remuneration Policy of the Bank

The Human Resource Division at Sindh Bank acknowledges its people as the most significant resource and believes in providing
a synergic work environment that fosters customer centricity and ownership in a proactive manner, while maintaining high moral
standards.

We are an equal opportunity employer and are committed to hiring and retaining suitably qualified talent from across the
country or abroad, through a merit-based and non-discriminatory selection process.We believe that engaged employees are
more committed and deliver better results, hence we support staff retention.To improve key positions' bench-strength, Sindh
Bank has a Succession Planning Policy, which identifies successors for senior roles within the organization, thus allowing upward
career mobility to the right talent and help them in fulfilling their career growth aspirations.

Our Senior Management is highly approachable and has an open-door-policy. We organize country-wide Town Halls, which
provide the ideal platform for open discussions between our Management Committee and staff. In addition to increasing employee
engagement, this is an event where hard-work and sound performance are recognized and awarded; acknowledgement of special
contributions and alignment with the Bank's culture & values takes place. We are highly focused on maintaining positive,
constructive employee relations and such meetings foster a culture of transparency and good employee communications.

The Bank engaged an external consultant for assistance in implementation of the SBP's Revised Guidelines on Remuneration
Practices. The major activities performed by them were identification of Material Risk Takers (MRTs) and Material Risk Controllers
(MRC:s), development of risk-adjusted balanced scorecards for all MRTs and MRCs, identification of areas for improvement and
development of bank-wide remuneration policy. The Bank has processes in place to ensure that the consultants were independent,
and no conflict of interest existed with any Board member or any of its key executives.

Our remuneration policy is market-aligned competitive pay, making our compensation fair and consistent, ensuring internal
equity. In the event of death or disability, the Bank offers life and disability insurance, through an Insurance Company, to provide
financial assistance to the staff. Life Insurance coverage provides financial support to the heirs of the deceased staff in the
unfortunate event of death in service, complete coverage of House Loan, if availed, will be provided to the staff.

The Board is overall responsible for reviewing, approving and monitoring implementation of the Bank-wide remuneration frame
work, based on the recommendations of Board's Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HRRC), which shall be mainly
responsible for overseeing the Bank's remuneration programme.

Since professionalism is paramount at Sindh Bank, our Code of Conduct is well-structured and in place.The Disciplinary Action
policy provides an expertly designed corrective action process and a formal framework for issues to be dealt with fairly and
swiftly. The policy ensures that employees are managed in a transparent manner and it also addresses instances where a staff's
performance or conduct fails to meet the standards laid down by the Bank. Our proficient DA Team also deals with the staff's
grievances promptly and professionally. Furthermore, a strict law-mandated harassment policy is in place alongwith awareness-
raising and training sessions, warranting discipline in this respect.

Material Risk Taker (MRT)/ Material Risk Controller (MRC)

The MRTs and MRCs have been identified through a detailed assessment of the Bank's employees using various qualitative and
quantitative criteria, as documented in the remuneration policy.

The Bank offers a compensation structure with a balanced mix of fixed and variable elements with the objective to encourage
behaviors focused on achievement of long term sustainable results. For MRTs / MRCs the deferred variable component has been
made part of their compensation structure.

Performance measurement of MRTs and MRCs

The Bank's performance management mechanism provides a sound basis for assessing employee performance holistically. The
Banks remuneration policy is aligned with the performance management mechanism and differentiates pay appropriately amongst
its employees based on degree of contribution, skill and availability of talent owing to competitive market forces by considering
factors such as role, skills, competencies, experience and grade/seniority.

Performance measurement of MRTs/MRCs will be carried out through the risk adjusted balanced scorecards.The Bank is in a
process to develop risk-adjusted balanced scorecards for all MRTs and MRCs for their performance measurement, which will
ensure establishing a correlation between and alignment of risks and rewards. These scorecards are prepared at individual levels,
incorporating various financial, non-financial/ qualitative and risk-adjusting factors.

The Bank has introduced an individual level accountability mechanism whereby a certain portion of variable compensation of
the MRTs/MRCs will be deferred/withheld for a defined period, thus creating alignment between the employees and stakeholders
interests and reinforcing that compensation is appropriately linked to longer term sustainable performance.

The deferred pay will be subject to claw back clause that permits the Bank to cancel or reduce, all or part of the amount of
an unvested variable compensation award, due to specific crystallized risk, behavior, conduct or adverse performance outcome,
attributable to the MRT /MRC.




Statement of Ethics and Business Practices

This Statement of Ethics and Business Practices applies to all Employees of Sindh Bank Limited. It strives to set forth certain standards
and rules of conduct followed in the corporate entities, globally. Our culture of ethics and integrity shall from the
beginning define who we are as a Bank and how we as colleagues treat each other, our customers and stakeholders.

This Statement of Ethics and Business Practices attempts to introduce the Employees to the types of attitudes and conduct that
create an honest, fair and legal workplace. It will be surrounded by 3 basic beliefs:

e Respect for the Individual @ Service to the Customer e Striving for Excellence
General Principles and Significant Aspects of Code of Ethics:

We will abide by the laws of the Country in all activities at work and beyond. Any suspected material violation of a law, regulation
or ethical standard must be reported to the appropriate level of authority within the Bank. Where appropriate, the authority
will report to the relevant statutory authority.

We will always demonstrate high standard of conduct at work place or outside as good citizens of Pakistan.

We will adhere to a high level of professional practices commensurate with Bank's aim to achieve growth in earning for share-
holders over the long term undertaking business compatible with our character and business norms.

We will behave with integrity and honesty in our dealing with customers, colleagues, supervisors and all others with whom
we interact.

We, as the Bank’s employees have a responsibility towards all stakeholders to make decisions strictly on the basis of Bank's
interests, without regard to personal gain. A conflict of interest can arise when one's judgement could be influenced, or might
appear as being influenced, by the possibility of personal benefit. Even if it's not intentional, the appearance of a conflict may
be just as damaging to employees' and Bank's reputation, as an actual conflict. We would always be on the lookout for situations
that may create a conflict of interest, and do everything we can to avoid them.

Situation may arise holding an employee in conflict of his interest with the interest of the Bank. In such situation, to enable
the Bank to make objective decisions, the employee must declare in advance the possible conflict of interest, to his/her senior.
The management may require the employee to disassociate him/her from any involvement in a decision by the Bank that relates
to such personal conflict.

Our involvement in an outside activity or any external position held must not give rise to any real or apparent conflict with a
customer's interest, must not adversely reflect on the Bank and must not interfere with an individual's performance.

We will not solicit or accept gifts, sponsorship, hospitality or favor which would compromise, or give the appearance of
compromising our position or any business decision taken by or on behalf of the Bank. Accepting gifts and entertainment can
cause a conflict of interest, or the appearance of a conflict between personal interests and professional responsibility. The Bank's
culture is to never accept gifts or entertainment from any supplier, potential supplier, or any person the employee has reason
to believe may be seeking to influence business decisions or transactions.

We, besides working with honesty and faithfulness shall maintain strict secrecy regarding the Bank's affairs and the affairs of
its constituents and subsidiaries, if any.We shall use our utmost endeavors to promote the interest of the Bank and shall show
courtesy and attention in all dealing with customers.

We shall not use for personal gain or benefit or, except insofar as it is necessary in the regular course of business, disclose to
anyone within information obtained in the course of work that is of confidential nature.We will not disclose intentionally or
carelessly, any information that is of confidential nature without the prior approval from the respective departmental head. In
official communication or Prospective Communication with prospective or current client, ensure that information is given only
on need to know basis.

We shall not engage in any other profession, trade or business activity for remuneration or enter into the employment of any
other person, firm or company. An engagement in social and welfare service beyond normal office hours may however, be
encouraged.

We shall not make any false or misleading statement in relation to our appointment or performance of our duties in the Bank.
To ensure accuracy of information that would be provided to the public, the employees are prohibited from making any statement,
including statements about financial matters (written or verbal) on behalf of the Bank to media, news publications,
business publications, or any other source without prior approval from the respective department of the Bank.

Personal, social and unofficial visits during working hours are discouraged. In the event of an emergency, visitors may be
entertained outside the work area, or in the designated reception area to ensure confidentiality of information and minimum
disruption.

We shall not bring or attempt to bring political or other influence, directly or indirectly, nor shall we take part in, subscribe
to and or assist in any way, any political activity.

If we are found involved or convicted in a criminal offence, we shall immediately bring to the notice of the Management through
our head of department or, if arrested and released on bail, soon after such release.

We shall generally dissuade from following evils:

e Inappropriate Conduct e Sexual Harassment @ Corruption and Retaliation @ Discriminatory Behavior @ Grapevine and Gossips
e Intentional Dishonesty @ Drug Abuse and Anti Environmental Activities @ Insider Trading @ Money Laundering

Note:

In terms of Regulation 4, Item # 10 notified by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) vide BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 13/09/2012,“Employees
of the banks are strictly prohibited to disclose the facts to the customer or any other quarter that a suspicious transaction or related
information is being or has been reported to any authority, except if required by law.”

12
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Ata Hassan
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Rehmanullah Khattak
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Acting Head Risk Management

Saleem Shaffi
EVP - Head Operations

Faisal Mujeeb
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Shams-ul -Abbas
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Shariq Jaleesi
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Administration Division

Tahir Hussain Shah
SVP - Head Centralised
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Saima Aziz
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Naeem Muhammad
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Security Officer (CISO)

Hasnain Merchant
SVP - Head Payment Services

Arshad Abbas Soomro
SVP - Head Administration & Security

Muhammad Irfan Zafar
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Rugaya Marghoob Rizvi
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Naila Asad Shaikh
VP - Head SME

Syed Mudassir Abbas
AVP - Head Treasury Operations

Saifuddin Sahito
AVP - Incharge Consumer
Department




SnumiﬁANK
A lal

Powm To Ths Peoes =% ®

-‘t

President & CEO, Mr. Imran Samad’s visit and mentoring session at the
IT Department.
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Breast Cancer Awareness Day celebrated at the Head Office.
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President & CEO, Mr. Imran Samad at the Karachi University Road Show.




Senator Khushbakht Shujat as the Guest Speaker at the mentoring session Guest Speakers Ms. Samina Ahmed and Ms. Nusrat Munshi at the Women'’s
held for the female staff. Day Celebration -2022 at the Head Office.

i e \
President & CEO, Mr. Imran Samad with the Sindh Bank wining Cricket Team.

President & CEO Mr.Imran Samad at the New Year Celebration at the
Head Office, Karachi.

Head of Marketing receiving the award at the CSR Conference held in Karachi.




Directors’ Report

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am presenting herewith the financial results of the Bank for the

year ended December 31, 2022. Financial highlights are as follows:

(Rupees in '000)

B As on As on %age

alance Sheet D:;eﬁezrggzer D;Ic,e;(;gfr Change
Paid up Capital 29,524,428 25,524,428 15.67%
Shares Deposit Money - 4,000,000
Accumulated losses-net of reserves (11,164,969) (9,775,499) 14.21%
Paid up Capital net of accumulated losses 18,359,459 19,748,929 (7.04)%
Deficit on Revaluation of Investment (1,208,500) (1,121,647) 7.74%
Equity 17,150,959 18,627,282 (7.93)%
Borrowings 106,934,714 26,785,738 299.22%
Deposits 223,043,950 217,608,406 2.50%
Investment (carrying value) 254,552,777 175,703,381 44.88%
Gross Advances 70,899,317 73,023,451 (2.91)%




Year Ended
Profit & Loss Account 31-Dec-2022

Year Ended

(Rupees in '000)

%age

31-Dec-2021 Change
Markup/return/interest income 36,377,762 21,826,086 66.67%
Markup/return/interest expenses 31,061,343 16,921,716 83.56%
Net markup/return/interest income 5,316,419 4,904,370 8.40%
Fee, Commission & Other Income 435,879 354,479 22.96%
Foreign Exchange Income 557,561 74,371 649.70%
Dividend Income 253,607 154,063 64.61%
Gain/ (loss) on sale of Investments (157,712) (6,435)
Non-mark-up/non-interest income 1,089,335 576,478 88.96%
Total Income 6,405,754 5,480,848 16.87%
Non mark-up/interest expenses 6,736,209 5,722,033 17.72%
Provision/Diminution in value of investments 80,939 87,342 (7.44)%
Provision-specific & general against Advances 1,857,699 5,735,574 (67.61)%
Total Provisions 1,938,638 5,822,916 (66.71)%
Loss before Tax & Provisions (330,455) (241,185) 37.01%
Loss Before Tax (2,269,093) (6,064,101) (62.58)%
Loss After Tax (1,385,750) (3,727,484) (62.82)%
Loss per share (Rupees) (0.54) (1.49) (63.76)%

. As on As on
Other Information 31-Dec-2022 31-Dec-2021
No. of Accounts 573,882 533,169 7.63%
Number of Branches 330 330

A. Financial Review
Total Assets recorded increase from Rs.270.2 bn to Rs.357.8 bn increased by Rs 88 bn (i.e. 32.44%) during the year,
primarily attributed by increase in investment by Rs 78.8 bn.
Major financial statement segment-wise review is as follows:
a) Deposits
Deposits registered a slight increase by Rs 6 bn (i.e. 2.50%) and stood at Rs. 223.0 bn compared to Rs. 217.6 bn on
December 31, 2021.This increase is net of major withdrawal of TDRs of Rs 26 bn by Finance Department KPK which
were not on boarded due to high competitive rates offered by other banks.
Above indicates changing customer preferences and continuing motivation of our retail banking team to introduce new
customers and products. Number of customer accounts stood at 573,882 increasing by 40,713 accounts (i.e. 7.63%).
b) Advances

Gross Advances decreased by Rs 2.125 bn (i.e. 2.91%) and stood at Rs.70.89 bn at year-end 2022 compared to Rs. 73.02
bn on December 31,2021, mainly due to reduced exposure by Rs.2.990 bn under Commodity Financing, Further attributing
factors are recoveries of watch list, regular and NPLs customers by Rs (7.551) bn and disbursed by Rs 5.426 bn during

2022.
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Due to, regulatory restriction on Corporate advances, the management focused on increasing financing in the SMEs and
Consumer segments. During the year exposure under SMEs increased by Rs. 713 mn (increased by 34%) and Consumer
Increased by Rs. 197 mn (increased by 77%)

Investments
Carrying value of Investments as at December 31,2022 increased by Rs.78.84 bn (44.88%) and stood at a record figure
of Rs.254.552 bn at year-end 2022 compared to Rs. 175.703 bn on December 31,2021,

Increase of Rs. 32.6 bn was recorded in floating rate PIBs, Rs. 1.0 bn in GOP ljara Sukuk, and Rs 50.8 bn in Market Treasury
Bills and reduced by Rs. 5.0 bn due to maturity of PIB (HTM).

Gross Investment in equities and mutual funds stood at Rs. 3,000 mn, excluding Rs. 750 mn in Sindh Microfinance Bank
Limited (wholly owned subsidiary), increased by 189 mn (i.e. 6.7%) over December 31,2021 (Rs.2,81 1 mn).

Profit and Loss Account

Improvement in the Bank's performance indicators was witnessed as Total Income for the year stood at Rs. 6.40 bn
compare to last year Rs. 5.48 bn, depicting an increase by Rs. 925 mn (i.e. 16.87%) over 2021. Major reasons for the
improvement in total income is as below:

(i) Increase in net Interest Income by Rs. 412.049 mn i.e. 8.4%, mainly due to higher base effect and increase in policy
rate (i.e. 6.25%) due to which repricing of earning assets (i.e. floating PIB's and performing advances) was carried out.

(i) Increase in non markup income by Rs. 513 mn, main contribution factors are FX income increased by Rs. 483 mn
and Fee commission income increased by Rs. 77 mn during the year.

Loss before provision for the year ended December 31,2022 amounted to Rs. 330.4 mn contrasting with loss before
provision of Rs. 241.] mn reported last year.Pre-tax loss for the year ended December 31,2022 amounted to Rs. 2.269
bn contrasting with pre-tax loss of Rs. 6.064 bn reported last year.

Post tax loss for the year amounted to Rs. 1.385 bn compared to post tax loss of Rs. 3.727 bn last year. Reasons for
improvement in post tax loss was less Provisioning requirement during this year i.e Rs 1.938 bn with compare to
Rs.5.82 bn in reported period last year.

Branches
The Bank continued to maintain its presence through 330 branches spread over 169 cities/towns in Pakistan and included
[4 branches which are dedicated to Islamic Banking. No new branches were opened during the year. Region wise breakup
is as under:

Regions No. of Branches No. of Cities/ Towns

South: including Karachi, Sindh-other cities /towns & Baluchistan 206 97
North: including Punjab, Islamabad, KPK,AJK & GB 124 72
Total 330 169

ECONOMIC REVIEW

In 2022, economic and political issues aggravated the country's dynamics. The year was marred by the success of the no-
confidence move for the first time in the history of Pakistan. Pakistan's economic landscape, which was already feeble due to
the position of the external account, deteriorated at fast pace due to domestic and international challenges. Economic challenges
only increased as the year progressed due to the start of the war between Ukraine & Russia and energy prices touching decades
high. The mounting pressure of energy prices reflected in inflation, which made the essential items only dearer for the public.

The year 2022 can be seen as the most challenging for the country as the economic trajectory was not only marred by domestic
political issues and war in Ukraine but also through devastating floods, which pushed more than 9 million people below the
poverty line.




IMF programme proved to be another challenge as the fund demanded a number of policy measures, which included

I) Market-driven exchange rate

2) Introduction of new taxes

3) Permanent resolution of circular debt
4) Increase in energy prices and

5) Hike in interest rates.

Though IMF demands were inflationary in nature Country had no choice but to accept the demands as Pakistan's external
debt repayment obligations are US$73bn in 3 years (FY23-25) as per IMF (inclusive of annual rollovers). This is due to large
external borrowings (external debt and liabilities) that doubled in 7 years from US$65bn in FY2015 (24% of GDP) to US$130
bn (40% of GDP) in FY2022.

The year 2023 does not offer much hope as interest rates are expected to increase further due to high inflation numbers,
and uncertainties around external debt repayment, which will only put further pressure on the currency. The year is also
expected to be the year of elections; thereby aggravating the situation further. As we move down in the year, we may see
energy reforms to resolve the circular debt issues as well as the possibility of external debt restructuring, which will aggravate
the short-term economic outlook of Pakistan. Among all, it's clear that there is a rough tide for 2023 and recovery can only
be seen beyond 2024.

PSX REVIEW

The economic challenges affected the performance of the local bourse, resulting in a 9% fall in the benchmark KSE index.
Average traded volume was down 52% to 230mn shares/day. The KSE index also lagged against other asset classes like Gold,
Naya Pakistan Certificates, and the US dollar. The IPO market was also impacted due to falling equity values as only 3 Initial
Offerings/IPOs came to raise funds in 2022 as against 8 IPOs in 2021. According to Bloomberg, the KSE-100 Index was one
of the poorest-performing markets in US dollar terms in 2022.

In the best-case scenario in 2023, if crude oil prices fall sharply and the global credit market gets back to normal, we may see
Pakistan equities performing better. Similarly, in a worst-case scenario, if Pakistan defaults on its debt payment then a fall can
be expected in the index in 2023.

CREDIT RATING
VIS Credit Rating Company Limited reaffirmed the Bank's long term entity rating of A+ (Single A Plus) and short term
rating of A-1 (A-one) in its report dated June 28,2022.

MINIMUM CAPITAL REQUIREMENT & CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO
Bank's Capital Adequacy Ratio stood at 5.38% as against the requirement of 11.50% as on December 31, 2022. Bank has
approached Government of Sindh for injection of capital of Rs 2 bn to meet the stipulated Capital Adequacy Ratio requirement.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Risk taking is central to banking activity. The Bank evaluates business opportunities in terms of the risk-reward relationship.
The risks that Bank takes are reasonable, controlled, within its size, complexity and nature of business. The diversity of our
business requires us to identify, measure and manage our risks effectively through different limits. At the Bank, the risk is
managed through a framework, organizational structure, risk management and monitoring processes that are closely aligned
with the activities of the Bank and in line with the guidelines given by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). The Bank also continues
to invest in systems and people as part of its process of continuously strengthening the risk management function. The Bank's
comprehensive and integrated risk management governance structure consists of Board, related Board Committee(s) and
management subcommittees, with varying areas of responsibilities, in order to maintain a sustainable focus on monitoring and
governance over differing categories of risks.

INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Sindh Bank has established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Bank and
this process includes the system of Internal Control over Financial Reporting. The process is regularly reviewed by the Board
Audit Committee.

The Board is of the view that the system of Internal Control over Financial Reporting in place is sound and adequate to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of Financial Reporting, and that the preparation of Financial Statements forexternal
purposes is in accordance with relevant accounting principles and regulatory requirements.




SlNDHﬁANK
A1)

Powm To Ths Peoes =% ®

The management assists the Board in implementation of the Board's policies and directives pertaining to Internal Control
over Financial Reporting. The management is working continuously towards enhancing the system of Internal Control
over Financial Reporting.

The Board is pleased to endorse the statement made by management relating to Internal Controls including management's
evaluation of ICFR. The management's Statement on Internal Control is included in the Annual Report.

OTHER HIGHLIGHTS

a) Major IT Initiatives
Sindh Bank is focused to provide innovative and secure financial solutions to its customers. Sindh Bank launched its
Digital Customer On boarding Web Portal, allowing the residents of Pakistan to open Asaan Digital Account from
the comfort of their home. Bank also further enriched the SMS banking service by adding the billers available at ILink's
IBill service which includes School/Colleges/University fees, Credit Card payments and much more.

Bank has also started the issuance of e-stamp paper on Government of Sindh behalf since November 2022. Now
customers can come over to Sindh Bank branches for the e-stamp papers by paying the fee via cash, account transfer
or other Bank's Cheque. Bank is now also acting as settlement bank for Local Government Property Tax Collection.
To further strengthen and faster delivery of digital services, Sindh Bank signed "Digital Partnership with Konnect by
HBL".

To promote 'compliance culture' in Sindh Bank and strengthen the effectiveness of compliance function, Sindh Bank
implemented "Compliance Risk Management" Solution in October 2022.

On the information security front, Bank has implemented the "Data Center Firewall" in both Primary and DR Data
Center. Bank also completed the Third party assessment of SWIFT CSCF (Customer Security Controls Framework).Bank
also shifted its Primary Data Center to new premises build as per the recommendations from SBP and keeping in
view the industry best practices.

Bank has successfully performed the Disaster Recovery Drill this year to further improve the technical resilience of
Bank.

b) Home Remittances
Sindh Bank via its network, made Home Remittance payments to about 135,000 customers during 2022, as compared
to 125,000 payments in Year 2021.

Year 2022, Sindh Bank became Super Agent of Western Union and made first sub agent named as Bank of Azad Jammu
Kashmir.

Sindh Bank also became a partner bank in the Federal Government's Sohni Dharti Remittance Program. Under this
program, USD 50 Million+ was disbursed in year 2022, making the Bank eligible for SBP PRI Home Remittance
incentives.

Despite the challenges faced by the country in-respect of remittance, Bank performance can be gauge with
the below summary of the results achieved during 2022 in terms of both transaction numbers and volumes,
is given below:

YEAR No Of Transactions Amount In USD Amount In PKR
202 | 117,129 | 50,853,085 | 10,384,617,53
2021 \ 116,536 \ 63,253,983 \ 10,270,625,479

c) Sindh Microfinance Bank Limited (wholly owned subsidiary)
Sindh Microfinance Bank Limited (SMFB) started its operations as a province level microfinance bank in May 2016
with an equity of Rs. 750 mn. As of December 31,2022, SMFB has increased its equity to more than Rs. | bn with
internally generated profits. SMFB has plans to seek a national level license from the State Bank of Pakistan once
the minimum capital requirements for a national level license are met.

To date, SMFB has disbursed more than 237,000 loans amounting to almost Rs. 7 bn through its presence in 90
business locations in the province of Sindh. The aim of the microfinance program of SMFB is to improve access to
finance for the underprivileged segment of the Sindh Province, especially women. It is in this spirit, SMFB continues
to play its role of empowering women by enabling access to finance to the economically active women in rural and
semi urban areas of Sindh.




SMFB registered a profit before tax of Rs. 57.24 mn for the year ended December 31,2022 as compared to Rs 45.8
mn last year. SMFB continued to remain sustainable and profitable despite the challenge in the form of flashfloods of
2022 which adversely impacted the lives of SMFB clientele in the rural and semi urban areas of Sindh.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) assigned the ratings of A- for the long term and A2 for the short term
which in PACRA's perspective captures the strength of SMFB as a growing institution in the microfinance sector.

Brief summary of financial highlights for the year ended December 31,2022 showing below:

December 31 2022 December 31 2021

Balance Sheet

# of Account Rs. In million # of Account Rs. In million
Gross Loan Portfolio 66,133 1,318 53,993 958
Total Assets 2,008 2,085
Deposits 129,056 600 103,106 271
Borrowings 310 750
Total Liabilities 995 1,116
Net Equity 1,012 969
Lending activity
Loan Disbursements 56,576 1,991 42,463 1,314
Profit & loss account
Net Interest Income 345 284
Profit Before Tax 57 46
Taxation (16) (18)
Profit After Tax 4] 27

STAFF, TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT
Total number of staff working in the Bank i.e. executives, officers and support staff as at December 31,2022 numbered
2,494 (Including 502 outsource staff) as compared to 2,458 (Including 478 outsource staff) as at December 31,2021.

During 2022, in-house and Ex-house Training Programs were conducted in the areas of Branch Banking Operations, Fair
Treatment to Customers, International Trade, Islamic Banking, SME Finance, Compliance (AML/CFT) Cyber Security, Risk
Management, Internal Control, Internal Audit, Gender Sensitivity and soft skills, etc. A total of 48 in-house and 25
ex-house training sessions were conducted during the year 2022 which were attended by an aggregate of 1963 participants.
Due to State Bank's directives, Bank has made prime focus on training programs related to Gender Sensitivity, Anti Money
Laundering / Compliance, Risk Management and Internal Audit.

In order to comply with regulatory requirements and to convey the message down the line, Area Managers, Branch and
Operation Managers of all 4 regions were provided relevant trainings. They entrusted the responsibility to conduct sessions
on 'Fair Treatment of Customers' at the branch level.

In 2022, a number of ex-house training programs were offered by NIBAF, IBP, PITAC, Dellsons and other well-known
consultancies for which relevant staff were nominated. Since training on Islamic Banking, Compliance, Risk Management
and SME were the main areas of concentration for State Bank in 2022, the Bank nominated 64 employees to attend such
seminars and workshops at different locations across Pakistan

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
Fundraising for Flood Relief Program:

e Sindh Bank opened an account for public specifically for Flood Donations in collaboration with Prime Minister Flood
Relief Fund Program and encouraged the citizens to donate as much as they can through this platform.

e  Sindh Bank also collected donations from the employees in the form of deducting two days salary from executives
and one-day salary from other employees, in this respect bank handed over a cheque worth PKR Rs 5.2 mn to Chief
Minister Sindh.

e Distribution of tents amounting to Rs 50 mn was provided under Provincial Disaster Management Authority (PDMA)
Program in province of Sindh.

The Bank organised / provided sponsorships for the below mentioned events during 2022:

e  Breast Cancer Awareness Day was celebrated at the Head Office Sindh Bank in collaboration with State Bank and
Pink Ribbon to spread awareness about breast cancer and its prevention.

e Sindh Bank ATM on wheels was placed at Annual ljtema Karachi to facilitate the people attending the ljtema.

University of Karachi Applied Economics Research Centre's Alumni Meet & Greet Event.

e  ASF (Airport Security Force) Shuhada Day Event.
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CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

e  The financial statements prepared by the management of the bank, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

o  Proper books of accounts of the bank have been maintained.

e  Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently in preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

e  The International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable to banks in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of financial statements and any departures therefrom have been adequately disclosed and explained.

e  The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

e  There is no significant doubt about the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future.

e  The Directors' Orientation Course on Corporate Governance was conducted through an ICAP approved trainer and
was attended by President & CEO and all those directors who have been approved by the SBP to attend the meetings
during assessment of FPT documents of elected directors.

e  Key financial and operating data for six years is being provided in the annual report.

e  All the statutory liabilities, if any have been adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

e  The appointment of the Chairman and other members of the Board and the terms of their appointment along with
remuneration policy adopted are in the best interest of the Bank as well as in line with best practices.

e  Value of investments of Sindh Bank Limited Employees Provident Fund as at December 31,2022 amounted to Rs. 1,671.4
mn (2021 Rs. 1,346.9 mn).Value of investments of Sindh Bank Limited Employees Gratuity Fund as at December 31,2022
Rs. 632.6 mn amounted to (2021 Rs. 516.0 mn) and further an amount Rs. 104.7 mn has been transferred subsequent
to the balance sheet date, based on actuarial valuation of the fund.

e  Statement of compliance with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 is given separately in
the Annual Report.

EVALUATION OF BOARD, CHAIRMAN, INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS, INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS,
PRESIDENT & CEO & COMMITTEES

In terms of State Bank's BPRD Circular # | |, dated August 22, 2016 and the Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules 2013, the Board of Directors in its 44th Meeting held on November 21,2016 approved the evaluation
criteria and procedure for evaluation of its own performance, performance of Chairman, Individual Directors, Independent
Directors, President & CEO and its Committees.

The Board members carried it out annually, based on the in-house developed mechanism and submitted their reports
to the Chairman. The Performance of the Board was evaluated by all Directors on individual basis on the criteria which
included Board Composition and structure, Board contribution towards developing strategies, policy framework, robust
and effective risk management, internal control and audit functions etc.

In terms of afore said Circular of SBP, the performance evaluation is to be carried-out once in three years by an outside
agency.Accordingly performance evaluation in the year 2022 has been carried out by the all Directors and submitted
to the Chairman in [01st Board Meeting held on March 8, 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review attendance of Directors at the Board and Board Committee meetings was as under:

Board Human A Board Risk Board Board
Name of Directors gi?-:r:(t‘ OT; Resource ?:%T:::i\;:: Management CtB)(r)nar.;fitltz 3 Nomination SAM
Committee Committee Committee | Committee

= =2 = = = =2 =
| Mr. Anis A. Khan 9 9 I I - - 2 2 | I 3 3
Mr. Sajid jamal Abro

2 SBP approv]al dt.]29.03.2022 9 7 I I 4 I 3 - - I 3 3
3 | Mr. Asif Jahangi 9 9 - . 4 2 | 2 | - - - -
4 | Mr.Javaid Bashir Sheikh 9 9 - - 4 4 3 3 - - - . - -
5 | Mrs. Masooma Husain 9 3 - - 4 2 - - - = s - - -
¢ | Mr. Mohammad Aftab Alam 6 = - 4 2 - - 2 2 3 3
7 | Mr.Adnan Ali Khan 9 3 - - - - 2 | 5 = - -
8 | Mr.Imran Samad, President & CEO 9 9 - - = 5 5 - . - - - -
Total Meetings held during the year 9 | 4 3 2 3




CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, Mr. Sajid Jamal Abro had assumed the charge as Finance Secretary, Government of Sindh on 28.01.2022 and
co-opted by the Board of Directors in place of Syed Hasan Nagqvi, the ex-Finance Secretary, GoS after approval of SBP on
29.03.2022.The other two casual vacancies were also filled by the Board of Directors, after obtaining SBP clearances, one of
which was co-opted by Mr.Adnan Ali Khan, Independent Director in place of outgoing elected Directors Mr. M. Naeem Sahgal
& Mrs. Shaista Bano Gilani, Independent Director in place of Mrs. Masooma Hussain.

BOARD COMMITTEES MEETINGS
Details of the Board Committees meetings are disclosed in Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 in this report.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The pattern of shareholding is attached with this report.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

M/S Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co., the retiring auditors have completed their five year terms, as prescribed. The appointment
of the new statutory auditors' M/s. RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman Chattered Accountants of the Bank for the year
December 31,2023 is being considered in the forthcoming 12th Annual General Meeting by the shareholders.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
With encouraging results achieved so far, the management is determined to maintain its focus on the following major goals
in the coming period:

(i) Recovery and reduction of Non-Performing Loans;

(i) Increase of Consumer, SME and Commercial business;

(iii) Alternate delivery and service channels based on technology platforms to facilitate our customers;
(iv) Training and development of Staff; and

(v) Strengthening the risk and control environment.

Acknowledgements
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continued guidance, support and confidence reposed in the Bank and its Management.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Imran Samad Mohammad Aftab Alam
President/CEO Non Executive Director

Karachi, March 8,2023
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Vertical Analysis
Statement of Financial Position / Profit & Loss
2021 2020 2019

Rs.in % Rs.in % Rs.in %

million million million

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS Cash and
Cash and balances with treasury banks 14,169 4% 19342 Th 14487 5% 13553 8% 9103 6% 9680 5%
Balances with other banks 1,620 0.5% 1,092 0% 418 2% 839 % 508 0% 3,013 1%
Lendings to financial institutions 19,967 6% 6081 2% 8213 3% 3645 2% 5383 3% 5331 3%
Investments 254553 T71% 175703  65% 170818  62% 65143  41% 55351  36% 114260  56%
Advances 43802 12% 47784 18% 56853 21%  6LI31  38% 73632  47% 64713 3%
Operating fixed assets 4,150 1% 3202 1% 3334 1% 3828 2% 1,663 % 1,655 %
Deferred tax assets-net 14,662 4% 13252 5% 10,182 4% 8607 5% 4028 3% 1,612 1%
Other assets 4928 1% 3,671 1% 5641 2% 3853 2% 5894 4% 4,602 2%
357,850  100% 270,188 100% 273714 100% 160,599 ~ 100% [55561 100% 204876  100%
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 726 0.21% 625 0% 592 0% 495 0% 929 % 905 0%
Borrowings from financial institutions 106935 31.39% 26786  10% 62378 23% 4192 3% 26772 17% 50,971 25%
Deposits and other accounts 223,044 6547% 217608 8% 185571  68% 134050  83% 113594 73% 134207  66%
Deferred tax liability-net - - 0% - 0% - 0% - 0% - 0%
Other liabilities 9,995  2.93% 6542 2% 609 2% 4785 3% 3027 2% 2,725 1%
340699  100% 251561  93% 254,637 93% 143522  89% 144322 93% 188808  92%
NET ASSETS 7,151 18627 7% 19077 7% 17077 11% 11239 7% 16068 8%
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 29,54 25524 9% 19710 7% 19710 12% 10010 6% 10010 5%
Shares Deposit Money - 4000 0% 2000 1% 2,000 1%
Reserves 461 9% 1,461 % 1471 1% 1,452 1% 1452 % 1,452 %
Proposed shares to be issued on amalgamation - 0% 0% 3814 1% 0% 0% 0%

(Accumulated loss) / Unappropriated profit (12,626)  -74%  (11,237) 4%  (7510) -3%  (4304) -3% 3957 3% 5176 3%
Defecit/(surplus) on revaluation of
investments - net of related deferred tax (1,209 7% (1,122 0% 409 0% (L781) 1% (4181) -3% (570) 0%

(7,151 -72% 18627 7% 19077 7% 17077 1% 11238 7% 16068 8%

PROFIT & LOSSACCOUNT

Mark-up / return / interest earned 36378 97.1% 21826  97% 15350  96% 12,115 106% 12383 103% 11541  90%
Fee, commission and brokerage 428 L1% 32 2% 79 2% 304 3% 38 3% 454 4%
Income from dealing in foreign currencies 558  I.5% 4 0% 285 2% 159 1% 87 1% 104 1%
Capital gain and dividend income % 03% 48 1% 5 0% (1,138 -10% (820)  -7% 760 6%
Other income 8  00% I 0% 9 0% 8 0% 6 0% 0 0%
Total income 37467 1000% 22403 100% 15973 100% 11,448 100% 11,994 100% 12869  100%
Mark-up / return / interest expensed 31,061 8290% 16922 76% 12476  78% 10266  90% 7508  63% 6276 49%
Operating & admin expenses 6,736 17.98% 5722 26% 5109 32% 4923 43% 4527  38% 4157 32%
Provision against investments & others 1,939 5.18% 5823 26% 3723 23% 10020 88% 1378 1% 253 2%
Taxation (883) (2.36%)  (2337) -10%  (2,122) -13%  (5501) -48% (214 2% 927 %
Total Expenses 38853 103.7% 26,130 117% 19,186 120% 19708 172% 13,199 110% 11,613  90%

(Loss)/Profit after taxation (1,38) -3.7%  (3727) -17%  (3213) -20% (8260) -72%  (1,205) -10% 1,256 10%




Horizontal Analysis

2022 W yep 2020 2019 2018 2017
Rs.in Rs.in y Rs.in Rs.in Rs.in Rs.in
° million million million million

million million

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 14,169 27% 19342 4% 14487 7% 13,553 49% 9,103 6% 9,680
Balances with other banks 1,620 48% 1,092 4% 4185 399% 839 65% 508 -83% 3013
Lendings to financial institutions 19,967 228% 6,081 -26% 8213 125% 3,645 -32% 5,383 1% 5331
Investments 254,553 45% 175,703 3% 170818 162% 65143 18% 55351 -52% 114,260
Advances 43,802 8% 47,784 -16% 56,853 % 61,131 7% 73,632 4% 64713
Operating fixed assets 4,150 27% 3,262 2% 3334 -13% 3828 130% 1,663 0% 1655
Deferred tax assets-net 14,662 [1% 13,252 30% 10,182 18% 8,607 [14% 4028 150% 1,612
Other assets 4928 34% 3671 -35% 5,641 46% 3853 -35% _ 58% 28% 4602
357,850 32% 270,188 -1% 273,714 70% 160,599 3% 155,561 -24% 204,876
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 726 16% 625 6% 592 20% 495 A7% 929 3% 905
Borrowings from financial institutions 106,935 299% 26,786 S7% 62378 1388% 4192 -84% 26772 -A7% 50971
Deposits and other accounts 223,044 2% 217,608 7% 185571 38% 134050 18% 11359 -15% 134,207
Deferred tax liability - - 0% - 0% - 0% - 0% -
Other liabilities 9,995 53% 6,542 7% 6,096 7% 4785 58% 3027 % 2725
340,699 35% 251,561 -1% 254,637 1% 143,522 -1% 144,322 -24% 188,808
NET ASSETS 17,151 8% 18,627 2% 19,077 12% 17,0717 52% 11,239 -30% 16,068
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 29,524 16% 25524 29% 19710 0% 19,710.00 97% 10010 0% 10010
Shares Deposit Money - - 4000  -100% 2,000 0% 2,000.00 0% - 0%
Reserves 1,461 0% 1,461 -1% 1471 1% 1452.00 0% 1,452 0% 1452
Proposed shares to be issued on amalgamation - - - -100% 3814 0% - 0% - 0%
(Accumulated loss) / Unappropriated profit (12,626) 12%  (11,237) 50%  (7.510) -T4% (430400)  -209% 3958 -2353% 5176
Surplus / (Deficit) on revaluation of
investments - net of related deferred tax (1,209) 8% (1,122 175% (409) 77% (1,781.00) -57%  (4,181) 633% (570)
17,151 -8% 18,627 2% 19,077 12% 17,017 52% 11,239 -30% 16,068
PROFIT & LOSSACCOUNT
Mark-up / return / interest earned 36,378 67% 21826 2% 1535 7% 12115 2% 12383 7% 11,541
Fee, commission and brokerage 428 2% 352 26% 279 -8% 304 1% 328 -28% 454
Income from dealing in foreign currencies 558 650% 74 -14% 285 79% 159 82% 87 -16% 104
Capital gain and dividend income 9% -35% 148 194% 50 104%  (1,138) 39% (8200 -208% 760
Other income 8 200% 3 -12% 9 1% 8 -49% 16 58% 10
Total income 37,467 67% 22,403 40% 15973 40% 11,448 5% 11,994 1% 12,869
Mark-up / return / interest expensed 31,061 84% 16,922 36% 12,476 22% 10,266 37% 7,508 20% 6,276
Operating & admin expenses 6,736 18% 5722 12% 5,109 9% 493 9% 4527 9% 4158
Provision against investments & others 1,939 -67% 5823 56% 3723 -63% 10,020 627% 1,378 446% 252
Taxation (883) -62%  (2,337) 0%  (2122) -61%  (5,501)  2486% @13 -123% 927
Total Expenses 38,853 49% 26,130 -36% 19,186 3% 19,708 49% 13,200 14% 11,613

(Loss)/Profit after taxation (138) 6% (3721)  -16% (3203) _ 61% (82600  585% (1,208) -196% 1,256
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Key Performance Indicators

Financial

Investments-Gross Rs. In million 257,487 178,415 172,300 68,567 62,027 115,145
Advances-Gross e 70,899 73,025 76,356 76,430 79,172 69,112
Deposits t 223,043 217,608 185,571 134,050 113,595 134,207
Shareholders' Equity " 17,150 18,635 19,077 17,077 11,238 16,067
Total Assets e 357,850 270,198 273,713 160,599 155,561 204,876
Net Interest Income " 5316 4,904 2,874 1,850 4,875 5,265
Non Interest Income " 1,089 576 623 (668) (389) 1,328
Operating Expenses " 6,736 5722 5,109 4923 4527 4,158
(Loss)/ Profit Before provisions e (330) (241) (1,612) (3,741) (41) 2,435
Provision against investments & others " " 1,938 5,824 3723 10,021 1,378 252
(Loss)/Profit Before Taxation " (2,269) (6,065) (5,335) (13,761) (1,419) 2,182
(Loss)/Profit After Taxation e (1,386) (3,728) (3:213) (8,260) (1,206) 1,256

Non Financial

No. of Customers (as of) Numbers 556,539 517,621 484,730 497,507 477,399 471,439
No.of New Branches Opened " - - - - 30 40
No. of New Accounts Opened " 69,587 36,034 33,056 39,172 42,721 57,657
No. of ATM/Debit Cards Issued (as of) " " 107,831 192,776 240,523 291,741 265,413 244,659
No. of Permanent Employees (as of) " 1,894 1,828 1,789 1,745 1,628 1,466
No. of ATM Machine (as of) " 282 282 271 265 252 240
No. of Mobile Banking Customers e 385,046 339,793 336,308 205,022 180,718 188,157
Key Financial Ratios

(loss) / earnings Per Share Rupees (0.54) (1.49) (1.63) (8.00) (1.20) .25
Book Value Per Share e 6.65 6.31 747 187 11.23 16.63
Return on Equity % (7.75) (19.77) (17.77) (58.43) (8.83) 795
Return on Assets e (0.44) (1.37) (1.48) (5.23) (0.67) 0.72
Capital Adequacy Ratio e 538 [1.91 15.20 13.15 8.02 15.67
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

On the Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the
Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) prepared by the Board
of Directors of Sindh Bank Limited for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the statues of the Company's compliance with the
provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Rules. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Bank's personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Bank to comply with the Rules.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Bank's corporate governance procedures and risks.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Bank's compliance, in all material respect, with
the best practices contained in the Rules as applicable to the Company for the year ended December
31, 2022.

("\
Place: Islamabad - é s é / .
ace: Islamaba aveed Zafar AshfagJafferyg Co.

Date: March 10, 2023 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: CR202210596XYRt70Sr1

Other | 1st Floor, Modern Motors House, Beaumont Road, Karachi, Pakistan - Ph: +92 21-35671909 Fax: +92 21-35210626 Email:khi@nzaj.com.pk ) )
Offices | 201-Regency Plaza, M.M. Alam Road, Gulberg-ll, Lahore,Pakistan - Ph: +92 42-37321969, 37249053 Fax: +32 42-37324103 Email: Inr@nzaj.com.pk

1st Floor Lamsay Arcade, Oppt.Green's Banquet Hall,Peshawar Pakistan - Ph:#92 91-5276102, 5274995 Fax: 091-5274968 Email: pesh@nzaj.com.pk
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(SCHEDULE-I)

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Rules 2013

Name of company - Sindh Bank Limited
Name of the line ministry - Finance Department, Govt. of Sindh
For the year ended - 31st December, 2022

This statement is being presented to comply with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (hereinafter called
"the Rules") issued for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a public sector company is managed in
compliance with the best practices of public sector governance.

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner:

S. No. Provision of the Rules Rule No. Y ‘ N
Tick the
relevant box
I The independent directors meet the criteria of independence, as defined under the Rules, Rule-2(d) v
2 The Board has atleast one-third of its total members, as independent directors. At present  Rule-3(2) v
the board includes:
Category Names a Date of
ppointment
Non-Executive Director I. Mr.Anis A. Khan 02/04/2021
Finance Secretary GoS / 2. Mr. Sajid Jamal Abro 29/03/2022
Non-Executive Director
Nominee of GoS / Non- 3. Mr. Asif Jahangir 02/04/2021
Executive Director
Independent Director 4. Mr. Javaid Bashir Sheikh 02/04/2021
Non-Executive Director 5. Mohammed Aftab Alam 02/04/2021
Independent Director 6. Mr. Adnan Ali Khan 27/06/2022
Independent Director 7. Mrs. Shaista Bano Gilani 30/09/2022
3 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five public Rule-3(5) v

sector companies and listed companies simultaneously, except their subsidiaries.

4 The appointing authorities have applied the fit and proper criteria given in the Annexure in Rule-3(7) v
making nominations of the persons for election as board members under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017 (the Act, 2017).

5 The Office of the Chairman of the Board is separate from the Chief Executive of the Company.  Rule-4(1) v
6 The Chairman is elected by the Board of Directors, except where Chairman of the Board has

been appointed by the Government. Rule-4(4) v
7 The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position of the Chief Executive on the basis of

the fit and proper criteria as well as the guidelines specified by the Commission. (Not applicable,

where the chief executive has been nominated by the Government). Rule-5(2) v
8 (@) The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" to ensure that professional standards ang

corporate values are in place. Rule-5(4) v

=

(b) The Board has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughou
the company along with its supporting policies and procedures, including posting

the same on the companies' website. sindhbank.com.pk v

(c) The Board has set in place adequate systems and controls for the identification and redressal

of the grievances arising from unethical practices. v
9 The Board has established a system of sound internal control, to ensure compliance with the

fundamental principles of probity and propriety; objectivity, integrity and honesty; and

relationship with the stakeholders, in the manner prescribed in the Rules. Rule-5(5) v
10 The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate conflict of interest policy to lay down

circumstances or considerations when a person may be deemed to have actual or potential

conflict of interests, and the procedure for disclosing such interest. Rule-5(5)(b)(ii) v

I The Board has developed and implemented a policy on anti-corruption to minimize actual or
perceived corruption in the company. Rule-5(5)(b)(vi) v

12 The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by establishing open and fair procedures for

making appointments and for determining terms and conditions of service. Rule-5(5)(c)(ii) v




S. No. Provision of the Rules Rule No. Y N

Tick the
relevant box

13 The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well as the Company's internal rules and Rule-5(5)(c)(iii) | v
procedures relating to public procurement, tender regulations, and purchasing and technical
standards, when dealing with suppliers of goods and services.

14 The Board has developed a vision or mission statement and corporate strategy of the Company. Rule-5(6) v
I5 The Board has developed significant policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of Rule-5(7) v
significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended, has been
maintained.
16 The Board has quantified the outlay of any action in respect of any service delivered or goods sold Rule-5(8) N/A

by the Company as a public service obligation, and has submitted its request for appropriate
compensation to the Government for consideration.

17 The Board has ensured compliance with policy directions requirements received from the Rule-5(11) v
Government.

18 (a) The Board has met at least four times during the year. Rule-6(1) v
(b) Written notices of the board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated Rule-6(2) v
at least seven days before the meetings.

(c) The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated. Rule-6(3) v

19 The Board has monitored and assessed the performance of senior management on annual basis and ~ Rule-8(2) v
held them accountable for accomplishing objectives, goals and key performance indicators set for the
purpose.

20 The Board has reviewed and approved the related party transactions placed before it after Rule-9 v

recommendation of Audit Committee. A party wise record of transactions entered into with the
related parties during the year has been maintained.

21 (a) The Board has approved the profit and loss account for, and balance sheet as at the end of, the Rule-10 v
first, second and third quarter of the year as well as the financial year end.
(b) In case of listed PSCs, the Board has prepared half yearly account and undertaken limited scope N/A
review by the auditors.
(c) The Board has placed the annual financial statements on the Company's website. v
22 All the Board members underwent an orientation course arranged by the Company to apprise them  Rule-11 v
of the material developments and information as specified in the Rules.
23 (a) The Board has formed the requisite committees, as specified in the Rules. Rule-12 v
(b) The committees were provided with written term of reference defining their duties, authority|and v
composition.
(c) The minutes of the meetings of the committees were circulated to all the Board members. v
(d) The committees were chaired by the following non-executive directors: v
Committee Total Name of Chair
Members | (1.D-Independent Director & NED-Non Executive Director)
Board Audit Committee Mr.]rz}‘vaid Bashir Sheikh (1.D)
04 Mr. Mohammed Aftab Alam (N.E.D)
Mr. Asif Jahangir (N.E.D)
Mrs. Shaista Bano Gilani (1.D)
Board Risk Management Finance Secretary-GoS (N.E.D)
Committee Mr. Javaid Bashir Sheikh (1.D)

04 Mr. Asif Jahangir (N.E.D)
Mrs. Shaista Bano Gilani (1.D)

Board HRR Committee Mr.Adnan Ali Khan %D)
03 Mr.Anis A. Khan (N.E.D)
Finance Secretary-GoS (N.E.D)

Board Information Technology Mr. Anis A. Khan (N.E.D)
Committee 03 Mr.Adnan Ali Khan (1.D)
Mr. Mohammed Aftab Alam (N.E.D)
Board Nomination Committee Mr. Anis A. Khan (N.E.D)
03 Finance Secretary-GoS (N.E.D)
Mr. Asif Jahangir {N.E.D)
Board Special Assets Management Mr.Anis A. Khan (N.E.D)
Committee 03 Finance Secretary-GoS (N.E.D)

Mr. Mohammed Aftab Alam (N.E.D)




SINDHBANK

- ALl
Py

Powm To Ths Peoes =% ®

S. No. Provision of the Rules Rule No. Y N
Tick the
relevant box
24 The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Chief Rules-13 v
Internal Auditor, by whatever name called, with their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment.
25 The Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary have requisite qualification as prescribed Rules-14 v
by Rules.
26 The Company has adopted International Financial Reporting Standards notified by the SECP in Rule-16 v
terms of Sub-section | of Section 225 of the Act, 2017.
27 The directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Rule-17 v
Act, 2017 and the Rules and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.
28 The directors, CEO and executives, or their relatives, are not, directly or indirectly, concerned or Rule-18 v

interested in any contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Company except
those disclosed to the company.

29 a. A formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration packages of individual directors Rule-19 v
has been set in place and no director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

b. The annual report of the Company contains criteria and details of remuneration of each director.

30 The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the Chief Executive and Chief Rule-20 v
Financial Officer, before consideration and approval of the Audit Committee and the Board.
31 |. The Board has formed an Audit Committee, with defined and written terms of reference, and | Rule-21(1)(2)
having the following members:
Name of Category & Number of Members| Professional background
Committee
Board Audit Mr. Javaid Bashir Sheikh (1.D) Ex-Banker
Mr. Mohammed Aftab Alam (N.E.D) Chartered Accountant
Mr. Asif Jahangir (N.E.D) Ex-Finance Secretary-GoS
Mrs. Shaista Bano Gilani (1.D) Ex-DG of SECP &
Ex member CCP

2.The Chief Executive and Chairman of the Board are not members of the Audit Committee.
32 a. The Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Internal Auditor and a representative of the external Rule-21(3) v
auditors attended all meetings of the Audit Committee at which issues relating to accounts and
audit were discussed.

b. The Audit Committee met the external auditors, at least once a year, without the presence of v
the Chief Financial Officer,the Chief Internal Auditor and other executives.
c. The Audit Committee met the Chief Internal Auditor and other members of the internal audit v
function, at least once a year, without the presence of Chief Financial Officer and external auditors.
33 a. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, which has an audit charter, duly Rule-22 v
approved by the Audit Committee.
b. The Chief Internal Auditor has requisite qualification and experience prescribed in the Rules. v
c. The internal audit reports have been provided to the external auditor for their review. v
34 The external auditors of the Company have confirmed that the firm and all its partners are in Rule-23(4) v

compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as
applicable in Pakistan.

35 The auditors have confirmed that they have observed applicable guidelines issued by IFAC with regardRule-23(5) v
to provision of non-audit services.

§ oo

Imran Samad Mohammad Aftab Alam
President & CEO Non Executive Direector




Statement of Internal Control

This statement is presented to comply with the requirement of the State Bank of Pakistan BSD circular No.07 dated May 27, 2004 on "Guidelines
on Internal Controls" and Annexure A of OSED Circular No. 0 dated February 07, 2014 on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting (ICFR).

The Bank's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate and effective system of internal controls and procedures
under the policies approved by the Board. The management is also responsible for ensuring effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability
of financial reporting, safeguarding of assets, evaluating effectiveness of the Bank's internal control system, review of significant policies, procedures
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. These regulations which contain information requirements on how internal control system
is organized are designed to provide reasonable certainty regarding the reliability of financial reporting.

The Board has established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Bank and this process
includes the system of Internal Control over Financial Reporting. The process is regularly reviewed by the Board and the control activities are
being closely monitored across the Bank through, Internal Control Committee (ICC), Compliance Division, Internal Audit Division, Risk
Management Division and Internal Control Department covering key internal controls in all banking activities.

In order to discharge the above responsibility, the Board Audit Committee has direct oversight responsibility to ensure the independence of
the Internal Audit Function and External Audit. The Audit Committee meetings are held once in every quarter to discuss the scope and results
of the work performed by the Internal Audit Department. All significant/ material findings of the internal audit activities and control gaps are
reported to the Audit Committee and it actively monitors implementation of internal controls to ensure that identified risks are mitigated to
safeguard interest of the Bank.

The Audit Committee also meets with External Auditors prior to approval of half-yearly and final results of the Bank. Based on observations
and weaknesses found and identified by the Internal and External Auditors, appropriate improvements in internal controls are made wherever
possible, by the management and approval of the Board of Directors is taken where required.

Due to inherent limitations, any system of internal controls is exposed to the risk of human error, system failure, circumvention and overriding
of controls. Therefore, evaluation and monitoring of existing internal controls is an ongoing process. It is pertinent to mention that an internal
control system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk. As such it can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Bank has adopted and implemented the internationally accepted COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of Treadway Commission)
Framework of Internal Control-Integrated Framework to further enhance its internal control system and to manage the Bank's risk on an
integrated enterprise wide basis enabling it to meet the requirements of 'Guidelines on Internal Controls' issued by the State Bank of Pakistan.
The Bank has developed a comprehensive testing and reporting framework for ensuring ongoing operating effectiveness of majority of key controls
and has significantly addressed the design improvement opportunities identified to complete the project related initiatives.

In order to ensure consistency in the process of compliance with the relevant guidelines, the Bank followed a structured roadmap by carrying
out detailed documentation of the important processes and controls, together with comprehensive gap analysis of the control design and
developed and implemented remediation plans for the gaps.

The management assists the Board in the implementation of its approved policies and procedures pertaining to Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. The management is continuously in the process of enhancing the documentation of the system of Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. While

concerted efforts have always been made to comply with the guidelines issued by SBP, the identification, evaluation, and management of risks
within

each of the Bank's key activities, and their continued evaluation and changes to policies and procedures remains an ongoing process. Compliance
Division through its specialized teams and centralized automated solutions, also oversees adherence to the regulatory requirements, with specific
emphasis on Anti-Money Laundering (AML)/ Combating the Financing of Terrorism (CFT).

In accordance with SBP directives, the Bank has completed all the stages of ICFR and upon satisfactory completion of ICFR roadmap, SBP had
granted waiver for the submission of Long Form Reports from External Auditors from the year 2015.

For the Year 2022, the Bank has successfully completed the cycle of SBP's Internal Control over Financial Reporting roadmap. As per SBP
directives of July 06, 2021, the banks which have completed all the stages of ICFR roadmap will continue to prepare Annual Assessment Report
but they are allowed to discontinue its yearly submission to SBP. However, as part of SBP supervisory assessments, these reports may be required
by SBP for evaluation purposes. Accordingly, the bank has prepared aforementioned Report for the Year 2022 and the same has been submitted
to Board Audit Committee for its review and onward approval from the BOD.

The management is of the view that the system of Internal Control over Financial Reporting in place is sound and adequate to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of Financial Reporting and that the preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes is in accordance
with relevant accounting principles, standards and regulatory requirements.

Based on the above, the Board of Directors endorses the management's evaluation of Internal Controls.

On behalf of the Board

Imran Samad
President/CEO
Karachi, March 8,2023
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Disclosure in Annual Accounts on Consumer
Grievances Handling Mechanism

Sindh Bank recognizes Consumer Grievances Handling Mechanism as a key process in supporting its business and is all the
time striving hard to promote a culture that values customer experience as an important factor to derive growth.

Towards achievement of this goal, Sindh Bank has put in place a fair and efficient mechanism for handling Consumer Grievances
entailing the following:

l.
2.
3.

Every complaint is treated fairly, impartially and with transparency
Complaint handling mechanism is centralized, visible and accessible

All complaints are forwarded to the Complaint Management Unit (CMU) of the bank Customer complaints are acknowledged
within 24 hours

Complaints are investigated and resolved within the time limit prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan (7 to 30 days
depending on the severity of the complaint)

In case a complaint is not resolved within the stipulated time, customer is advised of the status through an interim reply

Upon closure of the complaint, the CMU will communicate the closure to the customer through email / letter to be sent
at the complainant's available address.

In case a complaint is declined by the bank the customer will be provided with the alternative grievance redressal forums
Complaint trends and GAP analysis reports are shared with the Senior Management & Business owners on quarterly basis,
to improve customer experience & avoid recurrence of instances

During the year 2022 a total of 861 | complaints were received by the bank and the average resolution time was 8 days.

Complaint lodgment procedure has been made public through display of placards in branches, ATM Booths and the Bank's
website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

An Association of
Independent Accounting Firms

To the members of Sindh Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Sindh Bank Limited (the Bank),which comprise the unconsolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, the unconsolidated profit and loss account, the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive loss, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, which incorporate unaudited certified returns received from the branches except for 20 branches which have been audited by
us, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated statement of financial
position, unconsolidated profit and loss account, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of
changes in equity and unconsolidated cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Bank's
affairs as at December 31, 2022 and of the loss and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to:

a) Note 1.4 to unconsolidated financial statements on the 'Going Concern' which indicates the existence of material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. However, the management is confident that
the Bank will be able to stage a turn-around and the Government of Sindh, Bank's sole sponsor and major shareholder has
demonstrated its commitment to supporting the Bank, whenever required. We are in agreement with the management for
addressing the Going Concern issue.

b) Note 23.3.5 to unconsolidated financial statements on Significant Matters which describes that the district government officials
being single authorized signatory of the bank account holder have made cash withdrawals to the tune of Rs. 5.7 billion for Sukkur

- Hyderabad Motorway (M-6) from the bank accounts maintained at Mattiari and Naushero Feroz branches respectively.

Our opinion in not modified in respect of the above matters.




Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Reports Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Bank's
Annual Report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements in accordance
with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962
and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)

b)

c)

d)

proper books of account have been kept by the Bank/branches as required by the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and
the returns referred above from the branches have been found adequate for the purpose of our audit;

the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account, the unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and unconsolidated cash flow statement
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in accordance with the objects and
powers of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank/branches which have come to our notice have been within the powers
of the Bank/branches; and

zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Bank and
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty per cent of the total advances of the Bank.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shah Naveed Saeed.

r’\
Place: Islamabad (W?f : /
Date: March 10, 2023 aveed Zafar Ashfag/Jaffery& Co.
UDIN: AR202210596p8KE 14523 Chartered Accountants
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Sindh Bank Limited

Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position

As At December 31, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks
Lendings to financial institutions

Investments
Advances
Fixed assets

Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets - net

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable
Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease

Subordinated debt
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Share capital - net

Reserves

Shares deposit money
Deficit on revaluation of assets
Accumulated Loss

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

I5
16
17

20
22

23

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

14,168,738 19,341,933
1,619,530 1,092,559
19,967,424 6,081,208
254,552,777 || 17570338|
43,802,328 47,784,162
4,032,522 3,147,597
117,271 14,274
14,662,046 13,252,533
4,927,691 3,670,762
357,850,327  270,188409
726,148 624,726
106,934,714 26,785,738
223,043,950 || 217,608,406
9,994,556 6,542,257
340,699,368 251,561,127
17,150,959 18,627,282
29,524,428 25,524,428
1,461,412 1 461,412
- 4,000,000
(1,208,500) (1,121,647)
(12,626,381)  (11236911)
17,150,959 18,627,282

The annexed notes from | to 46 and Annexures - | (pages | to 9) & Annexure - Il (pages | to |) form an integral part of
these unconsolidated financial statements.

.
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Sindh Bank Limited
Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Account
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)

Mark-up / Return / Interest Earned 24 36,377,762 21,826,086
Mark-up / Return / Interest Expensed 25 31,061,343 [6921,716
Net Mark-up / return / Interest Income 5,316,419 4,904,370
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
Fee and Commission Income 26 428,314 351,958
Dividend Income 253,607 154,063
Foreign Exchange Income 557,561 74,371
Income / (loss) from derivatives - -
Gain / (Loss) on securities 27 (157,712) (6,435)
Other Income 28 7,565 2,521
Total non-markup/interest Income 1,089,335 576,478
Total Income 6,405,754 5,480,848
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
Operating expenses 29 6,726,416 5,654,393
Other charges 30 9,793 67,640
Total non-markup/interest expenses 6,736,209 5,722,033
LOSS BEFORE PROVISIONS (330,455) (241,185)
Provisions and write offs - net 31 1,938,638 5822916
Extra ordinary / unusual items - -
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (2,269,093) (6,064,101)
Taxation 32 (883,343) (2,336,617)
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (1,385,750) (3,727,484)

----------- Rupees -----------
Basic Loss per share 33 (0.54) (1.49)
Diluted Loss per share 34 (0.54) (1.49)

The annexed notes from | to 46 and Annexures - | (pages | to 9) & Annexure - Il (pages | to |) form an integral part of
these unconsolidated financial statements.

)
_ L/ oy —
Director irector Chief Fina

Chairman President and 1al Officer

Chief Executive Officer
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Sindh Bank Limited
Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

Loss after taxation for the year
Other comprehensive income

[tems that may be reclassified to profit and loss account
in subsequent periods:

Movement in (deficit) / surplus on revaluation of investments - net of tax

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account
in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligations - net of deferred tax

Total comprehensive loss

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

(1,385,750)  (3,727,484)
(86,853) (713,142)
(1,472,603) (4,440,626
(3,720) 797
(1,476,323)  (4439,829)

The annexed notes from | to 46 and Annexures | (pages | to 9) & Annexure-Il (Page | to I) form an integral part of these

unconsolidated financial statements.

Chairman President and
Chief Executive Officer
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Sindh Bank Limited
Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Year Ended December 31, 2022

Proposed Capital Reserves
Ordinary Shares Surp!us/ Accumulated
Share Capital | | shares to be Deposit Reserves on Share Statutory (Deficit) on Loss Total
issued on Money amalgamation || Premium Reserve * revaluation of
amalgamation investments
(Rupees in '000")
Balance as at January 01,2021 19,710,130 3814298 2,000,000 19,443 51 11451928 (408,505)  (7510224) 19,077,121
Loss for the year ended December 31,2021 - - - - - - - (3727484)  (3,727,484)
Other comprehensive income /(loss) - net of tax - - - - - - (713,142) 797 (712,345)
Issue of Shares During the Period 5814298 (3.814,298) (2,000,000) - - - - - -
Share Deposit Money - - 4,000,000 - - - - - 4,000,000
Fair valuation adjustment of net assets of
-Sindh Leasing Company Limited - - - (10,010) - - - - (10,010)
Balance as at December 31,2021 25,524,428 - 4,000,000 9,433 51 1,451,928 (1,121,647)  (11,236,911) 18,627,282
Loss for the year ended December 31,2022 - - - - - - - (1,385,750)  (1,385,750)
Other comprehensive income - net of tax - - - - - - (86,853) (3,720) (90,573)
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - - - - -
Issue of shares during the year 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - - - - - -
Balance as at December 31,2022 29,524,428 - - 9,433 51 1,451,928 (1,208,500) (12,626,381) 17,150,959

¥ Statutory reserve represents amount set aside as per the requirements of Section 21 of the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962.

** As more fully explained in note 10.6.2 of these unconsolidated financial statements, unappropriated profit includes an
amount of Rs.4,737.96 million net of tax as at December 31,2022 (December 31,202 1: Rs. 7,184.65 million) representing
additional profit arising from availing forced sale value benefit for determining provisioning requirement which is not
available for the purpose of distribution of dividend to shareholders.

The annexed notes from | to 46 and Annexures - | (pages | to 9) & Annexure - I (pages | to |) form an integral part of
these unconsolidated financial statements.

Chairman President and irector Chief Finandial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

Chai Director
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Sindh Bank Limited
Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation
Less: Dividend income

Adjustments:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Provision and write offs -net

Charge for defined benefit plan

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets

(Increase) / Decrease in operating assets

Lendings to financial institutions
Advances - net
Other assets - net

Increase / (Decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Other liabilities (excluding current taxation)

Contribution to gratuity fund
Income tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net investment in available-for-sale securities

Net investment in held-to-maturity securities

Dividend received

Investments in operating fixed assets

Cash inflow from amalgamation of Sindh Leasing Company Ltd

Fair valuation adjustment of net assets of Sindh Leasing Company Limited
Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets disposed off

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Shares deposit money
Shares capital
Net cash generated from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note

37.1.3

35

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)

(2269,093) (6,064,101
(253,607) (154,063)
(2,522,700) (6,218,164)
942,051 950,371
35,219 35,085
1,938,638 5822916
98,588 95,085
(3,630) (284)
3,010,866 6,903,173
488,166 685,009
(13,886,216) 2,131,572
2,124,135 3,333,519
(1,284,071) [,759,625
(13,046,152) 7224716
101,422 32,392
80,148.976 | (35591910)
5,435,544 32,037,717
3,441,390 425,159
89,127,332 (3,096,642)
76,569,346 4813,083
(93,779) (72,270)
(441,118) (68,441)
76,034,449 4,672,372
(54,850,018)| | (6,169,074)
(24,222,699) 27,760
253,606 154,765
(1,866,555) (914,173)
] (10,010)

4,993 882
(80,680,673)  (6,909,850)
- 4,000,000

- 4,000,000
(4,646,224) | 762,522
20,434,492 18,671,970
15,788,268 20,434,492

The annexed notes from | to 46 and Annexures - | (pages | to 9) & Annexure - Il (pages | to |) form an integral part

of these unconsolidated financial statements.

ey
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Sindh Bank Limited
Notes To The Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Sindh Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 29,2010 as a public unlisted company and
is engaged in Commercial Banking, Corporate and Investment related activities. The Bank operates 330 (2021: 330)
branches including 8 (2021: 8) sub-branches and 14 (2021: 14) Islamic banking branches in Pakistan. The Bank's
registered office is located at 3rd floor, Federation House, Abdullah Shah Ghazi Road, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan.

The Government of Sindh, through its Finance Department owns 99.97% ordinary shares of the Bank.

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed the long term entity rating of A+ (Single A Plus) and short term
rating of A-1 (A-one) in its report dated June 28, 2022.

Going concern

Due to significant losses suffered by the Bank since the years 2018 and to address any material uncertainties, the
management has been working on a Business Viability Plan approved by its Board of Directors in 73rd meeting held
on September 13,2019.The Plan aims to make the Bank a viable, self-sustaining institution. Important areas of focus
where efforts are continuing and significant progress has been made are:

* Strengthening Bank's Capital -As planned, cash injection, of Rs. | 1.7 billion was made in 2019 and Rs. 3.814 billion
added during 2020 from amalgamation of Sindh Leasing Company Limited in Bank's Tier | Common Equity.
A further amount of Rs. 4 billion has been received from GoS in the last quarter of 2021. Furthermore, in order
to remain capital compliant, the Bank vide Letter No. SNDB/P&CEO/155/2022 dated December 09, 2022 has
approached the Government of Sindh (GoS) with a request for fresh capital injection of Rs. 2 Billion before
December 31,2022 to avoid breach of the regulatory capital requirement. Moreover, the GoS has requested the
State Bank of Pakistan for a deferment on the maintenance of Capital Adequacy Ratio vide letter No. FD (FMH)
294(1)/2019-20/ dated December 30, 2022 for the next few months as well.

* Improving Business Volumes and Profitability-This involves the Bank taking pro-active measures to:

i. Increase fee-based income from mainly trade-related business;

i) Improve Net Interest margin;

a) Mobilize cost effective (CASA) deposits;

b) Launch new asset products in the Consumer and SME segments;

iii. make concerted efforts for recovery and reduction of Non-Performing Loans.
iv. Take cost rationalization measures;

* Strengthening the Bank's Governance, Risk and Control environment.
* The management is confident that barring any unforeseen contingencies, the Bank will be able to stage a turn-
around. The Government of Sindh, Bank's major shareholder holding 99.97 percent of the Bank’s equity is fully

committed to supporting the Bank, whenever required.

Listing of the Bank will be undertaken in future after improvement in Bank's financial position and Regulator's guidance
on the matter.
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2.1

22

23

3.1

32

33

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements
prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) vide BPRD Circular No. 02, dated 25 January 2018.These unconsolidated
financial statements represent separate financial statements of the Bank. The consolidated financial statements of the
bank is being issued separately.

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the Banking system to Islamic
modes, the State Bank of Pakistan has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade-related
modes of financing include purchase of goods by Banks from their customers and immediate resale to them at
appropriate mark-up in price on deferred payment basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements
are not reflected in these unconsolidated financial statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility
actually utilised and the appropriate portion of mark-up thereon. The Islamic Banking branches of the Bank have
complied with the requirements set out under the Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and notified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.

The financial results of the Islamic Banking branches have been consolidated in these unconsolidated financial statements
for reporting purposes, after eliminating material inter-branch transactions / balances. Key financial figures of the Islamic
Banking branches are disclosed in Annexure | to these unconsolidated financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

This Un-consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act 2017,
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
as are notified under the Companies Act 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act 2017
and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). In case requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance
1962, the Companies Act 2017 or the directives issued by SBP and SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or
IFAS, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, Companies Act 2017, and the directives issued
by the SBP and SECP shall prevail.

The SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting
Standard 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (IAS 39) and International Accounting Standard
40, Investment Property (IAS 40) for Banking companies till further instructions. Further, according to the notification
of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) dated April 28, 2008, the IFRS - 7 "Financial Instruments:
Disclosures" has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been
considered in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements. However, investments have been classified
and valued in accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP.

SECP has notified IFAS 3, 'Profit and Loss Sharing on Deposits' issued by the ICAP IFAS 3 shall be followed with
effect from the financial periods beginning on or after Ol January 2014 in respect of accounting for transactions
relating to 'Profit and Loss Sharing on Deposits' as defined by the said standard. The standard had resulted in certain
new disclosures in the financial statements of the Bank. However SBP through BPRD Circular Letter No. 4 dated
25 February 2015, has deferred the applicability of IFAS 3 till further instructions and prescribed the Banks to prepare
their annual and periodical financial statements as per existing prescribed formats issued vide BPRD Circular 02 of
2018, as amended from time to time.

SECP vide its SRO 56(1) 2016 dated January 28, 2016, has notified that requirements of IFRS 10 and section 228
of Companies Act 2017 will not be applicable with respect to investment in mutual funds established under trust
structure.




3.4 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published accounting standards that are effective in the

3.5

3.6

current year.

There are certain new and amended standards, issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), interpretations
and amendments that are mandatory for the Bank's accounting periods beginning on or after January Ol, 2022 but
are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Bank's operations and therefore not
detailed in these unconsolidated financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are relevant but
not yet effective:

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard amendments,

or interpretation and are not early adopted by the Bank:

Effective date (annual

Standard or Interpretation or Amendments periods beginning on or after)
Narrow scope amendments to IAS I, Practice statement 2 and IAS 8 January 01,2023
Amendment to IAS |2 - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising January 01,2023

from a single transaction

Amendment to IFRS 16 - Leases on sale and leaseback January 01,2024
Amendment to IAS | - Non current liabilities with covenants January 01,2024

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments has been made applicable in several overseas jurisdictions from January O, 2018 and is progressively
being adopted in others. The requirements of IFRS 9 are incorporated in the banks financial statements for the jurisdictions where
IFRS 9 has been adopted. In terms of SBP's BPRD Circular Letter No. 03 of 2022 dated July 05, 2022 the effective date of
implementation of IFRS 9 is January 01,2024 for banks having assets size of less than Rs. 500 billion as per their Annual Financial
Statements of December 31, 2021. Since Sindh Bank Limited has assets size of less than Rs. 500 billion as at December 31, 202
therefore, the effective date of implementation of IFRS 9 would be January 01,2024

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimates, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that
have the most significant affect on the amounts recognized in the unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:

i) classification and impairment against investments (notes 5.3 and 31);

i) classification of and provision against advances (notes 5.4 and 31);

i) depreciation and amortization / useful lives of operating fixed assets (notes 5.5, | | and 12);
iv) taxation (note 5.8);

v) staff retirement and other benefits (note 5.9);

vi) fair value of derivatives (note 5.17); and

vii) judgements made by management in identification and reporting segment information (note 41).
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4.1
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BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

Accounting convention

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain
investments and commitments in respect of foreign exchange and futures contracts which are measured at fair values
and certain employee benefits and investments which are measured on present value basis.

[tems included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Bank operates. The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which
is the Bank's functional and presentation currency.

Functional & Presentation of Currency

These Un-consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Bank's functional and
presentation currency.

The amount are rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees except as stated otherwise.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year, unless otherwise disclosed or specified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances with other banks in current
and deposit accounts, excluding term deposit with original term of greater than three months.

Lending to / borrowing from Financial Institutions

The Bank enters into transactions of borrowings (repurchase) from and lending (reverse repurchase) to financial
institutions at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are reported as under:

Repurchase / resale agreements
a) Sale of securities under repurchase agreement (repo)

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (repo) remain on the unconsolidated statement of financial position
as investments and the counter party liability is included in borrowings from financial institutions. The difference between
the sale and repurchase price is accrued over the period of the agreement using the effective interest rate method
and recorded as expense.

b) Purchase of securities under resale agreement (reverse repo)

Securities purchased under agreements for resale (reverse repo) are recorded as lendings to financial institutions.
These transactions are accounted for on the settlement date. The difference between the purchase and resale price
is recognized as mark-up return income over the period of the agreement using the effective interest rate method.

Bai Mujjal
In Bai Mujjal, the Bank sells Shariah compliant instruments on credit to other financial institutions. The credit price is

agreed at the time of sale and such proceeds are received at the end of the credit period. The difference between
the sale and the credit price is recognised over the credit period and recorded as income.




5.3

5.3.1

532

Investments

The bank classifies its investments as follows:

a) Held-for-trading
These are securities which are either acquired for generating profit from short-term fluctuations in market prices,
interest rate movements, dealer's margin or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term
profit taking exists.

b) Held-to-maturity

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Bank has the positive intent
and ability to hold till maturity.

c) Available-for-sale

These are investments, other than that in subsidiary which do not fall under the held-for-trading and held-to-
maturity categories.

d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiary is an entity over which the Bank has control. Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Initial measurement

Investments other than those categorized as 'held-for-trading' are initially recognized at fair value and includes
transaction costs associated with the investment. Investments classified as 'held-for-trading' are initially recognized at
fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the unconsolidated profit and loss account.

Subsequent measurement

Held-for-trading

Investments classified as held-for-trading are measured on subsequent reporting dates at fair value. Gain and losses
on remeasurment are included in the profit and loss account.

Held-to-maturity

Investments classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortized cost. Unquoted equity securities are valued at
lower of cost and break-up value. Break-up value of unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the
net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited financial statements. Investments in other
unquoted securities are valued at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Available-for-sale
Quoted securities classified as available-for-sale investments are measured on subsequent reporting dates at fair value.

Any surplus / deficit arising thereon is kept in other comprehensive income and taken to the profit and loss account
when actually realised upon disposal or when the investment is considered to be impaired.

Breakup value of unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company
as per the latest available audited financial statements. Investments in other unquoted securities are valued at cost
less impairment losses, if any.

Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are valued at cost less impairment, if any. A reversal of an impairment loss on subsidiaries
is recognized in the profit and loss account as it arises provided the increased carrying value does not exceed cost.
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5.3.3 Impairment

Impairment loss in respect of investments classified as available-for-sale and held-to-maturity is recognized on the basis
of management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in market value of
an equity security is considered as an objective evidence of impairment, significant means 30% decline in market value
as compared to cost, except when uncertain circumstances such as material market volatility, uncertainty and other
market impacting external events, in which cases, a higher percentage is also considered by the management for
determination of what is presumed as significant decline. Provision for diminution in the value of term finance certificates
is made as per the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of impairment
of available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognized directly in the surplus / (deficit) on revaluation
of securities on the unconsolidated statement of financial position below equity is removed there from and recognized
in the unconsolidated profit and loss account. For investments classified as held-to-maturity, the impairment loss is
recognized in the unconsolidated profit and loss account.

5.3.4 Gain or loss on sale of investments is included in the profit and loss account in the year in which they arise.

54

5.5

5.5.1

Advances

Advances are stated net of provisions for non-performing advances. Specific and general provisions are made based
on appraisal of the loan portfolio that takes into account the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the
State Bank of Pakistan. The provisions against non-performing advances are charged to the unconsolidated profit and
loss account. Advances are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery after explicit approval from the
Board of Directors.

ljarah Financing

Applying IFAS-2, assets underlying ljarah have been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any, and are shown under Islamic financing and related assets. Rentals accrued from ljarah financing net of depreciation
charge are taken to the unconsolidated profit and loss account. Depreciation on ljarah assets is charged by applying
the straight line method over the ljarah period which is calculated from the date of delivery of respective assets to
mustajir upto the date of maturity / termination of ljarah agreement.

Diminishing Musharakah

In Musharakah based financing, the Bank enters into Musharakah for financing an agreed share of fixed assets with its
customer and enters into periodic profit payment agreement for the utilization of the Bank's Musharakah share by the
customer: Specific and general provisions are made in accordance with the requirement of prudential regulations and
other directives issued by the SBP and charged to unconsolidated profit and loss account.

Operating fixed assets and depreciation

Property and equipment - owned

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent costs are included in
an asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset as appropriate, only when it is probable that future benefits

associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance expenses are charged to the unconsolidated profit and loss account as and when incurred.
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5.6

Depreciation is charged to the unconsolidated profit and loss account applying the straight line method at the rates
specified in note | | to these unconsolidated financial statements after taking into account residual value, if significant.
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each date of
unconsolidated statement of financial position. Depreciation is charged from the month the assets are available for
use while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off.

Gains or losses on disposal, if any, are recognized in the unconsolidated profit and loss account in the year in which
they arise.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with
specific assets incurred during installation and related advances there against, if any, are carried under this head. These
are transferred to specific assets as and when the assets become available for use.

Leases

The Bank assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Bank as a Lessee

A lessee recognizes a right -of-use asset representing its right of using the underlying asset and a corresponding lease
liability representing its obligations to make lease payments..

Right-of-use (RoU) Assets

The right-of-use assets recognised subsequent to the adoption of 'IFRS-16 Leases' are measured based on the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred.The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the lease term as this
method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use assets
are reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of lease liability.

Lease Liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognises lease liability measured at the present value of the
consideration (lease payments) to be made over the lease term and is adjusted for lease prepayments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, unless it is not readily determinable, in which
case the lessee may use the incremental rate of borrowing. After the commencement date, the carrying amount of
lease

liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

Incremental borrowing rate

Borrowing rate that Bank would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The Bank
estimated the Incremental borrowing rate using observable input such as market interest rates.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation
is charged to the unconsolidated profit and loss account applying the straight line method at the rates specified in
note | I, to these unconsolidated financial statements from the date an intangible asset is available for use. The useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each date of unconsolidated statement of
financial position.
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5.7

5.8
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Impairment

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment of any asset or group of assets. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is
estimated and impairment losses are recognized immediately in the unconsolidated financial statements. The resulting
impairment loss is taken to the unconsolidated profit and loss account.

Taxation

Taxation (Income tax) expense relates to current and prior years and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized
in the unconsolidated profit and loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current

Provision for current tax is the tax payable on the expected taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date and, any adjustment to tax payable relating to prior years, after taking
into consideration available tax credits, rebates, tax losses etc.

b) Prior Year

This charge includes tax charge for prior years arising from assessments, changes in estimates and tax changes
applied retrospectively.

c) Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applicable to the temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences and carried forward unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carried forward unused
tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Staff retirement and other benefits

a) Defined contribution plan
The Bank operates a recognised funded contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees to which equal
contributions at the rate of 10 percent (2020: 10 percent) of basic salary are made by both the Bank and the
employees. The contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

b) Defined benefit plan
The Bank operates recognised funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who complete the prescribed
eligibility period of service. Provision is made annually to meet the cost of such gratuity benefits on the basis of
actuarial recommendations using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

c) Compensated absences

The Bank makes provision in the financial statements for its liabilities towards compensated absences. Liability under
the scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method.




5.10

5.11

5.12

5.12.1

Acceptances

Acceptances comprise of undertakings made by the Bank to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Bank
expects most acceptances to be simultaneously settled with reimbursement from the customers. Acceptances
are accounted for as on-balance sheet transactions and are reported in “other assets” and “other liabilities”
simultaneously.

Provisions against liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each date of unconsolidated statement of financial position and are adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the economic benefit associated with the transaction will flow to the Bank
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Mark-up / return / interest on advances and on investments are recognized on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest rate method except that mark-up / return / interest on non-performing advances and investments
is recognized on receipt basis, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.
Where debt securities are purchased at a premium or discount, such premium or discount is amortised through the
unconsolidated profit and loss account over the remaining period of maturity.

5.12.2 Dividend income from investments is recognized when the Bank's right to receive the dividend is established.

5.12.3 Fees, brokerage and commission on letters of credit / guarantees and from other avenues is accrued and is recognized

on time proportion basis.

5.12.4 Financial advisory fees is recognized when the right to receive the fees is established.

5.12.5 Gain or loss on sale of investments is included in unconsolidated profit and loss account in the year in which they

arise.

5.12.6 Rentals from ljarah is recognized as income over the term of the contract net of depreciation expense.

5.12.7 Profit on Diminishing Musharakah is recognized in unconsolidated profit and loss account on accrual basis.

5.13

5.14

5.15

Borrowings / deposits and their cost

Borrowings / deposits are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowing / deposit costs are recognized as an expense
in the period in which these are incurred using the effective mark-up / interest rate method.

Proposed dividend and transfers between reserves

Dividends and appropriations to reserves, except appropriations which are by law required to be made subsequent
to the date of statement of financial position are considered as non-adjusting events and are recorded in the financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 10, 'Events after the
Balance Sheet Date' in the period in which they are approved / transfers are made.

Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic earnings per share (EPS) which is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
/ period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the unconsolidated profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares, if any..
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5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction
date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Translation gains and losses are included in the unconsolidated profit and
loss account.

Financial instruments

a) Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities carried on the unconsolidated statement of financial position include cash and bank
balances, lendings to financial institutions, investments, advances, certain receivables, bills payable, borrowings from
financial institutions, deposits, subordinated loans and certain payables. The particular recognition methods adopted
for significant financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy notes associated with them.
b) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date at which the derivative contract is
entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair value using appropriate valuation techniques. All derivative financial
instruments are carried as assets where fair value is positive and as liabilities where fair value is negative. Any changes
in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are taken to unconsolidated profit and loss account.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated financial statements
only when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off and the Bank intends to either settle on a net basis, or
to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged either in providing particular products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), and is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

Business segments

a) Corporate Finance

This includes investment banking activities such as mergers and acquisitions, underwriting, privatization, securitization,
Initial Public Offerings (IPOs) and secondary private placements.

b) Trading and sales (Treasury)

This includes fixed income, equity, foreign exchanges, commodities, credit, funding, own position securities, lendings
and repos, brokerage debt and prime brokerage.

c) Retail Banking
This includes mortgage finance and personal loans to individual customers.
d) Commercial banking and others

This includes loans, deposits and other transactions with corporates, small and medium sized customers including
agriculture business.




5.20

5.21

5.22

6.

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Geographical segments
The Bank operates only in Pakistan.
Commitments

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are disclosed in these unconsolidated financial
statements at committed amounts. Contingent liabilities / commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee
denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in Pak Rupee terms at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date
of the unconsolidated statement of financial position.

Provision against off balance sheet obligations

Provision for guarantees, claims and other off balance sheet obligations is made when the Bank has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Charge to unconsolidated profit and loss account is
stated net of expected recoveries.

2022 2021
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Note ----------- (Rupees in '000)-----------
In hand
Local currency 4,593,287 4,293,826
Foreign currency 112,285 175,646
4,705,572 4,469,472
With State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in
Local currency current accounts 6.1 9,015,993 1,738,058
Foreign currency current accounts 6.2 105,966 144,789
Foreign currency deposit accounts
- Non Remunerative 6.3 104,727 96,290
- Remunerative 64 205,270 178410
9,431,956 12,157,547
With National Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current accounts 22,429 2,657 534
Local currency deposit accounts 6.5 5 15,866
22,434 2,673,400
Prize bonds 8,776 41,514
35 14,168,738 19,341,933

This represents cash reserve required to be maintained with SBP as per the requirement of Section 22 of the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962.

This represents US Dollar Settlement Account maintained with SBP.

This represents foreign currency (FCY) cash reserve maintained with SBP to comply with statutory reserve requirement
applicable on Bank's FCY deposits.

This represents foreign currency special cash reserve maintained with SBP. The Bank is entitled to earn profit which
is declared by SBP on a monthly basis. During the period, the SBP has declared 0% to 3.14% profits (2021 : Nil) per

annum.

This includes savings account with National Bank of Pakistan carrying mark-up at 14.50% (2021: 8.25%) per annum.
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7.1

72

8.1

82

Note

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
In current accounts
In savings account 7.1
Outside Pakistan
In current accounts 7.2

35

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

30 30

1,434 1,288
1,464 1,318
1,618,066 1,091,241
1,619,530 1,092,559

This includes savings account with a commercial bank carrying profit at the rate of 14.50% (2021: 8.25%) per annum.

This includes Rs. 678.603 million (2021: Rs. 637.12 million) held in Automated Investment Plans. This balance is
current in nature and in case this goes above a specified amount, the bank is entitled to earn interest from the

correspondent banks at the agreed rates.

2022 2021

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Note (Rupees in '000)
Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse Repo) 82 &85 19,967,424 5,381,208
Musharaka arrangements 8.3 - 700,000

19,967,424 6,081,208
Particulars of lending
In local currency 19,967,424 6,081,208
In foreign currencies - -

19,967,424 6,081,208

This represents resale agreement lending with commercial bank and financial institutions carrying mark-up in the range
of 15.75% to 16.20% (2021 10.50% : 10.70%) per annum maturing up to January 06,2023 (2021 January 07,2022 )




8.4

9.1

Securities held as collateral against Lending to financial institutions

Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds
Total

INVESTMENTS

Investments by type

Note

Available-for-sale securities
Federal Government Securities

Market Treasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Pakistan Investment Bonds - Floater

Government of Pakistan - ljarah Sukuk
Shares

Listed

Unlisted
Non-government debt securities

Sukuk certificates
Mutual funds

Held-to-maturity securities
Federal Government Securities

Market Treasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Bonds
Preference Shares - Unlisted
Non-government debt securities
Term finance certificates - Listed
Term finance certificates - Unlisted

Investment in Subsidiary
Fully paid ordinary shares
Total Investments

9.3

2022 2021
Held by F}thher Total Held by F.urther Total
Bank given as Bank given as
collateral collateral
(Rupees in '000)
18,016,775 - 18,016,775 992,564 - 992,564
1,975,600 - 1,975,600 4,398,648 - 4,398,648
19,992,375 - 19,992,375 5391212 - 5391212
2022 2021
Cost./ Provision Surplus /  Carrying Cost./ Provision Surplus/  Carrying
Amortised for . Amortised for ‘
T (Deficit) Value R (Deficit) Value
cost diminution cost diminution
(Rupees in '000)
64,108,973 - (180,402) || 63,928,571 || 42,881,078 - (64239) || 42,816,839
17,616,725 - (1,265,020) || 16,351,705 || 17815867 - (1,495,398) || 16,320,469
125,882,687 (167,136) |125,715,551 || 93,251,484 - (204,160) || 93,047,324
4,000,008 - (14,598)|| 3,985,410| 3000017 - (10927) || 2989,090
2,785,332|| (342,757)|| (373,481)|| 2,069,094 | 2596504| (344,000) (93/489) || 2,159,015
215,049]| (42,806) 19,492 191,735 215,049 (35,063) 29,450 209,436
214,608,774  (385,563) (1,981,145) 212,242,066 159,759999  (379,063) (1,838,763) 157,542,173
29,623,413 - - 29,623,413 -
11,343,755 - - 11,343,755 || 16,744421 - - 16,744,421
77,708||  (77,708) - - 77,708 (77,708) -
224,235 - - 224,235 224235 - - 224235
858,949]| (489,641) - 369,308 858997 | (416,445) - 442,552
42,128,060  (567,349) - 41,560,711 17905361  (494,153) 17411208
750,000 - - 750,000 750,000 - 750,000
257,486,834 _ (952,912) (1,981,145) 254,552,777 178415360 _ (873216) (1,838,763) 17570338




9.2

9.3

Investments by segments

2022 2021
COSt. / Provision Surplus /' Carrying COSt. / Provision Surplus / Carrying
Amortised for . Amortised for .
N (Deficit) Value S (Deficit) Value
cost diminution cost diminution
.......................... (Rupees in '000)
Federal Government Securities
Market Treasury Bills 93,732,386 - (180,402)|| 93,551,984|| 42,881,078 - (64,239)|| 42,816,839
Pakistan Investment Bonds 154,843,167 - (1,432,155) || 153,411,012| 127,811,772 - (1,699,558)|| 126,112,214
Government of Pakistan - ljarah Sukuk | 4,000,008 - (14,598) 3,985,410 3,000,017 - (10927)]| 2,989,090
252,575,561 - (1,627,155) 250,948,406 173,692,867 - (1,774724) 171,918,143
Shares
Listed companies 2,785,332 (342,757) (373,481)|| 2,069,094 2,596,504 (344,000) (93,489)|| 2,159,015
Unlisted companies 77,708 (77,708) - - 77,708 (77,708) - -
2,863,040 (420,465) (373,481) 2,069,094 2,674,212 (421,708) (93489) 2,159,015
Non-government debt securities
Term finance certificates - listed 224,235 - - 224,235 224,235 - - 2247235
Term finance certificates - unlisted 858,949 (489,641) - 369,308 858,997 (416,445) - 442,552
1,083,184 (489,641) - 593,543 1,083,232 (416,445) - 666,787
Mutual Funds
Open ended 116,049 (42,806) (4,269) 68,974 | 16,049 (35,063) 19010 99,996
Islamic funds - REIT 99,000 - 23,760 122,760 99,000 - 10,440 109,440
215,049 (42,806) 19,491 191,734 215,049 (35,063) 29,450 209,436
Investment in Subsidiary
Sindh Microfinance Bank Ltd 750,000 - - 750,000 750,000 - - 750,000
Total Investments 257,486,834 (952,912)  (1,981,145) 254,552,777 178415360 (873216) (1,838,763) 175,703,38
Details of investment in Subsidiary 2022
N £ Enti Incorporation Incorporation Percentage Total Total Total  Profit after Com -Izc;clensive
ame of Entity date Country  holding (%) Assets  Liabilities Revenue  taxation IEcome
----------------------- Rupees in '000 ------====nnnnmmmmeeeeaen
Sindh Microfinance Bank Ltd 27-03-2015 Pakistan 100% 2,007,714 995,341 469,686 41,409 43,026
2021
! . Total
Incorporation Incorporation Percentage Total Total Total  Profit after Comprehensive
date Country  holding (%) Assets  Liabilities Revenue  taxation Ir?come
Name of Entlt)’ ________________________ Rupees in '000 —-----rmrmmrmmemmemmemaen
Sindh Microfinance Bank Ltd 27-03-2015 Pakistan ~ 100% 2085357 1,116,010 345,467 27,347 26,597




9.4

9.5

9.5.1

9.5.2

Investments given as collateral

Federal government securities
Pakistan Investment Bonds
Market Treasury Bills

Provision for diminution in value of investments

Opening balance
Charge / reversals
Charge for the year
Reversals for the year
Reversal on disposals
Transfers - net
Closing Balance

Particulars of classified debt securities
(Category of classification)

Domestic

Other assets especially mentioned
Substandard

Doubtful

Loss

Total

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

104,589,900 24,987,500
104,589,900 24,987,500
873,216 811,727
80,939 87,342
(1,243) (25,853)
79,696 61,489
952,912 873216
2022 2021
Non Non
performing  Provision performing Provision
investments investments
——————————————————————— Rupees in '000 --------------mmmommmo-
977,614 952912 971,115 873216
977,614 952912 971,115 873216

9.5.2.1 The Bank has availed the benefit of forced sale value of collateral against non-performing investment on the basis
of the instructions of the State Bank of Pakistan. Had the benefit not been taken by the Bank, provision against non-
performing investment would have been higher by Rs. 24.7 million (2021: Rs.97.9 million). The resultant increase in
profit due to FSV benefit taken will not be available for distribution as cash and stock dividend to shareholders.

9.6

Quality of Available for Sale Securities

Particulars regarding quality of Available for Sale (AFS) securities

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed

Pakistan Investment Bonds
Market Treasury Bills
Government of Pakistan - ljarah Sukuk

Shares (Equities)

Listed Companies

Refinery

Fertilizer

Cement

Power Generation & Distribution
Oil & Gas Marketing Companies
Commercial Banks

(Rupees in '000)

143,499,412 11,067,351
64,108,973 42,881,078
4,000,008 3,000,017
211,608,393 156,948,446
7,682 7,682
531,870 628,710
63,745 63,745
364,285 267,863
597,630 499,881
1,220,120 [,128,623
2,785,332 2,596,504
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Other investments (Mutual Funds) (Rupees in 7000)

Listed

AM2+ 99,000 99,000
AA | AA- 28,459 28,459
A+ A- 87,590 87,590

215,049 215,049
214,608,774 159,759,999

Equity Securities
Listed Companies

Pakistan Refinery Limited 7,682 7,682
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 280,283 405,573
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited 186,585 58,136
Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited 65,002 65,002
Thatta Cement Company Limited 63,745 63,745
Nishat Chunian Power Limited 201,358 154,068
Hub Power Company Limited 162,925 [ 13,795
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 164,142 141,307
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 129,401 129,401
Oil & Gas Development Company Limited 119,384 95,715
Pak Petroleum Limited 132,476 95,45 |
Pakistan State Oil Limited 52,228 38,007
Summit Bank Limited 305,509 305,509
National Bank of Pakistan 233,102 315,716
Bank AlHabib Limited 39,007 39,768
Meezan Bank Ltd 85,390 -

Habib Bank Limited 205,598 87,726
United Bank Limited 80,853 70,724
MCB Bank Limited 207,721 243315
Silk Bank Limited 62,941 65,864

2,785,332 2,596,504




9.7

9.7.1

9.8

Particulars relating to Held to Maturity securities
Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed

Pakistan Investment Bonds
Market Treasury Bills

Preference Shares - Unlisted Company
Al-Arabia Sugar Mills Ltd

Non Government Debt Securities

Listed
Unrated

Un-listed
AA
BBB+
Unrated

(Rupees in '000)

11,343,755 16,744,421
29,623413 -
40,967,168 16,744,421
77,708 77,708
224,235 224,235
119,785 119,832
224,820 224,821
514,344 514,344
858,949 858,997
42,128,060 17,905,361

The market value of securities classified as held-to-maturity as at December 31, 2022 amounted to Rs. 40,242.39

million (December 31,2021:Rs.18,251.87 million).

the Bank has requested the SBP to allow reclassification of PIB's from AFS to HTM category on book value.
Reclassification request did not acceded, however SBP allowed Sindh Bank to stagger its mark to market losses of
PIB AFS portfolio on quarterly basis @ 25% starting from September 30, 2022 and to completed by June 30, 2023.

ADVANCES
Performing Non Performing Total
Note 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Rupees in '000
Loans, cash credits, agriculture,
running finances etc. 28,762,623 || 24,750,510 134,531,096 || 37,064,642 163,293,719 || 61,815,152
Commodity finance 02| 5,205,042|| 819536l - - 5,205,042 || 8,195361
Net investment in finance lease 0.3 538,713 [,084,150 420,881 321,528 959,594 1,405,678
Islamic financing and related assets
Diminishing musharakah financing 104 | 1,021,768|| 1,191,226 11,898 14,1271 1,033,666 1,205,353
ljarah financing under IFAS 2 10.5 11,371 23,159 - - 11,371 23,159
35,539,517 35244406 34,963,875 37400297 70,503,392 72,644,703
Bills discounted and purchased
(excluding market treasury bills)
Payable in Pakistan 386,782 375,343 - - 386,782 375,343
Payable outside Pakistan 5,738 - 3,405 3,405 9,143 3,405
392,520 375,343 3,405 3,405 395,925 378,748
Advances - gross [0.I' 35,932,037 35619749 34,967,280 37,403,702 70,899,317 73,02345I
Provision for non-performing advances
- Specific provision - - 1]26,186,673 || 24,339,746 126,186,673 | | 24,339,746
- Specific provision on Leasing Portfolio - - 903,104 896,640 903,104 896,640
- General provision against consumer
and small enterprise advances 7,212 2,903 - - 7,212 2,903
7,212 2903 27,089,777 257236386 27,096,989 257239289
Advances - Net of Provision 35,924,825 35616846 7,877,503 12,167,316 43,802,328 47,784,162
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2022 2021

(Rupees in '000)

10.1  Particulars of advances (Gross)
In local currency 70,899,317 73,023,451
In foreign currencies - -
70,899,317 73,023,451
10.2  This represents commodity financing provided to Food Department, Government of Sindh, in syndication with
other commercial banks.
10.3  Net investment in finance lease
2022 2021
Not later than Over one year Over five Not later than Over one year Over five
and up to five Total and up to five Total
one year years one year years
years years
Rupees in '000
Lease rental 326,395 538,791 - 865,186 527,296 677,997 - 1,205,293
Residual value 217,996 19,886 - 237,882 84,187 278,181 - 362,368
Minimum lease payments 544,391 558,677 - 1,103,068 611,483 956,178 - 1,567,661
Un-earned income for
future periods (114,407) (29,067) - (143,474) (80,310) (81,673) - (161983)
Present value of minimum
lease payments 429,984 529,610 - 959,594 531,173 874,505 - 1,405,678
10.3.1 This represents portfolio taken on the books of the Bank due to amalgamation of the Company
10.4  Diminishing musharakah financing 2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)
Advance against musharakah 8,526 [,.816
Diminishing musharakah 1,025,140 1,203,537
1,033,666 1,205,353
10.5 ljarah financing under IFAS 2
Net book value of assets 10.5.1 11,371 23,159
Advance against ljarah financing - -
11,371 23,159
10.5.1 Particulars of assets under ljarah
2022
Cost Accumulated depreciation
As at Additions/ As at As at Charge/ As at Book value deR:::i:tfi'on
January 01 Settled December 31 January 01 settled December 31 As at P o
(Rupees in '000)
Vehicle 37,866 (21,642) 16,224 28,341 (14,322) 14,019 2,205 Over the
Plant and machinery 28,000 - 28,000 14,366 4,468 18,834 9,166 period
Total 65,866 (21,642) 44,224 42,707 (9,854) 32,853 11,371
2021
Cost Accumulated depreciation
As at Additions/ As at As at Charge/ As at Book value deRf:i;[ifon
January O Settled December 31 January Ol settled December 31 As at P %
()
(Rupees in '000)
Vehicle 42,595 (4,729) 37,866 24,009 4,332 28,341 9,525 Over the ljarah
Plant and machinery 48,000 (20,000) 28,000 28,584 (14218) 14,366 13,634 period
Total 90,595 (24,729) 65,866 52,593 (9,886) 42,707 23,159




10.5.2

10.6

10.6.1

10.6.2

10.6.3

10.6.3.1

Future ljarah payments receivable

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than one year

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

11,371 8,586
- 14,573
11,371 23,159

Advances include Rs.34,967.28 (2021: Rs. 37,403.70) million which have been placed under non-performing status
as detailed below:

2022 2021

Non Non
Category of Classification Performing Provision Performing Provision

Loans Loans
Domestic (Rupees in '000)
Other Assets Especially Mentioned 10.6.1 26,794 - 27,270 -
Substandard 10,979 36 20,125 1,625
Doubtful 198,971 23,739 888,099 296,028
Loss 34,730,536 27,066,002 36,468,208 24,938,733
Total 34,967,280 27,089,777 37,403,702 25,236,386

This represents non-performing portfolio of agricultural and small and medium enterprise financing classified as
OAEM as per the requirements of the Prudential Regulations for Agricultural and Small and Medium Enterprise
Financing issued by the State Bank of Pakistan.

The Bank has availed the benefit of forced sale value on plant and machinery under charge and mortgaged residential
and commercial property (land and building only) held as collateral against non-performing advances on the basis
of the instructions of the State Bank of Pakistan. Had the benefit not been taken by the Bank, specific provision
against non-performing advances would have been higher by Rs.7,742.44 (2021: Rs.1 1,680.22 ) million. The resultant
increase in profit due to FSV benefit taken will not be available for distribution as cash and stock dividend to
shareholders.

Particulars of provision against advances

2022 2021
Specific General Total Specific General Total
(Rupees in '000)
Opening balance 25,236,386 2,903 25,239,289 19,500,410 2,208 19,502,618
Exchange adjustments - - - - - -
Charge for the year 2,718,477 4,309 || 2,722,786 || 5976,561 695 || 5977256
Reversals (860,608) - (860,608) || (334,983) - (334,983)
1,857,869 4309 1,862,178 5641578 695 5,642,273
Amounts (reversal)/charged off -
agriculture loans (4,478) - (4,478) 93,301 - 93,301
Net charge during the year 1,853,391 4,309 1,857,700 5734879 695 5735574
Fair value adjustment on net assets of
Sindh Leasing Co. Ltd - - - 1,097 - 1,097
Closing balance 27,089,777 7,212 27,096,989 25,236,386 2903 257239289
Particulars of provision against advances
2022 2021
Specific General Total Specific General Total
(Rupees in '000)
In local currency 27,089,777 7,212/|27,096,98925,236,386 2,903/|25,239,289
In foreign currencies - - - - - -
27,089,777 7,212 27,096,989 25,236,386 2903 257239289




SlNDHﬁANK
A1)

Powm To Ths Peoes =% ®

10.6.3.2 General provision against consumer loans represents provision maintained at an amount equal to 1% (2021: 1%)
of the fully secured performing portfolio and 4% (2021:4%) of the unsecured performing portfolio as required by
the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP. General provision against Small Enterprises financing represents provision
maintained at an amount equal to 0% (2021: 0%) of the fully secured performing portfolio and 1% of the unsecured
performing portfolio as required by the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP

I FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress
Property and equipment
Right of use assets

Capital work-in-progress
Civil works

Equipment

Advances to suppliers

I1.1.I ' Movement in Capital work-in-progress

Opening balance
Transfer in
Transfer out
Closing balance

1.2 Property and Equipment

At January 1,2022
Cost / Revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended December 31,2022

Opening net book value

Additions

Movement in surplus on assets revalued
during the year

Acquisitions through business combinations

Impairment loss recognised in the
profit and loss account - net

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Exchange rate adjustments

Other adjustments / transfers

Closing net book value

At December 31, 2022
Cost / Revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Rate of depreciation (percentage)

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)

1.1 26,725 73,166

1.2 1,312,351 1,264,760

1.5 2,693,446 1,809,671

4,032,522 3,147,597

4,325 4,396

2,041 1,541

20,359 67,229

[0 26,725 73,166

73,166 24,900

211,216 153,701
(257,657) (105,/435)

26,725 73,166

2022
. Computer and
. Lease hold Furniture office Vehicles Total
improvements and fixture .
equipment
------------------ (Rupees in '000) -----------------
1,324,292 562,730 1,721,214 384,506 3,992,742
512,163 444,605 1,526,022 245,192 2,727,982
812,129 118,125 195,192 139,314 1,264,760
812,129 118,125 195,192 139,314 1,264,760
66,740 6,593 84,200 178,107 335,640
711) (10) (24) 617) (1,362)
(67,000) (41,337) (101,392) (76,958)  (286,687)
811,158 83,371 177,976 239,846 1,312,351
1,389,947 569,082 1,791,443 504,654 4,255,126
578,789 485,711 1,613,467 264,808 2,942,775
811,158 83,371 177,976 239,846 1,312,351
5.00% 10.00% 33.33% & 20.0% 20.00%




1.3

At January I, 2021

Cost / Revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended December 31,202 |
Opening net book value
Additions
Movement in surplus on assets revalued
during the year
Acquisitions through business combinations
Impairment loss recognised in the
profit and loss account - net
Disposals
Depreciation charge
Exchange rate adjustments
Other adjustments / transfers
Closing net book value

At December 31,2021
Cost / Revalued amount
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Rate of depreciation (percentage)

2021

. Computer and
~ Lease hold Furniture office Vehicles Total
improvements  and fixture .
equipment
—————————————————— (Rupees in '000) ----------m--m---

1,313,615 558,926 1,673,221 383290 3,929,052
440,384 392,386 1,429,524 245,937 2,508,231
873,231 166,540 243,697 137,353 1,420,821
873,231 166,540 243,697 137,353 1,420,821

1,377 4,394 57,427 58,228 131,426
(392) 27) (147) 31) (597)
(65,790) (52,782) (105,783) (56,229) (280,584)
(6,297) - (2) ) (6,306)
812,129 118,125 195,192 139,314 1,264,760

1,324,292 562,730 1,721,214 384,506 3,992,742
512,163 444,605 1,526,022 245,192 2,727982
812,129 118,125 195,192 139,314 1,264,760

5.00% 10.00% 3333% &20.0% 20.00%

The cost of fully depreciated furniture and fixture, office and computer equipment still in use amounted to Rs.1,743.80

million (2021: Rs.1,473.56 million).
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11.4 Disposal

Description

Computers & Office Equipment

[tems with WDV of below Rs. 250,000/-

and cost of less than Rs. 1,000,000/-
Motor Vehicles

Toyota Corolla XL
......... do.viiiiiiii,

Honda Civic
Suzuki Cultus

......... doiiii,

[tems with WDV of below Rs. 250,000/-
and cost of less than Rs. ,000,000/-

Cost Net Book Sale Mode Of Particular of The
Value Proceeds Disposal Purchaser
-------------------- (Rupees in '000)--=--=-=nmneumuunun

15,297 746 1,922 Negotiation Various
1,538 - 1,678 Tender Abdul Razzaq
| 664 - - As Per HR Policy  Ishfaque Ahmed Soomro
| 644 - - As Per HR Policy  Riaz Ahmed
2,588 - - As Per HR Policy  Syed Nadeem Altaf
1,129 - - As Per HR Policy  Tarig Mahmood
[124 - - As Per HR Policy  Syed Akram Hussain Zaidi
1,129 - - As Per HR Policy  Mubasharuddin Khan
1,250 - - As Per HR Policy  Rana Liaquat Ali Khan
1,300 152 152 As Per HR Policy  Syed Sohail Abbas Zaidi
1,250 - - As Per HR Policy  Shoaib Naseem Khan
1,250 - - As Per HR Policy  Zahid Mahmood
1,129 - - As Per HR Policy  Hag Nawaz
1,129 - - As Per HR Policy  Beverly D'Souza
1,099 - - As Per HR Policy ~ Arshad Abbas Soomro
1,010 - - As Per HR Policy  Saima Aziz
[,250 - - As Per HR Policy  Muhammad Saleem
1,250 - - As Per HR Policy  Arsalan Sattar
[ 144 153 172 As Per HR Policy  Muhammad Yousif Kurio
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Syed Armaghan Al
[,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Nizar Ali Tharani
[,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Badruddin Alam
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Ghulam Mustafa Shaikh
1,014 - - As Per HR Policy  Karam Hussain Mallah
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Noor Mustafa Barohi
[,104 184 184 As Per HR Policy  Wajid Ali
1,014 - - As Per HR Policy  Khushhal
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Zeeshan Mirza
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Omar Wagar
[,014 - - As Per HR Policy  Muhammad Avrif Ashraf
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Zeeshan Zulfigar
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Shakeel Ahmed
[,014 - - As Per HR Policy  Intikhab Ashraf
[,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Bu Ali Khan
1,034 - - As Per HR Policy  Imran Khalid
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Mohsin Ali Rahu
1,009 - - As Per HR Policy  Muhammad Awais Baig
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Syed Yasir Abbas
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Naveed Hussain
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Adnan Alam
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Sufia Laghari
[,104 129 [29 As Per HR Policy  Khush Muhammad Ansari
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Syed Ahsan Al
[,264 - 757 Tender Various
7,648 - - As Per HR Policy  Various

57,959 617 3,071

73,256 1,363 4,993




1.5 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Year ended December 31
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge
Closing net book value
At December 31

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Rate of depreciation (percentage)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Software

At January |

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

Year ended December 31

Opening net book value

Additions:

- directly purchased

Disposals

Amortisation charge

Other adjustments

Closing net book value

At December 31

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

Rate of amortisation (percentage)

Useful life

2022

2021

Rupees in '000

1,809,671 1,819,646
1,539,139 659,812
(655,364) (669,787)
2,693,446 1,809,67 |
4,875,656 3,840,056
(2,182,210) (2,030,385)
2,693,446 1,809,671

10% to 100%

10% to 100%

373,835 292,861
259,561 224,476
114,274 68,385
114,274 68,385
38,217 80,974
(35,220) (35,085)
117,271 [ 14,274
412,051 373,835
294,780 259,561
117,271 | 14,274
20% 20%
5 years 5 years

2.1 The cost of fully amortised software still in use amounted to Rs.227.226 million (2021: Rs. 188.78 million) .
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I3  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS-NET

2022
AtJan I, Recognisedin Recognised iﬁ:;g::z(tji;)nn At Dec 31,
2022 P&L A/C in OCl (SLCL) 2022
(Rupees in '000)
Deductible Temporary Differences on
- Provision against advances - general 8,420,982 687,695 - 9,108,677
- Tax losses carried forward 3,319,583 461,028 2,378 3,782,989
- Provision for diminution in the value
of investments 247,735 || (152,882) - 94,853
- Deficit on revaluation of investments 717,118 - 55,529 772,647
- Others 705,534 279,755 - 985,289
- Others (RoU) - 65,384 - 65,384
13,410,952 1,340,980 57,907 14,809,839
Taxable Temporary Differences on
- Accelerated tax depreciation -
tangible fixed assets (20,465) 16,668 - (3,797)
- Net investment in Lease Finance (131,859) - - (131,859)
- Accelerated tax amortization - intangible assets (6,095) (6,042) - (12,137)
(158,419) 10,626 - (147,793)
13,252,533 1,351,606 57,907 14,662,046
202 |
Atjan I, Recognised in Recognised /iiwc;g;l;zfi;: At Dec 31,
2021 P&L A/C in OCl (SLCL) 2021
(Rupees in '000)
Deductible Temporary Differences on
- Provision against advances - general 6,459,941 [ 961,041 - - 8,420,982
- Tax losses carried forward 3,118,099 201,993 (509) - 3,319,583
- Provision for diminution in the value
of investments 94,853 152,882 - - 247,735
- Deficit on revaluation of investments 261,175 - 455,943 - 717,118
- Others 427,378 278,156 - - 705,534
10,361,446 2,594,072 455,434 - 13,410,952
Taxable Temporary Differences on
- Accelerated tax depreciation -
tangible fixed assets (39,586) 19,121 - - (20,465)
- Net investment in Lease Finance (131,859) - - (131,859)

- Accelerated tax amortization - intangible assets (7,674) 1,579 - - (6,095)
(179,119) 20,700 - - (158419)
10,182,327 2,614,772 455,434 - 13,252,533




13.1

14.1

In this respect, the management of the Bank has prepared projections which have been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Bank. The projections involve certain key assumptions underlying the estimation of future taxable
profits, such as cost to income ratio of the Bank, deposit composition, growth of deposits and advances, investment
returns, expected recoveries of classified advances, etc. The management believes that it is probable that the Bank
will be able to achieve the profits projected in the projections and consequently the deferred tax asset will be fully

realized in the future.

2022 202
Note (Rupees in '000)

OTHER ASSETS
Income/ Mark-up accrued in local currency [4.1 4261,207 3,045,472
Accrued commission income 19,730 7,234
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 182,617 87,898
Receivable against sale of shares 56,982 268,770
Unrealised gain on forward forex revaluation - net - 130,799
Insurance premium receivable against agriculture loans 9,841 12,565
Stationery and stamps on hand 18,966 7984
Dividends receivable - -
Receivable against | Link ATM settlement account 305,152 -
Advance Taxation - net 12,912 40,054
Acceptances - -
Insurance claims receivable 3,375 16,252
Other receivables 56,909 53,734

4,927,691 3,670,762
Income/ Mark-up accrued in local currency
On loans and advances 1,629,075 692,013
On investments 2,615,414 2,349,909
Others 16,718 3,550

4,261,207 3,045,472
BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakistan 726,148 624,726
Outside Pakistan - -

726,148 624,726
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)

16 BORROWINGS
Secured
Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan

- Under export refinance scheme 6.2 1,874,835 [,695919
- Under long term finance facility 6.3 59,879 89819
Repurchase agreement borrowings - Secured
- State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) 164 105,000,000 || 25,000,000
- Other commercial banks / DFl's - -
105,000,000 25,000,000
106,934,714 26,785,738

6.1 Particulars of borrowings with respect to Currencies -

In local currency 106,934,714 26,785,738
In foreign currencies - -
106,934,714 26,785,738

16.2 These represent borrowings from SBP under export refinance scheme at the rates ranging from 8% to 10% (2021:
1.00% to 2.00%) per annum having maturity upto six months.

16.3 These represent borrowings from SBP under long term finance facility at the rate of 3% (2021: 3.00%) per annum
having maturity upto 5 years.

16.4 These represent repurchase agreement borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan at the rates ranging from 15.22% to
16.17% (2021: 10.129%) per annum maturing on February 24, 2023 (2021: February 18, 2022). The carrying value of
securities given as collateral against these borrowings is given in note 9.4.

17  DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2022 2021
(I:n Local In Foreign Total In Local In Foreign Total
urrency currencies Currency  currencies
Rupees in '000
Customers
Current deposits 57,625,016 538,290 || 58,163,306|| 61,100,359 393,151 61,493,510
Savings deposits 98,443,519 || 1,009,539 || 99,453,058 92,336,919 946,331 || 93,283,250
Term deposits 61,811,366 435,818 || 62,247,184 || 58,533,628 411,867/ 58,945,495
Margin and other deposits 480,506 - 480,506 563,852 - 563,852
218,360,407 1,983,647 220,344,054 212,534,758 1,751,349 214,286,107
Financial Institutions
Current deposits 53,242 24 53,266 47,372 19 47,391
Savings deposits 627,586 627,586| 1443864 1,443,864
Term deposits 1,899,000 1,899,000/ 1,711,000 [,711,000
Margin and other deposits 120,044 120,044 120,044 120,044
2,699,872 24 2,699,896 3,322,280 19 3,322,299
221,060,279 1,983,671 223,043,950 215,857,038 1,751,368 217,608,406




17.1

2022 2021

(Rupees in '000)
Composition of deposits

- Individuals 33,292,276  24011,183
- Government (Federal and Provincial) 150,415,341 153,369,167
- Public Sector Entities 3,580,365 2,709,765
- Banking Companies 14,847 8,437
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions 2,685,049 3,313,862
- Private Sector 33,056,072 34,195,992

223,043,950 217,608,406

172 The SBP has set up a fully owned subsidiary — Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC), with an aim to provide

18.1

protection to small depositors of banks operating in Pakistan. The Corporation has been set up through promulgation
of the Deposit Protection Corporation Act, 2016, (the Act) and commenced its business with effect from Ol June
2018. Membership of the Deposit Protection Corporation is compulsory for all banks scheduled under sub-section
(2) of section 37 of the State Bank of Pakistan Act, 1956. Under the arrangement, the objective of DPC would be
to protect the depositors to the extent of the guaranteed amount, in case a member bank is notified as a failed
institution by SBP.

The framework provided by DPC lays down the methodology for arriving at Eligible Deposits, as well as determining
the premium amount payable under the regulations. The premium amount so determined are required to be deposited
by all banks with DPC on a quarterly basis.

As at 3| December 2022, the deposits eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements amounted to Rs. 39,403.1 |
million (2021: Rs. 32,255.45 million) and premium paid amounted to Rs.51.61 million (2021 : Rs. 46.01 million).

2022 2021

OTHER LIABILITIES (Rupees in 000)
Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency 4,740,408 3,032,140
Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currency 3,485 2,947
Accrued expenses 281,813 [ 24,448
Net defined benefit liability 104,688 93,779
Provision for compensated absences 250,602 224,032
Payable against | Link ATM settlement account - 47,032
Payable against purchase of operating fixed assets 44,089 13,660
Payable against purchase of shares 309,248 205,890
Retention money 56,547 60,701
Federal excise duty / sales tax on services payable 1,835 6,185
Lease liability 18.1 2,861,097 2,073,301
Withholding tax payable 20,919 36,542
Forex fwd Reval Impact 692,112 -
Acceptances - -
Security deposit against leases 182 237,882 362,368
Others 389,831 259232

9,994,556 6,542,257
Lease liability
Opening balance 2,073,301 2,119,589
Impact of adoption of IFRS 16 - -
Additions / renewals 1,539,139 659812
Borrowing cost 221,035 227,250
Payments (972,378) (933,350)
Closing balance 2,861,097 2,073,301
Current lease liability 865,906 885,940
Non current lease liability 1,995,191 [,187,361

2,861,097 2,073,301
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18.2

19.1

19.2

19.3

20

21

21.1

22

These represent interest free security deposits received from lessees against lease contracts of Sindh Leasing Company
Limited was amalgamated into the Bank, and are adjustable against residual value of leased assets at the expiry of
the respective lease terms.

SHARE CAPITAL - NET

Authorised capital

2022 2021 2022 2021
Number of shares (Rupees in '000)
3,000,000,000 2,800,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.|0 each 30,000,000 28,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Fully paid in cash:

2,552,442,817 1,971,013,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.|0 each 25,524,428 19,710,130
400,000,000 200,000,000 Right shares of Rs.10 each issued during the year 4,000,000 2,000,000

- 381,429,817  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 issued as consideration of amalgamation - 3,814,298
2,952,442,817 2,552,442,817 29,524,428 25,524,428

The Government of Sindh, through its Finance Department, owns 99.97% ordinary shares of the Bank.

2022 2021

SHARES DEPOSIT MONEY Note (Rupees in '000)
Opening balance 4,000,000 2,000,000
Shares deposit money 20.1 - 4,000,000
Right shares issued during the year (4,000,000) (2,000,000)

- 4,000,000
PROPOSED ORDINARY SHARES TO BE ISSUED ON
AMALGAMATION
Opening balance - 3,814,298
Shares issued during the year 21.1 - (3,814,298)

As per the Scheme of Amalgamation during the year, the Bank issued 381,429,817 ordinary shares of the Bank to
the sole shareholder (Government of Sindh) of Sindh Leasing Company Limited on the basis of the swap ratio of |
(one) ordinary share of Sindh Bank Limited for every 0.9 176 ordinary shares of Sindh Leasing Company Limited, as
consideration for the merger.

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)

DEFICIT ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Available-for-sale securities

Federal government securities (1,627,156)  (1,774,724)
Fully paid ordinary shares - listed (373,481) (93,489)
Units of mutual funds (units / certificates) 19,492 29,450

(1,981,145)  (1,838,763)
Related deferred taxation 772,645 717,116

(1,208,500)  (I,121,647)
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23.1

232

23.2.1

2322

23.2.2.

233

23.3.1

233.2

23.33

2022 202 |

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS Note (Rupees in '000)
-Guarantees 23.1 4,475,012 4,635,678
-Commitments 23.2 167,300,904 52,600,081

-Other contingent liabilities - -
171,775,916 57,235,759

Guarantees:

Financial guarantees 695,773 1,059,301
Performance guarantees 2,684,368 2,722,244
Other guarantees 1,094,871 854,133

4,475,012 4,635,678

Commitments:
Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions

- letters of credit 549,961 536,689
Commitments in respect of:

- forward foreign exchange contracts 23.2.1 32,362,486 12,941,129
- forward lending, borrowings and credits 2322 134,388,457 39,122,263
Other commitments

167,300,904 52,600,08 |

Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts

Purchase 16,669,577 6,740,279
Sale 15,692,909 6,200,850
32,362,486 12,941,129

Commitments in respect of forward lending, borrowings and credits

Forward repurchase agreement borrowing 106,368,612 25,103,970
Forward resale agreement lending 19,984,859 5,382,772
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and

other commitments to lend 23.2.2.1 8,034,986 8,635,521

134,388,457 39,122,263

| Commitments to extend credit

The Bank enters into commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but these are revocable
commitments that do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn.

Contingencies

The Income Tax returns of the Bank have been filed up to the tax year 2022 (accounting year ended December
31,2021) and amendment of deemed assessment were carried out till tax year 2020, whereby certain disallowances
to the taxable income were made.

Appeals against amended orders were filed before Commissioner Inland Revenue Authority (CIRA), these appeals
decided in bank’s favor and thereby deleted the impugned demands.

With respect to Bank's operations in Azad Jammu & Kashmir (AJK), bank has filed income tax returns upto tax
year 2022 (accounting year ended December 31, 2021) with the tax authorities of AJK. The Commissioner has
issued amended assessment orders upto tax year 2019.The Bank has filed appeals which are pending at CIRA.

Government of Sindh through the Sindh WWF Act, 2014, has introduced levy of SWWF As per Sindh WWF Act,
2014, banks / Financial institutions are included in definition of “Industrial Establishment" Sindh WWEF is imposed
at the rate of 2% to the total income. Since the Bank is trans provincial entity and the operations of the Bank in
also in other Provinces and in Azad Jammu & Kashmir as well, the Bank along with other banks have filed a suit
before Honorable Sindh High Court and challenged the vires of SWWVF, which is pending for adjudication.
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23.35

23.3.6

24

24.1

25

26

Sindh Leasing Company Limited - Amalgamated

The Income Tax returns of the Ex-Sindh Leasing Company Limited have been filed up to the tax year 2021
(accounting year ended December 31, 2020, interim period). ACIR initiated proceedings under section 122(5A)
of the Ordinance which were finalized through order, increasing taxable income to Rs. 40,242,222 and raising
additional tax demand of Rs. 2,974,421. The tax demand was duly paid under protest.

Appeal was filed before the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIRA) on March 22,2022 which was decided
in Bank's favour and thereby deleting the whole of the impugned tax demand, accordingly, the refund application
filed.

Withholding tax monitoring proceedings of tax year 2015, 2018 and 2019 were initiated under section |76 of the
income tax ordinance, 2001 read with rule 44 of income tax rules, 2002 by tax authorities, however, order not
yet passed.

Significant Matters

Land Acquisition Officer Matiari and Deputy Commissioner Naushero Feroz maintained accounts with two branches
of the bank located at Matiari since October 14,2022 and at Naushero Feroz since December 31,2014 respectively.
The designated district government official(s) have made cash withdrawals to the tune of Rs. 5.7 Billion from the
respective accounts as singly authorized signatory for land acquisition of Sukkur - Hyderabad Motorway (M-6).The
matter is under investigation by the government agencies with simuftaneous recovery of cash in process. The legal
counsel has opined that the Bank has no financial exposure in this matter.

2022 2021
Other Contingent Liabilities (Rupees in '000)
Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 792,500 792,500

These mainly represent counter claims filed by the ex-employees of the Bank for damages purported to be sustained
by them consequent to the termination from the Bank's employment. Based on legal advice, the management is
confident that the matters will be decided in Bank's favour and the possibility of any outcome against the Bank is

remote and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.

2022 2021
MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EARNED Note (Rupees in '000)
On Loans and advances 24.1 5,204,543 4,138,961
On Investments 29,811,880 7,031,925
On Lendings to financial institutions 1,331,571 639,863
On Balances with banks 29,768 15,337

36,377,762 21,826,086

This includes income from Leasing business amounting to Rs.63.85 (2021: | 16.56) million.

MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits 16,357,329 10,342,439
Borrowings 14,482,979 6,352,028
Lease liability against right of use assets 221,035 227,249

31,061,343 16921716

FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees 63,120 46,706
Consumer finance related fees 2,189 [,186
Card related fees (debit cards) 213,977 162,838
Commission on trade 59,043 56,026
Commission on guarantees 51,888 41,787
Credit related fees 17,000 18,779
Commission on remittances including home remittances 20,223 23,772
Others 874 864

428,314 351,958




27

27.1

28

29

GAIN / (LOSS) ON SECURITIES

Realised
Unrealised - held for trading

Realised (loss) / gain on:

Federal Government Securities
Shares of listed companies
Mutual Funds

OTHER INCOME

Incidental charges

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets
Rent on premises shared

Prequalification application fee for tender
Godown charges

OPERATING EXPENSES
Total compensation expense

Property expense

Rent & taxes

Insurance

Utilities cost

Security

Repairs & maintenance
Depreciation

Depreciation - right of use assets

Information technology expenses
Software maintenance

Hardware maintenance
Depreciation

Amortisation

Network charges

Others

Other operating expenses

Directors' fees and allowances

Fees and allowances to Shariah Board
Legal & professional charges
Travelling & conveyance

NIFT clearing charges

Training & development

Postage & courier charges
Communication

Stationery & printing

Note

27.1

292

2022

202 |

(Rupees in '000)

(157,712) (6,435)
(157,712) (6,435)
(22,658) 45,857
(135,054) (52292)
(157,712) (6,435)
2,529 799
3,630 284
1,130 1,140
26 23
250 275
7,565 2,521
3,565,869 2908642
32,373 19,870
54,990 36,573
401,268 270271
402,784 342,836
25,455 22,898
67,000 65,790
655,364 669,787
1,639,234 1428025
125,744 67,544
86,167 71515
18,726 23,420
35,219 35,085
14,700 11,088
45,935 46,877
326,491 255,529
17,900 10975
4018 4354
28,357 57,061
43,591 35,766
31,764 24,732
2,032 971
25,814 24,640
125,507 120216
107,644 87,935
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29.2

29.3
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30

Marketing, advertisement & publicity
Donations

Auditor's Remuneration

Repairs & maintenance

Brokerage and commission
Entertainment Expenses

Fees and subscription

Insurance expenses

Premium of deposit protection fund
Depreciation

Others

Note

29.3
294

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

56,558 44,607
50,003 -
12,755 12,410
126,805 106,782
9,280 12,239
62,650 54,374
68,817 59,776
13,675 9,938
51,609 46,007
200,961 191,374
155,082 158,040
1,194,822 1,062,197
6,726,416 5,654,393

Total cost for the year included in other operating expenses relating to Janitorial outsourced activities is Rs. 12528
million (2021: 106.81 million). These expenses represent payments made to companies incorporated in Pakistan.

Total compensation expense

Managerial Remuneration

- Fixed

- Variable Cash Bonus / Awards
Charge for defined benefit plan
Contribution to defined contribution plan
Rent & house maintenance

Utilities

Medical

Conveyance

Employee old age benefits contribution
Leave Fare Assistance Allowances
Leave Encashment

Staff Insurances

Others

Details of donations

Distribution of tents amounting to Rs. 50 mn was provided under Provincial Disaster Management Authority Program

in the province of Sindh
Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Fee for other statutory certifications

Special certifications and sundry advisory services
Out-of-pocket expenses

OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan
Others

2,175,509 1,718,663
12,349 12,664
98,589 95,085

117,742 99,324
602,965 521,898
123,274 105,444
123,350 105,443
114,356 97,701
17,602 14,889
65,868 18,019
40,905 52,693
69,874 65,594
3,486 1,225
3,565,869 2,908,642
50,003 -
10,497 9,998
1,166 LT
549 760
543 541
12,755 12,410
9,793 67,640
9,793 67,640
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32

32.1

33

34

35

PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET
Provision / diminution in value of investments
Provisions against loans & advances

General provision

Net provision during the year

Fixed assets written off

Bad debts written off directly

TAXATION

Current

Prior years

Deferred

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
(Loss) / Profit before tax

Tax on (loss) / income @ 39%

Permanent differences - Minimum Tax

Effect of permanent differences

BASIC EARNINGS/ (LOSS) PER SHARE
Loss for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Basic loss per share

DILUTED EARNINGS/ (LOSS) PER SHARE

Loss for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares)

Diluted loss per share

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Balance with Treasury Banks
Balance with other banks

Note

9.5.1

10.7.3

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

80,939 87,342
1,853,390|| 5735574
4,309 :
1,857,699 5735574
1,938,638 5822916
468,263 278,155
(1,351,606)  (2,614,772)
(883,343)  (2336617)
(2,269,093)  (6064.101)
(884,946)  (2,364.999)
1,603 28,382
(883,343)  (2336617)
(1,385,750)  (3,727.484)

2,580,935,968 2,509,765,672

(0.54)

(1.49)

(1,385,750)

(3,727,484)

2,580,935,968 2,509,765,672

(0.54) (1.49)
14,168,738 19,341,933

1,619,530 1,092,559
15,788,268  20.434,492
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2022 2021
Note ------mmnemmm- Number -=--=-emmeem-un-
36  STAFF STRENGTH
Permanent 1,894 1,829
Temporary / on contractual basis 98 I5]
Total staff strength 1,992 1,980
36.1 In addition to the above 502 (2021:478) staff from outsourcing services companies were assigned to the Bank.
37  DEFINED BENEFIT AND CONTRIBUTION PLANS
37.1 Defined benefit plan
The Bank operates a recognised gratuity plan for all its permanent and full time employees in the management cadre
who have completed the minimum qualifying period of three years. Contributions are made to the fund in accordance
with the recommendations of an actuary. Employees are entitled to the benefits under the plan which comprise of
the last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service, subject to completion of minimum three years services
with the Bank. The number of employees covered under the schemes are 1,885 (2021: 1785).
37.1.1 Principal actuarial assumptions
The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2022 using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Following are the significant assumptions used in the actuarial valuation:
2022 2021
Note --------mm-- (Percentage) ------------
- Discount rate 14.25% 12.25%
- Expected rate of increase in salaries-short term 10.00% 10.00%
- Expected rate of increase in salaries-long term 13.25% I'1.25%
- Expected return on plan assets 14.25% 12.25%
- Duration (Years) 10.43 10.83
2022 2021
37.1.2 Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability (Rupees in '000)
Present value of defined benefit liability 37.1.5 737,312 611,779
Fair value of plan assets 37.1.6 (632,624) (518,000)
Payable to defined benefit plan 37.1.3 104,688 93,779
37.1.3 Movement in net defined benefit liability
Opening balance 93,779 72,270
Charge to profit and loss during the year 37.14 98,589 95,085
Remeasurement loss recognized in OCl 37.14 6,099 (1,306)
Bank's contribution (93,779) (72,270)

Closing balance 104,688 93,779




2022 2021

37.1.4 Charge for defined benefit plan (Rupees in '000)
In profit and loss
Current service cost 92,845 91,381
Interest cost - net 5,743 3,704
Past service cost - -
Charge for the year 98,588 95,085
In other comprehensive income
Remeasurement (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation (6,877) (8,995)
Remeasurement loss on plan assets 12,976 7,689
6,099 (1,306)
37.1.5 Changes in present value of defined benefit liability
Opening balance 611,779 498,760
Current service cost 92,845 91,381
Interest cost 72,901 50,124
Past service cost - -
Benefits paid (33,336) (19,491
Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation
- Experience assumptions (6,877) (8,995)
Closing balance 737,312 611,779

37.1.6 Fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 518,000 426,490
Expected return on plan assets 67,157 46,420
Bank's contributions 93,779 72,270
Benefits paid (33,336) (19,491)
Actuarial loss on assets - experience assumptions (12,976) (7,689)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 37.1.7 632,624 518,000

37.1.7 Plan assets comprise

Balance held in bank accounts 632,624 518,000

37.1.8 Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)
Discount rate (19 variation) 666,398 550,860
Future salary growth (1% variation) 824,154 686,605
Future mortality (I year variation) 737,637 612,429

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does

provide an approximation of sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
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37.1.9

37.1.10

37.1.11

37.2

38

38.1

The expected gratuity expense for the year commencing January 01,2023 works out to Rs.108.655 million (2022:
Rs. 95.63 million).

Maturity analysis

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation works out to be 10.83 years. Expected benefit
payments for the next five years are:

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
(Rupees in '000)
Expected benefit payments 56,886 44,428 46,486 40,933 61,202

Risks Associated with Defined Benefit Plans
Investment Risks

The risk arises when the actual performance of the investment is lower than expectation. This is managed by
formulating the investment plan in consultation with the trustee and the actuary.

Longevity Risks

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan level
over the entire retiree population.

Salary Increase Risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is higher than what was assumed. Since the benefit
is calculated on the final Salary, the benefit amount increases similarly. The risk is managed by actuarial valuations
and accounting for benefits based on that.

Withdrawal Risk

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can pose a risk to the benefit obligation. The
movement of the liability can go either way.

Defined contribution plan

The Bank operates a recognised provident fund plan for all its permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions
are made, both by the Bank and its employees, to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary of the employees.
The minimum qualifying period of service for the purpose of the Bank's contribution is one year. The contribution
made by the Bank and its employees during the year amounted to Rs.235.48 (2021: Rs.198.65) million. The number
of employees as at December 31,2022 eligible under the plan were 1,835 (2021: 1,829).

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Bank grants compensated absences to all its regular employees as per service rules. Minimum qualifying period
for encashment is three years of service. Regular employees are entitled to 30 days privilege leave for each completed
year of service. Unutilized privilege leave is accumulated upto a maximum of 60 days which would be encashed at
the time of retirement from the regular service of the Bank or severance of service except in case of dismissal.
This is encashable on the basis of last drawn gross salary. The Bank recognises the liability for compensated absences
in respect of employees in the period in which these are earned up to the balance sheet date. The provision of
Rs.250.603 (2021: Rs.224.03) million has been made on the basis of actuarial recommendations.

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)

Movement of compensated absences

Opening balance 224,032 179,686
(Reversal) / Expense for the year 40,906 52,693
Benefit paid during the year (14,335) (8,347)

Closing balance 250,603 224,032




39 COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

39.1 Total Compensation Expense
2022
Directors
. Other
Executives Members . Key oy
Chairman  (other Non.- Shariah President / Management Material Risk
Executives CEO Takers/
than CEO) Board Personnel
Controllers
(Rupees in ' 000")
Fees and Allowances 3,175 - 14,725 2,780 - - -
Managerial Remuneration
- Fixed - - - - 14,545 124,086 80,043
-Variable Cash Bonus / Awards - - - - - 1,000 -
Charge for defined benefit plan - - - - 1,437 9,854 6,228
Contribution to defined contribution plan - - - - 1,455 11,668 7,872
Rent & house maintenance - - - - 6,545 55839 36,019
Utilities - - - - 1,455 12,409 8,004
Medical - - - - 1,455 12,409 8,004
Conveyance - - - 1,340 1,644 26,773 34,575
Bonus - - - - 2,082 19,897 13,286
Others 300 - - - 1,150 16,365 11,326
Total 3,475 - 14,725 4,120 31,768 290,300 205,357
Number of Persons | - 6 2 I 25 36
2021
Directors ot
i ther
- Executives Non- Members President / Key Material Risk
Chairman  (other . Shariah Management
Executives CEO Takers/
than CEO) Board Personnel
Controllers
(Rupees in ' 000"
Fees and Allowances 2,325 - 8,650 3,780 - - -
Managerial Remuneration
- Fixed - - - - 14,545 104,855 67,475
- Variable Cash Bonus / Awards - - - - - 1,330 1,083
Charge for defined benefit plan - - - - 1,403 12,027 5,795
Contribution to defined contribution plan - - - - 1,455 9,336 6,603
Rent & house maintenance - - - - 6545 47,185 30,364
Utilities - - - - 1,455 10,485 6,747
Medical - - - - 1,455 10,485 6,747
Conveyance - - - 574 1,005 19,269 22,469
Bonus - - - - 2,424 16,087 10,086
Others 1,322 - - - 1,518 10,526 8213
Total 3,647 - 8,650 4,354 31,805 241,585 165,582
Number of Persons I - 4 3 I 27 37
39.1.1 The President and Chief Executive Officer and certain executives of the Bank are provided with free use of Bank

maintained cars.
39.1.2 The term "Key Management Personnel" means the following functional responsibilities:

@) Any executive or key executive, acting as second to CEQO, by whatever name called, and including the Chief Operating
Officer (COQ) and Deputy Managing Director.

(b) Any executive or key executive reporting directly to the CEO / President or the person mentioned in (a) above.

The term 'Material Risk Taker' and 'Material Risk Controller' have the same meaning as defined in revised guidelines
on remuneration practice issued by the State Bank of Pakistan vide BPRD circular No. | of 2017.
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39.1.3 The terms Directors/ Executive Directors/ Non-Executive Directors, CEO and Key Executives have same meaning
as defined in Prudential Regulations (PRs) for Corporate and Commercial Banking. For the purpose of these disclosures
Key Executive will also include Executives who have direct reporting line to the President/CEO or BoD or its

Committees.
39.2 Meeting Fees paid to Directors for participation in Board and Committee Meetings
2022
For Board Committee
) Procurement,  Human .
Sr. N . For Board Audit Risk LT. & Resource & Special Asset Nomination Total
No. '~ame of Directors Meetings ~ Committee Management Security  Remuneration Management Committee Amount
g Committee Tty . Committee Paid
- Committee  Committee
(Rupees in ' 000"
I MrAnis Ahmed Khan 1,800 - - 375 200 600 200 3,175
2 Mr Sajid Jamal Abro 1,650 175 575 - 200 600 200 3,400
3 MrAsif Jahangir 2,050 400 200 175 - - - 2,825
4 Mr Javaid Bashir Sheikh 2,050 750 575 - - - - 3,375
5  Mr. Mohammed Aftab Alam 1,450 400 - 375 - 600 200 3,025
6 Mr.Adnan Ali Khan 750 - - 200 200 - - 1,150
7 Mrs.Masooma Hussain 600 350 - - - - - 950
Total Amount Paid 10,350 2,075 1,350 1,125 600 1,800 600 17,900
2021
For Board Committee
s For Board Audi Risk T Resorens Nomint Tota
r - or Boar uart NE esource omination otal
No. Name of Directors Meetings Committee Péanagen&ent Committee  Remuneration ~ Committee ~ Amount Paid
. ommittee Committee
(Rupees in ' 000"
| Mr Javaid Bashir Sheikh 1,550 950 575 - - - - 3,075
2 Mr.Anis Ahmed Khan 1,550 - - 200 575 - - 2,325
3 Mr Sami Ul Hag Khilji 500 - - 200 400 - - [,100
4 Mr Asif Jahangir 1,050 |75 - - 175 - - 1,400
5 Mrs. Masooma Hussain 1,550 950 575 - - - - 3,075
Total Amount Paid 6,200 2,075 [,150 400 [,150 - - 10,975
39.3 Remuneration paid to Shariah Board Members
2022 2021
ltems Chairman Member ':,Efs:: Chairman ~ Member E,le;r'ggg
(Rupees in ' 000"
Managerial Remuneration (Fixed) 1,561 1,517 - 1,836 1,291 653
Fuel Allowances 470 470 - 55 287 132
Total Amount 2,031 1,987 - 1,991 1,578 785

Total Number of Persons

40  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement" defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, is based on quoted market price.
Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficient
reliability due to absence of current and active market for assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates
for similar instruments. The provision for impairment of loans and advances has been calculated in accordance with
the Bank's accounting policy as stated in note 5.17 to these financial statements.

The repricing profile, effective rates and maturity profile are stated in note 44.2.6 to these financial statements.
In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly

different from their carrying values since assets and liabilities are either short term in nature or in the case of customer
loans and deposits are frequently repriced.




40.1 Fair value of financial assets

IFRS I3 requires the Bank to make fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has following levels:

Level I: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3:  Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
402 The table below analyses the financial and non-financial assets carried at fair values, by valuation methods. For financial

assets, the Bank essentially carries its investments in debt and equity securities at fair values.Valuation of investments
is carried out as per guidelines specified by the SBP.

2022
Fair Value
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

On balance sheet financial instruments ~ ___________________ (GO [0) [ ——
Financial assets measured at fair value
Available-for-sale securities
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 142,067,256 - 142,067,256
Market Treasury Bills - 63,928,571 - 63,928,571
Shares of listed companies 2,069,094 - - 2,069,094
Term finance certificates - Listed - - - -
Units of mutual funds 68,975 122,760 - 191,735
ljarah Sukuk - GoP - 3,985,410 - 3,985,410
Sukuk bonds - - - -

2,138,069 210,103,997 - 212,242,066
Off balance sheet financial instruments
Foreign exchange contracts (purchase) - 16,669,577 - 16,669,577
Foreign exchange contracts (sale) - 15,692,909 - 15,692,909

2021
Fair Value
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

Qn ba!ance sheet financial instruments ___________________ TSR 0 0o) P
Financial assets measured at fair value
Available-for-sale securities
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 109,367,793 - 109,367,793
Market Treasury Bills - 42,816,839 - 47.816,839
Shares of listed companies 2,159,015 - - 2,159,015
Term finance certificates - Listed - - - -
Units of mutual funds 99,996 109,440 - 209,436
ljarah Sukuk - GoP - 2,989,090 - 2,989,090
Sukuk bonds - - - -

2259011 155,283,162 - 157,542,173
Off balance sheet financial instruments
Foreign exchange contracts (purchase) - 6,740,279 - 6,740,279

Foreign exchange contracts (sale) - 6,200,850 - 6,200,850
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41
41.1

The valuation techniques used for the above assets are disclosed below:

Item

Valuation techniques and input used

Fully paid-up ordinary shares /close end mutual
funds

Fair value is determined on the basis of closing quoted market
prices available at the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Open ended mutual funds

Fair value is based on redemption prices as at the close of the
business day.

Pakistan Investment Bonds / Market
Treasury Bills

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are
derived using the PKRV rates (Reuters page).

"Government of Pakistan (GoP) - ljarah Sukuks

Fair values derived using the PKISRV rates announced by the
Financial Market Association (FMA) through Reuters.

Term Finance, Bonds and Sukuk certificates

Investments in debt securities (comprising term finance certificates,
bonds, sukuk certificates and any other security issued by a company
or a body corporate for the purpose of raising funds in the form
of redeemable capital) are valued on the basis of the rates
announced by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP)
in accordance with the methodology prescribed by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment Details with respect to Business Activities

Trading and Retail Corporate Com_mercial
salegs banking ﬁngnce banking and Total
others

Profit & Loss (Rupees in '000)
Net mark-up/return/interest income 16,703,966 40,824 - (11,428,371) 5,316,419
Inter segment revenue - net (22,136,445) - - 22,136,445 -
Non mark-up / interest income 606,009 453 - 482,873 1,089,335
Total Income (4,826,470) 41,277 - 11,190,947 6,405,754
Segment direct expenses (101,900) (5,528) - (5,375,967)  (5,483,395)
Inter segment expense allocation (125,281) (30,618) - (1,096,915)  (1,252,814)
Total expenses (227,181) (36,146) - (6,472,882)  (6,736,209)
Provisions (80,939) - - (1,857,699)  (1,938,638)
(Loss) / Profit before tax (5,134,590) 5,131 - 2,860,366 (2,269,093)
Balance Sheet
Cash & Bank balances 9,432,651 - - 6,355,617 15,788,268
Investments 254,552,777 - - - 254,552,777
Net inter segment lending - - - 181,249,550 181,249,550
Lendings to financial institutions 19,967,424 - - - 19,967,424
Advances - performing 47,748 470,947 - 35,406,130 35,924,825

- non-performing - 1,800 - 7,875,703 7,877,503
Others 4,903,213 2,574 - 18,833,743 23,739,530
Total Assets 288,903,813 475,321 - 249,720,743 539,099,877
Borrowings 105,059,879 - - 1,874,835 106,934,714
Subordinated debt - - - - -
Deposits & other accounts - - - 223,043,950 223,043,950
Net inter segment borrowing 180,782,307 467,243 - - 181,249,550
Others 2,440,114 8,078 - 8,272,512 10,720,704
Total liabilities 288,282,300 475,321 - 233,191,297 521,948,918
Equity 621,513 - - 16,529,446 17,150,959
Total Equity & liabilities 288,903,813 475,321 - 249,720,743 539,099,877
Contingencies & Commitments 158,715,957 - - 13,059,959 171,775,916




[

2021
Trading and Retail Corporate ~ commercial
salgs banking ﬂn[a)mce banking and fotal
others

Profit & Loss (Rupees in '000)
Net mark-up/return/interest income [1,358,794 25,334 - (6,479,758) 4,904,370
Inter segment revenue - net (15,927,013) - - 15,927,013 -
Non mark-up / interest income 185,749 591 - 390,138 576,478
Total Income (4,382,470) 25925 - 9,837,393 5,480,848
Segment direct expenses (97,564) (5,318) - (4477571) (4,580,453)
Inter segment expense allocation (114,158) (19,001) - (1,008,421) (1,141,580)
Total expenses (211,722) (24,319) - (5/485992)  (5722,033)
Provisions (87,343) - - (5,/35573) _ (5822916)
(Loss) / Profit before tax (4,681,535) 1,606 - (1,384,172)  (6,064,101)
Balance Sheet
Cash & Bank balances 12,158,168 - - 8,276,324 20,434,492
Investments 175,703,381 - - - 175,703,381
Net inter segment lending - - - 172,676,536 172,676,536
Lendings to financial institutions 6,081,208 - - - 6,081,208
Advances - performing 48,256 194,447 - 35,374,143 35,616,846

- non-performing - 4978 - 12,162,338 12,167,316
Others 4,778,330 8,060 - 15,398,776 20,185,166
Total Assets 198,769,343 207,485 - 243,888,117 442,864,945
Borrowings 25,089,819 - - 1,695919 26,785,738
Subordinated debt - - - - -
Deposits & other accounts - - - 217,608,406 217,608,406
Net inter segment borrowing 172476511 200,025 - - 172,676,536
Others 349,767 7,460 - 6,809,756 7,166,983
Total liabilities 197916097 207,485 - 226,114,081 424,237,663
Equity 853,246 - - 17,774,036 18,627,282
Total Equity & liabilities 198,769,343 207,485 - 243,888,117 442,864,945
Contingencies & Commitments 43,427,871 - - 13,807,888 57,235,759

42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties of the Bank comprise associated undertakings, directors, staff retirement funds and key management
personnel (including their associates).

Transactions with related parties includes deposits, advances and other banking services which are carried out on
an arm's length basis. Transaction with executives and key management persons are undertaken at terms in accordance
with employment agreements and service rules. Contributions to and accruals in respect of staff retirement benefit
plans are made in accordance with the terms of the benefit plan. Remuneration of the President & Chief Executive
Officer and directors are determined in accordance with the terms of their appointment.

Government of Sindh (GoS) through its Finance Department holds 99.96% shareholding in the Bank and therefore
entities which are owned and / or controlled by the GoS, or where the GoS may exercise significant influence, are
related parties of the Bank. The Bank in the ordinary course of business enters into transactions with Government-
related entities. Such transactions include lending to, deposits from and provision of other banking services to such
entities. However, it is impracticable to disclose transactions with all other entities owned or controlled by GoS.

The details of balances and transactions with related parties, other than those disclosed under respective notes,
during the year are as follows:
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Investments

Opening balance
Investment made during
the year

Investment redeemed /
disposed off during the year
Closing balance

Advances

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Repaid during the year
Transfer in / (out) - net
Closing balance

Other Assets
Interest / mark-up accrued
Other receivable

Deposits and other accounts

Opening balance

Received during the year
Withdrawn during the year
Transfer in / (out) - net
Closing balance

Other Liabilities
Interest / mark-up payable

Income

Mark-up / return / interest earned

Fee and commission income
Net gain on sale of securities
Other income

Expense

Mark-up / return / interest paid
Remuneration paid
Contribution to provident fund
Provision for gratuity

Other staff benefits

Directors' meeting fee

Other expenses

Insurance premium paid

Others

Sale of Government Securities

"Purchase of Government
Securities”

Gratuity paid

Leave encashment paid

Insurance claims settled

"Expenses recovered under
agency arrangement”

2022 2021
Key Key
Directors management Subsidiaries Other r‘elated Directors management Subsidiaries Other related
parties parties
personnel personnel
(Rupees in '000")
- - 750,000 - - - 750,000 -
- - 750,000 - - - 750,000 -
- 184,296 - - - 172,054 - -
- 73,125 - - - 20,834 - -
- 104,370 - - - 29,496 - -
- 38,155 - - - 20,904 - -
- 191,206 - - - 184,296 - -
- 233 - - - 158 - _
- - 3 - - - 3 50
- 233 3 - - 158 3 50
767 40,590 39,300 2,138,735 22,930 68,200 77313 2,079,063
20,783 923,785 5,147,175 16,435,032 162,069 433,809 1,320,699 20,942,544
19,132 732,137 5,161,560 16,736,272 184,201 412,641 1,358,712 20,882,872
2,683 71,934 - - 3hH (48,778) - -
5,101 304,172 24915 1,837,495 767 40,590 39,300 2,138,735
21 3,949 400 28,249 22 321 234 16013
2022 2021
Key Key
Directors management Subsidiaries Other related Directors management Subsidiaries Other related
parties parties
personnel personnel
(Rupees in '000")
- 7,067 - - - 7,857 - -
2 27 478 39 3 14 104 36
- - 5 232 - - 6 251
- - - 1,130 - - - [,140
6l 7,820 3,753 200,472 272 2951 1,534 145,250
- 253,087 - - - 214,470 - -
- 12,512 - - - 10,280 - -
- 11,964 - - - 12,729 - -
- 27,569 - - - 23,617 - -
17,900 - - - 10975 - - -
500 - - - 1,322 - - -
- - - 122,889 - - - 123,999
- - 123,035 5,544,300 - - 27,000 3,755,500
- - - - - - - 1,575,000
- - - - - 4,647 - -
- - - - - 2,126 - -
- - - 26,032 - - - 3259
- - - 77 - - - 128
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As at the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position, loans/advances and deposits related to government
related entities and its related entities amounted to Rs. 5,205.04 million (note 10.2) and Rs. 109,724.26 million (note
|'7). The above includes deposits amounting to Rs. 34,3285 (2021: Rs.30,744.37) million received through the Finance

Department, Government of Sindh.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):
Paid-up capital (net of losses)

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):

Eligible Common Equity Tier | (CET 1) Capital
Eligible Additional Tier | (ADT |) Capital
Total Eligible Tier | Capital

Eligible Tier 2 Capital

Total Eligible Capital (Tier | + Tier 2)

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):
Credit Risk

Market Risk

Operational Risk

Total

Common Equity Tier | Capital Adequacy ratio
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio

Notional minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP
CET1 minimum ratio

Tier | minimum ratio

Total capital minimum ratio

Total capital minimum ratio plus CCB

Approach followed for determining Risk VWeighted Assets

Credit Risk
Market Risk
Operational Risk

Leverage Ratio (LR):
Eligible Tier-1 Capital
Total Exposures
Leverage Ratio (%)

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):
Total High Quality Liquid Assets
Total Net Cash Outflow
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%)

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):
Total Available Stable Funding
Total Required Stable Funding
Net Stable Funding Ratio

2022

202

________________ Rupees in '000

16,898,047 14287517
2,288,600 5,689,232
2,288,600 5,689,232
7212 -
2,295,812 5,689,232
26,979,421 29,004,835
6,237,413 ['1,647,751
9,454,405 7,165,969
42,671,239 47,818,555
5.38% [1.90%
5.38% [ 1.90%
5.38% [1.90%
6.00% 6.00%
7.50% 7.50%
10.00% 10.00%
11.50% [1.50%
Comprehensive  Comprehensive

Maturity method Maturity method

Basic Indicator

Basic Indicator

2022 2021

---------------- Rupees in '000 ---------------
2,288,600 5,689,232
338,819,641 267,438,712
0.68% 2.13%
132,719,755 126,415,608
37,666,184 28,640,693
352% 441%
159,888,541 167,053,194
78,670,959 65,172,730
203% 256%
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44.1

44.1.1

The full disclosures on the Capital Adequacy, Leverage Ratio & Liquidity requirements as per SBP instructions issued
from time to time are placed on the Bank's website. The link to the full disclosure is available at
http://www.sindhbankitd.com/financials/basel-statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank’s risk management framework encompasses the culture, processes and structure and is directed towards
the effective management of potential opportunities and threats to the Bank. The prime objective of the Bank's risk
management strategy is to abandon the traditional approach of ‘managing risk by silos’and to put in place integrated
risk and economic capital management capabilities that will enable the Bank to achieve integrated view of risks
across its various business operations and to gain strategic advantage from its risk management capabilities.

The Board of Directors (BOD) keeps an oversight on the Bank-wide risk management framework and approves
the risk management strategy and policies of the Bank. The Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC), ensures
that the Bank maintains a complete and prudent integrated risk management framework at all times and ensures
that the risk exposures are maintained within acceptable levels, BRMC is responsible for reviewing the extent of
design and adequacy of risk management framework. BRMC oversight ensures that risks are managed within the
level of tolerance and risk appetite of the Bank.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability is
impaired resulting in economic loss to the Bank. The objective of credit risk management is to keep credit risk
exposure within permissible level, relevant to the Bank's risk appetite and capital, to maintain the soundness of assets
and to ensure returns commensurate with risk. The Bank takes necessary measures to control such risk by evaluating,
measuring and monitoring credit exposures.

The Bank has a comprehensive pre-approval evaluation process of credit risk embedded within Risk Management
Division. The risk evaluation function is an integral part of Credit Risk Management Framework and is independent
from the risk taking function. The credit evaluation department will independently identify actual and potential risks
both on individual and on portfolio basis including adherence to relevant internal policies, procedures and related
regulatory guidelines.

In addition to monitoring credit limits specified in the Prudential Regulations of the State Bank of Pakistan, the credit
limit structure of the Bank includes internal limits as established by the BOD and senior management. Credit Limits
along with credit concentration is monitored on a regular basis and any exceptions are reported to the relevant
authorities for their timely action where necessary.

The Bank uses comprehensive Approach for assessing the capital charge for Credit risk.

Lendings to financial institutions

Details of Lending to financial institutions and provision held by various sectors are as follows:

P . .
L;?i;sgs Non Performing Lendings rtr)]\;llsc;on
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

(Rupees 000)
Public/ Government -

Private 19,967,424 6,081,208 - - - -
Total 19,967,424 6,081,208 - - - -
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44.1.2.1

44.1.3

Investments

Segmental information by the class / nature of business, distribution and provision held is given below:

Gross Non Performing Provision
Investment Investment held
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
(Rupees 000)
Govt. of Pakistan 252,551,803 173,692,868 - - - -
Banks 2,538,960 2447510 278,701 279,945 278,701 279,945
Cement 63,745 63,745 34,923 34,923 34,923 34,923
Fertilizer 531,870 628,710 22,684 22,684 22,684 22,684
Financial 238,809 215,049 42,806 35063 42,806 35,063
Petroleum 192,385 41,141 6,449 6,449 6,449 6,449
Power (electricity), Gas & Water 777,210 634,286 - - - -
Sugar 592,052 592,051 _ 592,051 592,051 567,350 494,152
Total 257,486,834 178415360 977,614 971,115 952913 873216
Credit risk by public / private sector
Gross Non Performing Provision
Investments Investments held
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Amount Rs. 000

Public/ Government 253,377,525 174,540,528 6,449 6,449 6,449 6,449
Private 4,109,309 3,874,832 971,165 964,666 946,464 866,767
Total 257,486,834 178415360 977,614 971,115 952913 873216
Advances

Segmental information by the class / nature of business and by distribution of advances, Non performing advances &

provision held is given below:

Advances Non Performing Provision
Gross Advances held
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
(Rupees 000)

Pharmaceuticals 268,796 69,822 - - - -
Agriculture business 1,376,383 1,561,830 1,203,409 1,321,325 1,112,904 [,055014
Manufacturing of textile 802,264 814,823 43,863 33,186 33,186 33,186
Cement 64,377 64,377 - - - -
Transport, storage and

communication 57,824 343,550 - - - -
Wholesale and retail trade 1,623,116 1558247 462,575 463,950 350,511 277924
Mining and quarrying 6,782,029 5,075,453 - - - -
Hotel and restaurants 865,234 981,130 - - - -
Petroleum 3,039,883 3213557 2,022,460 2,022,460 2,022,460 2022460
Media channels 2,220,936 1,576,852 - 1,475,685 - 392,830
Manufacture of basic iron and steel 2,256,314 2,187,544 1,756,740 1,756,740 1,642,645 1,532,889
Sugar 20,559,081 20,424,172 17,122,073 17,623,859 12,350,339 12,024,843
Automobile and transportation

equipment 2,446,607 2469659 2,434,209 2434209 2,299,625 [,940,286
Chemicals and chemical products 1,121,652 1,194,117 1,103,884 [,103,884 1,079,225 1,062,925
Financial 1,828,881 1,939927 1,177,884 |,177,884 480,446 447,069
Rice & Wheat 699,487 695,151 - - - -
Construction, real estate and societies 2,959,973 4,024,784 2,556,722 2901,023 1,821,612 1,559,387
Food 5,508,539 8,348,167 152,806 152,806 152,806 147,536
Insurance 1,467 3,254 - - - -
Power, electricity and gas 8,900,159 9462932 2,948,239 3,030,104 2,626,535 2,026,974
Domestic Appliances 1,659,365 1,557,208 - - - -
Education 117,554 18,663 11,898 15,732 11,481 14,419
Individuals 1,897,753 1409410 2,004 6,921 1,702 1,943
Others 3,841,643 4,028822 1,968,514 1883934 1,104,300 696,701
Total 70,899,317 73,023,451 34,967,280 37,403,702 27,089,777 257236,386
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44.1.3.1 Credit risk by public / private sector Advances Non Performing Provision
(Gross) Advances held
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
(Rupees 000)
Public/ Government 5,210,287 8,195,361 - - - -
Private 65,689,030 64,828,090 34,967,280 37,403,702 27,089,777 25,236,386
Total 70,899,317 73023451 34,967,280 37,403,702 27,089,777 25,236,386

44.1.4 Contingencies and Commitments

Segmental information by the class / nature of business and by distribution of Contigencies and Commitments
is given below:

2022 2021

---------------- Rupees in '000 -------------
Chemical and pharmaceuticals 27,730 20,000
Manufacturing of textile 63,926 74,805
Transport, storage and communication 128,900 128,500
Wholesale and retail trade 1,107,525 909,285
Petroleum 116,991 [ 16,991
Manufacture of basic iron and steel 11,543 108,031
Sugar 21,223 33,590
Automobile and transportation equipment 49,802 44,666
Financial 159,565,957 44,274,652
Construction, real estate and societies 289,365 633,753
Domestic Appliances 14,000 366,444
Power, electricity and gas 1,454,425 1,527,171
Education 30,830 3,830
Others 858,713 358,520
Total 163,740,930 48,600,238

44.]1 4.1 Credit risk by public / private sector

Public/ Government 105,000,000 25,000,000
Private 58,740,930 23,600,238
Total 163,740,930 48,600,238

44.1.5 Concentration of Advances

The bank's top 10 exposures (funded and non-funded) aggregated Rs. 28,724.62 million (2021: Rs. 30,297.41 million)

as follows:

Funded 28,670,815 29,800,814
Non Funded 53,801 496,595
Total Exposure 28,724,616 30,297,409

44.1.5.1 The sanctioned limits against these top 10 exposures aggregated Rs. 32,46 1.52million (2021: Rs. 36,612.81 million).




44.].5.2 Total Funded Facilities Classified
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Classified funded facilities of the bank's top 10 exposures are as follows:

2022 2021
Classified Provision held Classified Provision held
Amount Rs. 000
OAEM - - - -
Substandard - - - -
Doubtful - - - -
Loss 10,175,435 7,074,074 10,345,023 7,113,124
Total 10,175,435 7,074,074 10,345,023 7,113,124
Advances - Province/Region-wise Disbursement & Utilization
2022
Name of Province / UTILIZATION ‘
Region
Disbursements KPK inclpﬂﬁn
Punjab Sindh including Balochistan Islamabad Gilei g
FATA lgit-
Baltistan
(Rupees) 000
Punjab 22,827,862 22,827,862 - - - - -
Sindh 34,643,340 - 34,643,340 - - - -
KPK including FATA 246,989 - - 246,989 - - -
Balochistan 1,975,405 - - - 579,775 1,395,629 -
Islamabad 1,112,975 - - - - 1,112,975 -
AJK including Gilgit-
Baltistan 24,007 - - - - - 24,007
Total 60,830,578 22,827,862 34,643,340 246,989 579,775 2,508,604 24,007
2021
Name of Province / UTILIZATION |
Region
Disbursements KPK inc/IAuJ(l;n
Punjab Sindh including Balochistan Islamabad Gilo g
FATA gt
Raltistan
(Rupees) 000
Punjab 20,612,020 20,578,071 32,336 - 613 - -
Sindh 31,655,002 23,097 31,629,596 - 2,309 - -
KPK including FATA I'1,764 - - I'1,764 - - -
Balochistan 642,881 - - - 642,881 - -
Islamabad 873,522 [,881 - - - 871,641 -
AK including Gilgit-
Baltistan 83,790 - - - - - 83,790
Total 53,878,979 20,603,049 31,661,932 11,764 646,803 871,641 83,790
Market risk

Market Risk is the risk of loss in earnings and capital due to adverse changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices and market conditions. Market Risk management aims to provide risk management practices that are
integrated in key strategic, capital and financial planning process and day-to-day business processes across the Bank.
The Banks market risk management policies set out risk management parameters, governance and control framework

as well as reporting arrangements.

The Bank has developed a market risk management framework to efficiently and effectively monitor and manage
market risk in every transaction of Banking and Trading Book.
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44.2.1

442.2

Balance sheet split by trading and banking books

2022 2021
Bankin Tradin Bankin Tradin
book. book: Total book. book- fotal

Cash and balances with (Rupees in ‘000)
treasury banks 14,168,738 - 14,168,738 19,341,933 - 19,341,933
Balances with other banks 1,619,530 - 1,619,530 1,092,559 - 1,092,559
Lendings to financial institutions 19,967,424 - 19,967,424 6,081,208 - 6,081,208
Investments 254,552,777 - 254,552,777 175,703,38| - 175,703,381
Advances 43,802,328 - 43,802,328 47,784,162 - 47,784,162
Fixed assets 4,032,522 - 4,032,522 3,147,597 - 3,147,597
Intangible assets 117,271 - 117,271 14,274 - [ 14,274
Deferred tax assets 14,662,046 - 14,662,046 13,252,533 - 13,252,533
Other assets 4,927,691 - 4,927,691 3,670,762 - 3,670,762

357,850,327 - 357,850,327 270,188,409 - 270,188,409

Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risk is defined as the current or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from adverse movements
in currency exchange rates. It refers to the impact of adverse movement in currency exchange rates on the value of open foreign
currency positions. The objective of the foreign exchange risk management is to minimize the adverse impact of foreign exchange
rate movements on the assets and liabilities mismatch (tenor and position) and maximize earnings. The Bank limits its currency
exposure to the extent of statutory net open position prescribed by the SBP except in the cases where exemption is provided
by SBP Foreign exchange open and mismatch positions are controlled through close monitoring and are marked to market on
a daily basis.

2022

. Off-balance Net foreign

Assets Liabilities . currency

sheet items
exposure
(Rupees in '000)

Pakistan Rupee 355,705,216 338,764,756 (976,669) 15,963,791
United States Dollar 1,145,576 1,637,318 976,669 484,927
Great Britain Pound 754,313 163,013 - 591,301
Euro 15,559 - - 15,559
Japanese Yen 184,824 134,282 - 50,542
Saudi Riyal 1,404 - - 1,404
UAE Dirham 6,528 - - 6,528
Chinese Yen 36,906 - - 36,906
357,850,327 340,699,368 - 17,150,959




2021

. Offbalance et foreign
Assets Liabilities . currency
sheet items
exposure
(Rupees in '000)
Pakistan Rupee 268514921 249,806,814 (539,429) 18,168,678
United States Dollar 1,150,568 1,418,470 539,429 271,527
Great Britain Pound 310,086 235336 - 74,750
Euro 164,518 100,507 - 64,011
Japanese Yen 1,259 - - 1,259
Saudi Riyal 9,533 - - 9,533
UAE Dirham 37,390 - - 37,390
ChinesYen |34 - - |34
270,188,409 251,561,127 - 18,627,282
44.2.3 Foreign exchange risk
2022 2021
Banking Trading Banking Trading
Impact of 1% change in foreign exchange book Book book Book
rates on:
(Rupees in '000)
- Profit and loss account (2,117) (9,767) 679 (5,394)

- Other comprehensive income

44.2.4 Equity position risk

The Bank's equity exposure is managed within the SBP limits for overall investment and per scrip exposure. In addition,

there are also internal limits for each scrip.

2022 2021
Banking Trading Banking Trading
Impact of 5% change in equity book Book book Book
prices on:
(Rupees in '000)
- Profit and loss account - - - -
- Other comprehensive income (839,543) - (122,308) -

44.2.5 Yield / interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates,
including changes in the shape of the yield curve. Interest rate risk is inherent in the Bank’s business and arises due to
the mismatches in the contractual maturities or repricing of on- and off-balance sheet assets and liabilities. The Bank
uses maturity Gap limits to monitor asset and liability gaps. Any breach are report to ALCO where it is discussed and
appropriate action will be taken.

2022 2021

Banking Trading Banking Trading
Impact of 1% change in interest book Book book Book
rates on:

(Rupees in '000)
- Profit and loss account -
- Other comprehensive income

(6,780,309) - (1551,744) -
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44.4 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems and
external events.

The Bank strives to manage operational risk within acceptable levels through sound operational risk management
practices.

The Bank has set up a separate Operational Risk Management (ORM) Unit. ORM Unit resides within Risk
Management Division (RMD). Its responsibility is to implement Operational Risk management tools across the
bank for effective measurement and monitoring of operational risk faced by different areas of the Bank.

45. GENERAL
45.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee.
46. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 08,
2023.

A L/ A e~

Chairman President and Director |rector Chief Finandial Officer
Chief Executive Officer
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ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31,2022

ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

ANNEXURE - |

The Bank commenced its Islamic Banking operations effective from June 26, 2014 and is operating with 14 Islamic Banking
branches and I3 Islamic Banking Windows in Conventional branches (2021: 14 Branches and |3 Islamic Banking Windows)
at the end of year. The statement of financial position, profit and loss account and cash flow statement of the Islamic banking

division are as follows:
Assets

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Due from financial institutions
Investments

Islamic financing and related assets
Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Due from head office

Other assets

Liabilities

Bills payable

Due to financial institutions
Deposits and other accounts
Deferred tax liability

Due to head office

Other liabilities

Net Assets
Represented By
Islamic banking fund
Reserves

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments
Accumulated loss

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)
308,289 319,466
1,091 83,994
| - 700,000
2 4,108,170 3,098,530
3 1,033,556 1,214,895
170,539 178,015
3,333 4,333
- 190
6 14,563 20,457
194,838 79,145
5,834,379 5,699,025
7,279 12,600
1,000,000 250,000
5 3,933,951 4,623,856
6,437 -
6 - -
233,055 226,815
5,180,722 5113271
653,657 585,754
1,100,000 [,100,000
2,725 (297)
7 (449,068) (513,949)
653,657 585,754
8



ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FORTHEYEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2022

Profit / return on financing, investments and placements earned
Return on deposits and other dues expensed

Net income earned

Other income

Fee, commission and brokerage income

Income from dealing in foreign currencies

Dividend income

Gain on sale / redemption of securities

Other income

Total income

Other expenses

Administrative expenses
Other charges

Profit / (loss) before provision
Provisions and write offs -net
Extra ordinary / unusual items
Profit / (loss) before taxation

Taxation

Profit / (loss) after taxation

ANNEXURE - |

2022 202 |

Note (Rupees in '000)
[ 701,231 415,094
12 446,704 298,266
254,527 116,828
8,248 7,083
374 (103)
14,400 11,880
387 437
23,409 19,297
277,936 136,125
215,172 188,733
19 -

215,191 188,733
62,745 (52,608)
2,136 (6,432)
64,881 (59,040)
64,881 (59,040)
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Islamic Banking Business
Cash Flow Statement
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit / (Loss) before taxation
Less: Dividend income

Adjustments

Depreciation
Amortisation
Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets

Balances with and due from financial institutions
Islamic financing and related assets - net

Due from head office

Other assets

(Decrease) / increase in operating liabilities

Bills payable

Due to financial institutions
Deposits and other accounts
Due to head office

Other liabilities

Income tax paid
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net investment in securities

Dividend received

Investment in operating fixed assets

Net cash flow (used in) / from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Islamic Banking Fund

Net cash from financing activity

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Annexure - |

2022 2021

Note (Rupees in '000)

64,881 (59,040)
(14,400) (11,880)
50,481 (70,920)
39,565 41,783
1,000 667
(2,136) 6432
38,429 48,882
88,910 (22,038)
700,000 543,245
183,475 1,027,841
5,894 33,561
(115,693) (24,386)
773,676 1,580,261
(5,321) (3,610)
750,000 250,000
(689,905) (455,022)
6,240 (14,775)
61,014 (223,407)
923,600 1,334,816
923,600 1,334,816
(999,991) (1,403,563)
14,400 [1,880
(32,089) (40,657)
(1,017,680) (1,432,340)
- 100,000
- 100,000
(94,080) 2,476
403,460 400,984
10 309,380 403,460




Islamic Banking Business
Notes To Annexure - |
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

2022 2021
| DUE FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Note In Ioca] In foreign Total In local  In foreign Total
currencies currencies currencies currencies
(Rupees in '000")
Bai Mujjal .1 - - - - - -
Musharaka arrangements - - - 700,000 - 700,000
- - - 700,000 - 700,000
[.I Bai Mujjal Placement - - - - - -
Less : Deferred income - - - - - -
2 INVESTMENTS 2022 202
Cost/ Provision ) Cost/ Provision ‘
. Surplus / Carrying . Surplus / Carrying
Am:;st;sed dimifr?:tion (Deficit) Value Amfo:(tlsed dimifgt:tion (Deficit) Value
» (Rupees in '000")
Federal Government Securities:
- ljarah Sukuks 4,000,008 (14,598) 3,985410 3000017 (10927) 2,989,090
Islamic Fund:
-Listed Companies 99,000 23,760 122,760 99,000 10,440 109,440
Total Investments 4,099,008 9,162 4,108,170 3,099,017 (487) 3,098,530
3 ISLAMIC FINANCING AND RELATED ASSETS
Note 2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)
liarah financing under IFAS 2 3.1 11,371 23,159
Diminishing musharakah financing 1,033,666 1,205,353
1,045,037 1,228,512
Less: provision against Islamic financing
- Specific (11,481) (13,617)
- General - -
(11,481) (13617)
Islamic financing and related assets - net of provision 1,033,556 1,214,895
Note 2022 2021
3.1 ljarah financing under IFAS 2 (Rupees in '000)
Net book value of assets 3.1 11,371 23,159
Advance against ljarah financing - -
11,371 23,159
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Islamic Banking Business
Notes To Annexure - |

For The Year Ended December 31,2022

3.1.1 Particulars of assets under ljarah
2022
Cost Accumulated depreciation
Asat Additions/ Asat Asat Charge/ Asat B°;k V:'”e ; Rate ‘;f
January 01 Settled  December 3| January Ol settled December 31 Dece:n1e3l epre;"’ on
(Rupees in '000)
Vehicle 37,866 (21,642) 16,224 28,341 (14,322) 14,019 2,205 Over the
Plant and machinery 28,000 - 28,000 14,366 4,468 18,834 9,166 ljarah period
Total 65,866 (21,642) 44,224 42,707 (9,854) 32,853 11,371
2021
Cost Accumulated depreciation
As at Additions/ As at As at Charge/ As at Boik vei\ue d Ratel if
January 01 Settled December 31 January Ol settled December 31 Decesmi)eE | epre;/oa on
(Rupees in '000)
Vehicle 42,595 (4.729) 37,866 24,009 4332 28,341 9525  Overthe
Plant and machinery 48,000 (20,000) 28,000 28,584 (14218) 14,366 13,634 ljarah period
Total 90,595 (24,729) 65,866 52,593 (9,886) 42,707 23,159
2022 2021
3.1.2  Future ljarah payments receivable (Rupees in '000)
Not later than one year 11,371 8,586
Later than one year and not later than five years - 14,573
Over five years - -
11,371 23,159
4 SECTOR WISE PORTFOLIO
Chemical and chemical products 9,166 13,634
Construction, real estate and societies - -
Education 11,898 14,127
Food 165,000 165,000
Hotel and restaurants - -
Power, electricity and gas 521,131 620,580
Transport, Storage and Communication 27,452 82,355
Wholesale and retail trade 286,525 313,525
Individuals 11,488 4,154
Insurance 1,467 3,254
Others 10,911 10,998
Pharmaceuticals - 885
Gross Financing 1,045,037 1,228,512
Govt. of Pakistan 3,985,410 2,989,090
Power, electricity and gas - -
Financial Institutions 122,760 109,440

Total Invested Funds 5,153,207 4327042




Islamic Banking Business

Notes To Annexure - |
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

5.1

52

DEPOSITS 2022 2021
(I:n Local In Foreign Total In Local  In Foreign Total
urrency currencies Currency  currencies
Rupees in '000
Customers
Current deposits 791,885 1,081 792,966 516991 [,135 518,126
Savings deposits 1,904,738 6,040(| 1,910,778 141733 99,465/ 1,516,796
Term deposits 500,121 - 500,121 1,453,523 - 1,453,523
Margin and other deposits 28,768 - 28,768 5015 - 5015
3,225,512 7,121 3,232,633 3,392,860 100,600 3,493,460
Financial Institutions
Current deposits 2,711 - 2,711 1917 - 1917
Savings deposits 98,577 - 98,577 673,449 - 673,449
Term deposits 600,000 - 600,000 455,000 - 455,000
Margin and other deposits 30 - 30 30 - 30
701,318 - 701,318 1,130,396 - 1,130,396
3,926,830 7,121 3,933,951 4523256 100,600 4,623,856
2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)
Composition of deposits
- Individuals 870,384 752,935
- Government (Federal and Provincial) 382,186 154,767
- Public Sector Entities 131,353 129,790
- Banking Companies 484 468
- Non-Banking Financial Institutions 700,834 129,928
- Private Sectors 1,848,710 2455968
3,933,951 4,623,856

As at 31 December 2022, the deposits eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements amounted to
Rs. 1,274.73 million (2021: Rs. 855.37 million) and premium paid amounted to Rs. .37 million (2021 :Rs. .44 million).

2022 2021
DUE FROM / (TO HEAD OFFICE) (Rupees in '000)
Interbranch transaction account (daily basis) 14,563 20457
ACCUMULATED LOSS
Opening Balance (513,949) (454,909)
Add: Islamic Banking profit/(loss) for the year 64,881 (59,040)
Less: Taxation - -
Less: Reserves - -
Less: Transferred / Remitted to Head Office - -
Closing Balance (449,068) (513,949)
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Islamic Banking Business
Notes To Annexure - |
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

8 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

-Guarantees
-Letter of Credit
-Commitments

9 CHARITY FUND
Opening Balance

Additions during the period

Received from customers on account of delayed payment
Profit on charity saving account

Other

Payments / utilization during the period
Education

Charity organisation

Hospital

Closing Balance
10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

I PROFIT / RETURN ON FINANCING, INVESTMENTS
AND PLACEMENTS EARNED

Profit earned on:

Financing

Investments

Placements

On deposits with financial institutions

12 RETURN ON DEPOSITS AND OTHER DUES EXPENSED

Deposits and other accounts
Due to Financial Institutions
Amortisation of lease liability against right-of-use assets

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

178,617 151,016
353,321 -
531,939 151,016
666 7
48 I
972 658
1,020 659
1,465 -
1,465 -
221 666
308,289 319,466
1,091 83,994
309,380 403,460
173,047 172,108
468,260 144,080
59,924 98,905
- I
701,231 415,094
383,290 253414
39,825 28,465
23,589 16,387
446,704 298,266




Islamic Banking Business
Notes To Annexure - |
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

13
13.1
13.1.1
13.1.2
13.1.3
13.1.4

POOL MANAGEMENT

Sindh Bank Limited - SA" ADAT lIslamic Banking Division is maintaining the following pools for profit declaration and
distribution:

General Pool, Special Pools and FI Pools

Priority of utilization of funds in pools will be as follows:
- Depositors Funds

- Equity Funds

Priority of utilization of funds in the Fl pool shall be:
- FI Funds

- Equity Funds

Weightages for distribution of profit in general pool

Profits are calculated on the basis of weightages assigned to different tiers and tenors. These weightages are announced
monthly. While considering weightages emphasis shall be given to the quantum, type and period of risk assessed
by applying following factors:

- Contracted period, nature and type of deposits/fund.

- Payment cycle of profit on such deposits/fund i.e. monthly, quarterly or on maturity.

- Magnitude of Risk.
Any change in profit sharing weightages of any category of deposit/fund providers shall be applicable from next
period.

Special and Financial Institution Pools.
Profit is calculated and distributed on the basis of pre agreed Profit Sharing Ratio.

Identification and allocation of Pool related income and expenditure

The allocation of income and expenditure to different pools is being done based on a pre-defined basis and
accounting principles as mentioned below.

Any direct expenditure shall be charged to respective pools, while indirect expenses including the establishment
costs shall be borne by Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking Division (SNDB - IBD) as Mudarib. The direct expenses to be
charged to the pool may include depreciation for ljarah assets, insurance / Takaful expenses of pool assets, stamp
fees or documentation charges, brokerage fee on purchase of securities, impairment / losses due to physical damages
to specific assets in pool etc. However, this is not an exhaustive list. SNDB - IBD pool management framework and
the respective pool creation memo may identify and specify these and may similar expenses to be charged to the
pool.
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Islamic Banking Business
Notes To Annexure - |
For The Year Ended December 31, 2022

[3.1.5 Parameters associated with risks and rewards
Following are the consideration attached with risks and rewards of pools:
- Period, return, safety, security and liquidity of investment;
- All financing proposal under process at various stages and likely to be extended in the near future;

- Expected withdrawal of deposits according to the maturities affecting the deposit base;

- Maturities of funds obtained under Modaraba arrangements from Head Office and Islamic Banking Financial

Institutions;
- Elements of risks associated with different kind of investments;
- Regulatory requirements; and
- Shariah compliance.

13.1.6 Basis of Profit allocation

During the year, the profit was distributed between Mudarib and Rubbal Maal as per following profit sharing ratio

based upon gross income less direct expenses.

65.00%

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)
Rubbal Maal 67.70%
Mudarib 32.30%

13.1.7 MUDARIB'S SHARE (in amount and percentage of distributable income)

Rubbul Maal (%) 67.70%
Rubbul Maal (amount) 40,659
Mudarib (%) 32.30%
Mudarib (amount) 19,265

13.1.8 Amount and percentage of mudarib's share transferred to
depositors thought Hiba

Mudarib's share 19,265
Hiba 4,604
Hiba percentage of mudarib's share 23.90%

In addition to the General Pool, |2 Special Pools were maintained as on December 31, 2022.

35.00%

65.00%
37,616
35.00%
16,959

16,959
4,039
23.82%



Islamic Banking Business
Notes To Annexure - |
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

Amount and percentage of Mudarib's share transferred to depositors thought Hiba for Special Pool during 2022.

Mudarib's share
Hiba
Hiba percentage of mudarib's share

[3.1.9 Profit rate earned vs profit rate distributed to the depositors during the year

Profit rate earned
Profit rate distributed to depositors

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)
32,730 18,156
8,790 8,121
26.86% 23.82%
2022 2021
----------- Persontage ------------
14.32% 10.51%
9.29% 5.63%
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Statement Showing Written-off Loans Or Any Other Financial
Relief of Rupees Five Hundred Thousand Or Above Provided
During The Year Ended 31-Dec-2022

Annexure - |

Outstanding Liabilities at beginning of year
Name of ' . Interest/ Other
sr, | Nameand individuals / Father s. .| Interest / Other Principal Marlcup | financial | Total
No,| 2ddress of the . | Husband's | Principal than Interest/ | Total | written- . .
O Porrower partners/ directors name Mark-up Mark-u off written-offl | relief | (9+10+11)
(with CNIC No.) P waived ¥ | provided
I 1 3 4 5 6 1 8 9 10 1 12
Rupees in ‘000
") Khawaja All Kamal Majid | Anver Majid 191285 | 70044 261329 * 61330 * 61330
| National Gases | CNIC # 42301-8273075-3"
Limited | %) Sara Tarin Majd Knawaja Al Kamd
CNIC # 42201-0629574-4" | Majid
! e | Oyed AdlHussain Syed Mahamid
B[ PredAdIHsIn | e 10118160539 s oo e 475 % &
TOTAL: 195375 70,747 266,122 61,495 61,495

Relief includes amounts which would be due to the Bank under contractual arrangements whether or not
accrued in the books.

*Waiver of cost of fund allowed as per decree.
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Shariah Board Report

For the year ended December 31,2022

(Gl i
[SLAMIC BANKING

By the grace of Almighty ALLAH Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking has accomplished another year of operation. The Board of
Directors (BODs) and management are responsible to provide effective and comprehensive Shariah compliance environment
in line with Shariah Governance Framework (SGF) issued by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) to ensure conformity of Sindh Bank
- Islamic Banking operations and products with Shariah principles.

Shariah Board (SB) Meetings
During the year, Shariah Board of Sindh Bank Limited conducted four meetings. Minutes of the meetings were recorded and
submitted to SBP in accordance with the regulatory requirement.

Shariah Compliance
SB has reviewed and evaluated the bases and Shariah principles used in products & services, agreements & contracts, transactional
structures and policies introduced and revised by Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking during the year.

Shariah Compliance Department (SCD) has also conducted Shariah reviews under the guidance of the Shariah Board including
examination of different transactions on sample basis and obtained all necessary information and explanations which were
considered sufficient evidence to form an opinion and provide reasonable assurance whether Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking had
complied with the respective Shariah rules and guidelines issued by SB and SBP.

In compliance with SBP instruction, SCD also conducted pre-disbursement review of profit & loss distribution to the depositors
on monthly basis. Internal Shariah Audit also conducted quarterly post-disbursement audits of profit distribution and presented
their reports to the SB.

Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking has provided adequate resources to Shari'ah Compliance Department enabling them to discharge
their duties effectively and ensuring the Shari'ah Compliance environment.

Shariah Audit
Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking have dedicated Internal Shariah Audit is in place, playing a significant role in ensuring Shariah
compliance under the guidelines provided by SB and SBP.

Product Development

Shariah Board has approved Fifteen (15) Products Policies, SOPs, and procedures developed and revised by the Product
development department of Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking. These Products were developed/revised by considering the market
requirement, regulatory instructions and such Financing schemes announced by Government of Pakistan.

Training & Capacity Building

Training and development plays a vital role in the capacity building of human resource and helps in optimizing their utilization
for flourishing & promotions of Islamic Banking Industry. Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking particularly focuses on human resource
development by providing in-house and external trainings opportunities. During the year SB and SCD provided Islamic Banking
& Finance trainings to various staff. Further, Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking has utilized the online digital training platform of
NIBAF to abreast its staff with the fundamental knowledge of Islamic Banking & Finance. Islamic Banking department staff have
attended the Islamic Banking sessions organized by NIBAF on various topics. In order to spread the teachings of Holy Quran
and enhancing the awareness of Islamic Banking & Finance, SCD has started a practice to deliver Quranic Verses to all staff.

Charity
During the year Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking recovered charity of PKR. 1,019,000/- and has been credited into charity account.
Accumulated charity amount of PKR 1,465,000 have been distributed in Sindh Government account for Flood Victims.




Shariah Board Opinion

In the light of Shariah reviews carried out based on test check basis, internal and external Shariah audit reports, SB is of the
opinion that;

I. Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking has complied with Shari‘ah rules and principles in the light of Fatawa, rulings and guidelines
issued by its Shari'ah Board and SBP.

2.Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking has a comprehensive mechanism in place to ensure Shari'ah compliance in its overall operations.

3. Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking has a well-defined system in place which is sound enough to ensure that any earnings realized
from sources or by means prohibited by Shari'ah have been credited to charity account and are being properly utilized.

4. Sindh Bank - Islamic Banking has complied with the SBP guidelines & instructions on profit & loss distribution and Pool
Management.

5.Training and capacity building department is in place to strengthen the level of awareness of staff and management in
understanding the importance of products and processes as well as the Shariah Compliance.

6.The Shari'ah Board has been provided adequate resources enabling it to discharge its duties effectively.

Recommendations from Shariah Board
On the basis of above, SB recommend that;

I. Qualified and appropriate resources should be hired on vacant position;

2. Islamic Banking and Shariah related trainings at all levels should be enhanced across all regions, particularly trainings for
senior management and branch staff should be scheduled on priority. Preferably, customer awareness sessions should also
be organized;

3. New Islamic Banking branches should be opened all over Pakistan to increase business;

4. Shariah compliance review of branches should be extended to all regions;

Shari'ah Board would like to take this opportunity to offer praise to ALLAH Almighty and seek His guidance and tawfeeq for

further progress, development and prosperity of Islamic Banking, under the sincere efforts of senior management of Sindh
bank and State Bank of Pakistan.

Mufti Muhammad Nadeem Siddiquie =~ Mufti Zeeshan Abdul Aziz Mufti Hassan Ashraf Usmani
RSBM / Head-SCD Member Shariah Board Chairman Shariah Board
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Fazal-ul-Haq Road, Blue Area,
Chartered Accountants Islamabad, Pakistan

Ph: +92-51-2878530-32, 2822785
Fax: +92-51-2206283

E-mail: isl@nzaj.com.pk

Web: www.nzaj.com.pk
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Independent Accounting Firms

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Sindh Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Sindh Bank Limited and its subsidiaries (the "Group"), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, the consolidated profit and loss account,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at December 31, 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to:

a)  Note 1.3 to consolidated financial statements on the 'Going Concern' which indicates the existence of material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. However, the management is confident
that the Bank will be able to stage a turn-around and the Government of Sindh, Bank's sole sponsor and major shareholder
has demonstrated its commitment to supporting the Bank, whenever required. We are in agreement with the management
for addressing the Going Concern issue.

b)  Note 23.3.5 to consolidated financial statements on Significant Matters which describes that the district government officials
being single authorized signatory of the bank account holder have made cash withdrawals to the tune of Rs. 5.7 billion
for Sukkur - Hyderabad Motorway (M-6) from the bank accounts maintained at Matiari and Naushahro Feroze branches
respectively.

Our opinion in not modified in respect of the above matters.
Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Reports Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual

Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and auditor's reports thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

[ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shah Naveed Saeed.

f'\
Place: Islamabad (JZ%A?Z /
Date: March 10, 2023 aveed Zafar Ashfag/Jaffery& Co.

UDIN: AR202210596xyDwmsOaX Chartered Accountants
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Sindh Bank Limited
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As At December 31, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets - net

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Subordinated debt

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS
REPRESENTED BY

Share capital - net

Reserves

Shares deposit money

Proposed Ordinary shares to be issued on amalgamation
Deficit on revaluation of assets

Accumulated Loss

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

I5
16
7

20
21
22

23

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

14,204,082 19,364,832
2,014,183 1,508,412
19,967,424 6,081,208
253,857,565 || 175428966
45,105,226 48,728,627
4,113,696 3233545
124,022 116,671
14,662,219 13,253,786
5,048,053 3,770,967
359,096,470  271487,014
726,148 624,726
107,244,714 27,535,738
223,632,712 | 217,842,678
10,079,561 6,637,242
341,683,135 252,640,384
17,413,335 18,846,630
29,524,428 25,524,428
1,526,805 516,452
- 4,000,000
(1,208,500) (1,121,647)
(12,429,398)  (11,072,603)
17,413,335 18,846,630

The annexed notes from | to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

WL,

Chairman President and
Chief Executive Officer

Wry —

. ! A Z
Director

irector

Chief Final

1al Officer




Sindh Bank Limited

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)
Mark-up / Return / Interest Earned 24 36,842,955 22,170,060
Mark-up / Return / Interest Expensed 25 31,181,376 16,982,024
Net Mark-up / return / Interest Income 5,661,579 5,188,036
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
Fee and Commission Income 26 427,836 351,958
Dividend Income 253,607 154,063
Foreign Exchange Income 557,561 74,371
Income / (Loss) from derivatives - -
Gain / (Loss) on securities 27 (157,712) (6,435)
Other Income 28 7,565 2,521
Total non-markup/interest Income 1,088,857 576,478
Total Income 6,750,436 5764514
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES
Operating expenses 29 7,000,000 5,876,794
Other charges 30 9,834 67,640
Total non-markup/interest expenses 7,009,834 5,944,434
LOSS BEFORE PROVISIONS (259,398) (179,920)
Provisions and write offs - net 31 1,952,454 5,838,368
Extra ordinary / unusual items - -
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (2,211,852) (6,018,288)
Taxation 32 (867,513) (2,318,152)
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (1,344,339) (3,700,136)
——————————— Rupees -----------

Basic Loss per share

33 (0.52) (1.47)
Diluted Loss per share

34 (0.52) (1.47)

The annexed notes from | to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

e S

Chairman President and Director |rector Chief Fina
Chief Executive Officer

1al Officer
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Sindh Bank Limited
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)

Loss after taxation for the year (1,344,339) (3,700,136)
Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent periods:

Movement in (Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of investments - net of tax (86,853) (713,142)
(1,431,192) (4,413,278)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent periods:

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligations - net of deferred tax (2,103) 47

Total comprehensive loss (1,433,295) (4,413,231

The annexed notes from | to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

A L il

Chairman President and irector Chief Final
Chief Executive Officer

1al Officer




Sindh Bank Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Year Ended December 31, 2022

Capital Reserve
g?;:;id Shares Depositors' Surplus /
Share Y ” Reserves on Share Statutory protection (Deficit) on || Accumulated
Capital shares to be Deposit amalgamation || Premium Reserve * || fund reserve || revaluation of Loss #% Total
issued on Money o )
amalgamation nvestments
(Rupees in '000)

Balance as at January 01,2021 19,710,130 3814298 2,000,000 19,443 51 1490492 9,640 (408,505) (7365678) 19269871
Loss for the year ended December 31,2021 - - - - - - - - (3,700,136)  (3,700,136)
Other comprehensive income - net of tax - - - - (713,142) 47 (713,095)
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - 5469 - (5469) -
Transfer to depositors' protection fund

- 5% of the profit after tax for the year - - - - - - 1,367 - (1.367)
Issue of shares during the year 5814298 (3814,298)  (2,000,000) - - - - - -
Shares deposit money - - 4,000,000 - - - - - - 4,000,000
Fair valuation adjustment of
net assets of Sindh

Leasing Company Limited - - - (10,010 - - - - - (10,010)

Balance as at December 31,2021 25,524,428 - 4,000,000 9,433 51 1,495,961 11,007 (1,121,647)  (11,072,603) 18,846,630
Loss for the year ended December 31,2022 - - - - - - - - (1,344,339)  (1,344,339)
Other comprehensive income - net of tax - - - - - - - (86,853) (2,103) (88,956)
Fair valuation adjustment of net assets of
Sindh Leasing Company Limited - - - - - - - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - - 8,282 - - (8282)
Transfer to depositors' protection fund

- 5% of the profit after tax for the year - - - - - - 2,071 - (2,071)
Issue of shares during the year 4,000,000 - (4,000,000 - - - - - - -
Balance as at December 31,2022 29,524,428 - 9,433 51 1,504,243 13,078 (1,208,500)  (12,429,398) 17,413,335

*  Statutory reserve represents amount set aside as per the requirements of section 2| of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 in case
of the Bank and under Microfinance Institution Ordinance, 2001 and Prudential Regulations "R-4 - Statutory Reserve" in the case of Sindh
Microfinance Bank, to create a reserve fund to which shall be credited an amount equal to at least 20% of its annual profits after taxes.

**  The Sindh Microfinance Bank Limited is required under Microfinance Institutions Ordinance, 2001 to contribute 5% of its annual after tax
profit to the Depositors' Protection Fund and profit earned on investments of the fund shall also be credited to the fund.

**% As more fully explained in note 10.6.2 of these consolidated financial statements, unappropriated profit includes an amount of Rs. 4,737.96
million net of tax as at December 31,2022 (December 31, 2021: Rs. 7,184.65 million) representing additional profit arising from availing
forced sale value benefit for determining provisioning requirement which is not available for the purpose of distribution of dividend to
shareholders.

The annexed notes from | to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chairman President and 1al Officer

Chief Executive Officer

W )
Director irector Chief Fina
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Sindh Bank Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For The Year Ended December 31,2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation
Less: Dividend income

Adjustments:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Provision and write offs -net
Written-off operating fixed assets
Charge for defined benefit plan

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets

(Increase) / Decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions

Advances - net

Other assets - net

Increase / (Decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Other liabilities (excluding current taxation)

Contribution to gratuity fund
Income tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net investment in available-for-sale securities

Net investment in held-to-maturity securities

Dividend received

Investments in operating fixed assets

Fair valuation adjustment of net assets of Sindh Leasing Company Limited
Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets disposed off

Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Shares deposit money

Issue of share capital

Net cash generated from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note

29
31

37.14
28

37.1.3

35

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)
(2,211,852) (6,018,288)
(253,607) (154,063)
(2,465,459) (6,172,351)
963,303 969,595
36,232 36,009
1,945,818 5,836,071
104,137 99,43
(3.630) (284)
3,045,860 6,940,822
580,401 768,47 |
(13,886,216) 2,131,572
1,758,522 2,929,705
(1,291,153) [,/74,197
(13,418,847) 6,835,474
101,422 32,392
79,708,975 (35,591,910)
5,790,034 32,207,699
3,434,002 460,480
89,034,433 (2,891,339)
76,195,987 4,712,606
(99,643) (84,851)
(469,603) (95,126)
75,626,741 4,532,629
(54,850,018) (6,169,074)
(23,801,902) 240,108
253,607 154,765
(1,888,400) (970,533)
- (10,010)
4993 882
(80,281,720) (6,753,862)
- 4,000,000
- 4,000,000
(4,654,979) 1,778,767
20,873,244 19,094,477
16,218,265 20,873,244

The annexed notes from | to 46 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

WL,

Chairman President and
Chief Executive Officer

Wry —

. ! A Z
Director

irector

Chief Final

1al Officer
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Sindh Bank Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2022

1.2.1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
The "Group" consists of:
Holding Company

Sindh Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 29, 2010 as a public unlisted company and
is engaged in Commercial Banking, Corporate and Investment related activities. The Bank operates 330 (2021: 330)
branches including 8 (2021: 8) sub-branches and 4 (2021: 14) Islamic banking branches in Pakistan. The Bank's
registered office is located at 3rd floor, Federation House, Abdullah Shah Ghazi Road, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan.

The Government of Sindh, through its Finance Department owns 99.97% ordinary shares of the Bank.

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed the long term entity rating of A+ (Single A Plus) and short term
rating of A-1 (A-one) in its report dated June 28, 2022.

Subsidiary company
Sindh Microfinance Bank Limited

Sindh Microfinance Bank Limited (the Microfinance Bank) was incorporated on March 27,2015 as a public company
limited by shares under the provision of the companies Act, 2017 (previously Companies Ordinance, 1984). The
Microfinance Bank obtained Microfinance banking license from State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) on October |6th, 2015,
to operate in Sindh Province. Subsequently the Microfinance Bank has received the certificate of commencement of
business from Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on November 30, 2015.The Microfinance Bank's
registered office is situated at 39/F 2nd Floor, Muhammad Ali Cooperative Housing Society, Karachi. The Microfinance
Bank's principal business will be to provide Microfinance services to the poor and underserved segment of the society
as envisaged under the Microfinance Institutions Ordinance, 2001. The Microfinance Bank operates with a network
of 19 (2021: 18) branches and 71 (2021: 62) services centers. The Bank holds 99.99% shares of the Microfinance Bank
and remaining shares are held by the nominees of the Bank.

The credit rating companies PACRA has maintained the long term rating of the Microfinance Bank at “A-" and short
term rating at “A2"” as of March 29, 2022.

Going concern

Due to significant losses suffered by the Bank since the years 2018 and to address any material uncertainties, the
management has been working on a Business Viability Plan approved by its Board of Directors in 73rd meeting held
on September |3,2019.The Plan aims to make the Bank a viable, self-sustaining institution. Important areas of focus
where efforts are continuing and significant progress has been made are:

» Strengthening Bank's Capital -As planned, cash injection, of Rs. | 1.7 billion was made in 2019 and Rs. 3.814 billion
added during 2020 from amalgamation of Sindh Leasing Company Limited in Bank's Tier | Common Equity. A
further amount of Rs. 4 billion has been received from GoS in the last quarter of 202 1. Furthermore, in order to
remain capital compliant, the Bank vide Letter No. SNDB/P&CEQO/155/2022 dated December 09, 2022 has
approached the Government of Sindh (GoS) with a request for fresh capital injection of Rs. 2 Billion before December
31,2022 to avoid breach of the regulatory capital requirement. Moreover, the GoS has requested the State Bank
of Pakistan for a deferment on the maintenance of Capital Adequacy Ratio vide letter No. ED (FMH) 294(1)/2019-
20/ dated December 30, 2022 for the next few months as well.
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2.1

22

3.1

3.2

* Improving Business Volumes and Profitability-This involves the Bank taking pro-active measures to:

i. Increase fee-based income from mainly trade-related business;

i) Improve Net Interest margin;

a) Mobilize cost effective (CASA) deposits;

b) Launch new asset products in the Consumer and SME segments;

iii. make concerted efforts for recovery and reduction of Non-Performing Loans.
iv. Take cost rationalization measures;

 Strengthening the Bank's Governance, Risk and Control environment.

* The management is confident that barring any unforeseen contingencies, the Bank will be able to stage a turn-
around. The Government of Sindh, Bank's major shareholder holding 99.97 percent of the Bank's equity is fully
committed to supporting the Bank, whenever required.

Listing of the Bank will be undertaken in future after improvement in Bank's financial position and Regulator’s guidance
on the matter.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements
prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) vide BPRD Circular No. 02, dated 25 January 2018.These consolidated
financial statements represent separate financial statements of the Group.

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the Banking system to Islamic
modes, the State Bank of Pakistan has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade-related
modes of financing include purchase of goods by Group from their customers and immediate resale to them at
appropriate mark-up in price on deferred payment basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements
are not reflected in these consolidated financial statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually
utilised and the appropriate portion of mark-up thereon. The Islamic Banking branches of the Bank have complied
with the requirements set out under the Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and notified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act 2017,
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
as are notified under the Companies Act 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act 2017
and the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). In case requirements of Banking Companies Ordinance
1962, the Companies Act 2017 or the directives issued by SBP and SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or
IFAS, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, Companies Act 2017, and the directives issued
by the SBP and SECP shall prevail.

The SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting
Standard 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (IAS 39) and International Accounting Standard
40, Investment Property (IAS 40) for Banking companies till further instructions. Further, according to the notification
of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) dated April 28,2008, the IFRS - 7 "Financial Instruments:
Disclosures" has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been
considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. However, investments have been classified
and valued in accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP.
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SECP has notified IFAS 3, 'Profit and Loss Sharing on Deposits' issued by the ICAP IFAS 3 shall be followed with effect
from the financial periods beginning on or after Ol January 2014 in respect of accounting for transactions relating to
'Profit and Loss Sharing on Deposits' as defined by the said standard. The standard had resulted in certain new
disclosures in the financial statements of the Group. However SBP through BPRD Circular Letter No. 4 dated 25
February 2015, has deferred the applicability of IFAS 3 till further instructions and prescribed the Group to prepare
their annual and periodical financial statements as per existing prescribed formats issued vide BPRD Circular 02 of
2018, as amended from time to time.

SECEP vide its SRO 56(1) 2016 dated January 28, 2016, has notified that requirements of IFRS 10 and section 228 of
Company Act 2017 will not be applicable with respect to investment in mutual funds established trust structure.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published accounting standards that are effective in the current
year.

There are certain new and amended standards, issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), interpretations
and amendments that are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after January 01,2021 but
are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Group's operations and therefore not
detailed in these consolidated financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are relevant but not
yet effective:

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard amendments,
or interpretation and are not early adopted by the Group:

Effective date (annual

Standard or Interpretation or Amendments periods beginning on or after)
Narrow scope amendments to IAS |, Practice statement 2 and IAS 8 January 01,2023
Amendment to IAS |2 - deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a

single transaction January 01,2023
Amendment to IFRS 16 - Leases on sale and leaseback January 01,2024
Amendment to IAS | - Non current liabilities with covenants January 01,2024

As per Stale Bank of Pakistan (SBP)' BPRD circular letter no. 24 of 2021, IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' is applicable
to banks / DFIs / MFBs effective January |,2022. The aforementioned circular letter contained instructions for quarterly
parallel reporting purposes to the SBP only and it was stated that final instructions will be issued based on the results
of parallel reporting. However, banks have submitted their reservations on instructions issued for parallel reporting
through the Pakistan Banks Association (PBA) and requested that they are addressed in the final instructions to be
issued. The reservations are pervasive and points of contention inter alia include, retaining some relaxations given
presently in the Prudential Regulations, prescription of macro-economic variables, retaining meal regulatory requirements
related to IFRS 9 related areas on overseas branches, impact on capital adequacy ratio, adequacy of significant increase
in credit risk criteria, future tax impact of any reversals, recording of expected credit loss on local currency denominated
Government securities, further clarifications required in certain the areas etc.

Due to fact that final instructions have not yet been issued and the large number of reservations over the draft
instructions. The banks are collectively of the opinion that impact on initial application of IFRS 9 cannot be determined
as required under IAS 8.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments has been made applicable in several overseas jurisdictions from January 01, 2018 and
is progressively being adopted in others. The requirements of IFRS 9 are incorporated in the banks financial statements
for the jurisdictions where IFRS 9 has been adopted. In terms of SBP's BPRD Circular Letter No. 03 of 2022 dated
July 05, 2022 the effective date of implementation of IFRS 9 is January 01, 2024 for banks having assets size of less
than Rs. 500 billion as per their Annual Financial Statements of December 31, 2021. Since Sindh Bank Limited has
assets size of less than Rs. 500 billion as at December 31,2021 therefore, the effective date of implementation of IFRS
9 would be January 01,2024,
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5.1

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These estimates and assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimates, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant affect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are
as follows:

i) classification and impairment against investments (notes 5.3 and 31);

i) classification and provision against advances (notes 5.4 and 31);

iii) depreciation and amortization / useful lives of operating fixed assets (notes 5.5,5.6, I | and 12);

iv) taxation (note 5.8);

v) staff retirement and other benefits (note 5.9);

vi) fair value of derivatives (note 5.17); and

vii) judgements made by management in identification and reporting segment information (note 41).

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

Accounting convention

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain
investments and commitments in respect of foreign exchange and futures contracts which are measured at fair values
and certain employee benefits and investments which are measured on present value basis.

[tems included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which
is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

Functional & Presentation of Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group's functional and
presentation currency.

The amount are rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees except as stated otherwise.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year, unless otherwise disclosed or specified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with treasury banks and balances with other banks in current
and deposit accounts, excluding term deposit with original term of greater than three months.
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5.3.1

Lending to / borrowing from Financial Institutions

The Group enters into transactions of borrowings (repurchase) from and lending (reverse repurchase) to financial
institutions at contracted rates for a specified period of time. These are reported as under:

Repurchase / resale agreements
a) Sale of securities under repurchase agreement (repo)
Securities sold subject for repurchase agreements (repo) remain on the consolidated statement of financial position
as investments and the counter party liability is included in borrowings from financial institutions. The difference between
the sale and repurchase price is accrued over the period of the agreement using the effective interest rate method
and recorded as expense.
b) Purchase of securities under resale agreement (reverse repo)
Securities purchased under agreements for resale (reverse repo) are recorded as lendings to financial institutions. These
transactions are accounted for on the settlement date. The difference between the purchase and resale price is
recognized as mark-up return income over the period of the agreement using the effective interest rate method.
Bai Mujjal
In Bai Mujjal, the Group sells Shariah compliant instruments on credit to other financial institutions. The credit price is
agreed at the time of sale and such proceeds are received at the end of the credit period. The difference between
the sale and the credit price is recognised over the credit period and recorded as income.
Investments
The group classifies its investments as follows:
a) Held-for-trading
These are securities which are either acquired for generating profit from short-term fluctuations in market prices,
interest rate movements, dealer's margin or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term
profit taking exists.

b) Held-to-maturity

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the positive intent
and ability to hold till maturity.

c) Available-for-sale

These are investments, other than that in subsidiary which do not fall under the held-for-trading and held-to-
maturity categories.

Initial measurement

Investments other than those categorized as 'held-for-trading' are initially recognized at fair value and includes transaction
costs associated with the investment. Investments classified as 'held-for-trading' are initially recognized at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated profit and loss account.
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Subsequent measurement
Held-for-trading

Investments classified as held-for-trading are measured on subsequent reporting dates at fair value. Gain and losses
on remeasurement are included in the profit and loss account.

Held-to-maturity

Investments classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortized cost. Unquoted equity securities are valued at lower
of cost and break-up value. Break-up value of unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets
of the investee company as per the latest available audited financial statements. Investments in other unquoted securities
are valued at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Available-for-sale

Quoted securities classified as available-for-sale investments are measured on subsequent reporting dates at fair value.
Any surplus / deficit arising thereon is kept other comprehensive income and taken to the profit and loss account
when actually realised upon disposal or when the investment is considered to be impaired.

Break-up value of unquoted equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company
as per the latest available audited financial statements. Investments in other unquoted securities are valued at cost
less impairment losses, if any.

Impairment

Impairment loss in respect of investments classified as available-for-sale and held-to-maturity is recognized on the basis
of management's assessment of objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that may have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the investments. A significant or prolonged decline in market value
of an equity security is considered as an objective evidence of impairment, significant means 30% decline in market
value as compared to cost, except when uncertain circumstances such as material market volatility, uncertainty and
other market impacting external events, in which cases, a higher percentage is also considered by the management
for determination of what is presumed as significant decline. Provision for diminution in the value of term finance
certificates is made as per the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. In case of
impairment of available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognized directly in the surplus / (deficit)
on revaluation of securities on the consolidated statement of financial position below equity is removed there from
and recognized in the consolidated profit and loss account. For investmenits classified as held-to-maturity, the impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Gain or loss on sale of investments is included in the profit and loss account in the year in which they arise.
Advances

Advances are stated net of provisions for non-performing advances. Specific and general provisions are made based
on appraisal of the loan portfolio that takes into account the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by
the State Bank of Pakistan. The provisions against non-performing advances are charged to the consolidated profit
and loss account. Advances are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery after explicit approval from
the Board of Directors.

ljarah Financing

Applying IFAS-2, assets underlying ljarah have been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any, and are shown under Islamic financing and related assets. Rentals accrued from ljarah financing net of depreciation
charge are taken to the consolidated profit and loss account. Depreciation on ljarah assets is charged by applying the
straight line method over the ljarah period which is calculated from the date of delivery of respective assets to mustajir
upto the date of maturity / termination of ljarah agreement.

Diminishing Musharakah

In Musharakah based financing, the Group enters into Musharakah for financing an agreed share of fixed assets with
its customer and enters into periodic profit payment agreement for the utilization of the Groups Musharakah share
by the customer. Specific and general provisions are made in accordance with the requirement of prudential regulations
and other directives issued by the SBP and charged to consolidated profit and loss account.
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Operating fixed assets and depreciation
Property and equipment - owned
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Subsequent costs are included in
an asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset as appropriate, only when it is probable that future benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance expenses are charged to the consolidated profit and loss account as and when incurred.

Depreciation is charged to the consolidated profit and loss account applying the straight line method at the rates
specified in note || to these consolidated financial statements after taking into account residual value, if significant.
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each date of
consolidated statement of financial position. Depreciation is charged from the month the assets are available for use
while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off.

Gains or losses on disposal, if any, are recognized in the consolidated profit and loss account in the year in which they
arise.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with
specific assets incurred during installation and related advances there against, if any, are carried under this head. These
are transferred to specific assets as and when the assets become available for use.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a Lessee

A lessee recognizes a right -of-use asset representing its right of using the underlying asset and a corresponding lease
liability representing its obligations to make lease payments.

Right-of-use (RoU) Assets

The right-of-use assets recognised subsequent to the adoption of 'IFRS-16 Leases' are measured based on the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred.The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the lease term as this
method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-of-use assets
are reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of lease liability.

Lease Liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liability measured at the present value of the
consideration (lease payments) to be made over the lease term and is adjusted for lease prepayments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, unless it is not readily determinable, in which case
the lessee may use the incremental rate of borrowing. After the commencement date, the carrying amount of lease
liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

Incremental borrowing rate
Borrowing rate that Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds

necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The Group
estimated the Incremental borrowing rate using observable input such as market interest rates.
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5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation
is charged to the consolidated profit and loss account applying the straight line method at the rates specified in note
I'l, to these consolidated financial statements from the date an intangible asset is available for use. The useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each date of consolidated statement of financial
position.

Impairment

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment of any asset or group of assets. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is
estimated and impairment losses are recognized immediately in the consolidated financial statements. The resulting
impairment loss is taken to the consolidated profit and loss account.

Taxation

Taxation (Income tax) expense relates to current and prior years and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized
in the consolidated profit and loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current

Provision for current tax is the tax payable on the expected taxable income for the year using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date and, any adjustment to tax payable relating to prior years, after taking
into consideration available tax credits, rebates, tax losses etc.

b) Prior Year

This charge includes tax charge for prior years arising from assessments, changes in estimates and tax changes
applied retrospectively.

c) Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applicable to the temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carried forward unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carried
forward unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized.

Staff retirement and other benefits

a) Defined contribution plan
The Group operates a recognised funded contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees to which
equal contributions at the rate of 10 percent (2021: 10 percent) of basic salary are made by both the Group and
the employees. The contributions are recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.

b) Defined benefit plan
The Group operates a recognised funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who complete the
prescribed eligibility period of service. Provision is made annually to meet the cost of such gratuity benefits on the
basis of actuarial recommendations using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

c) Compensated absences

The Group makes provision in the financial statements for its liabilities towards compensated absences. Liability
under the scheme is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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5.12.6

5.12.7

5.13

5.14

5.15

Acceptances

Acceptances comprise of undertakings made by the Group to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Group
expects most acceptances to be simultaneously settled with reimbursement from the customers. Acceptances are
accounted for as on-balance sheet transactions and are reported in “other assets” and “other liabilities” simuttaneously.

Provisions against liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each date of consolidated statement of financial position and are adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the economic benefit associated with the transaction will flow to the Group
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Mark-up / return / interest on advances and on investments are recognized on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest rate method except that mark-up / return / interest on non-performing advances and investments
is recognized on receipt basis, in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.
Where debt securities are purchased at a premium or discount, such premium or discount is amortised through
the consolidated profit and loss account over the remaining period of maturity.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the Group's right to receive the dividend is established.

Fees, brokerage and commission on letters of credit / guarantees and from other avenues is accrued and is recognized
on time proportion basis.

Financial advisory fees is recognized when the right to receive the fees is established.

Gain or loss on sale of investments is included in consolidated profit and loss account in the year in which they arise.
Rentals from ljarah is recognized as income over the term of the contract net of depreciation expense.

Profit on Diminishing Musharakah is recognized in consolidated profit and loss account on accrual basis.
Borrowings / deposits and their cost

Borrowings / deposits are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowing / deposit costs are recognized as an expense
in the period in which these are incurred using the effective mark-up / interest rate method.

Proposed dividend and transfers between reserves

Dividends and appropriations to reserves, except appropriations which are by law required to be made subsequent
to the date of statement of financial position are considered as non-adjusting events and are recorded in the financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 10, 'Events after the
Balance Sheet Date' in the period in which they are approved / transfers are made.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) which is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
/ period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the consolidated profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares, if any.
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5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

Foreign currency translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction
date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Translation gains and losses are included in the consolidated profit and
loss account.
Financial instruments
a) Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities carried on the consolidated statement of financial position include cash and bank
balances, lendings to financial institutions, investments, advances, certain receivables, bills payable, borrowings
from financial institutions, deposits, subordinated loans and certain payables. The particular recognition methods
adopted for significant financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy notes associated
with them.
b) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date at which the derivative contract
is entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair value using appropriate valuation techniques. All derivative
financial instruments are carried as assets where fair value is positive and as liabilities where fair value is negative.
Any changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are taken to consolidated profit and loss account.
Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated financial statements
only when the Group have a legally enforceable right to set off and the Group intends to either settle on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing particular products or
services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), and is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.
Business segments

a) Corporate Finance

This includes investment banking activities such as mergers and acquisitions, underwriting, privatization, securitization,
Initial Public Offerings (IPOs) and secondary private placements.

b) Trading and sales (Treasury)

This includes fixed income, equity, foreign exchanges, commodities, credit, funding, own position securities, lendings
and repos, brokerage debt and prime brokerage.

c) Retail Banking
This includes mortgage finance and personal loans to individual customers.
d) Commercial banking and others

This includes loans, deposits and other transactions with corporates, small and medium sized customers including
agriculture loans.

Geographical segments
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6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

The Group operates only in Pakistan.
Commitments

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements at committed amounts. Contingent liabilities / commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee
denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in Pak Rupee terms at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date
of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Provision against off balance sheet obligations

Provision for guarantees, claims and other off balance sheet obligations is made when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Charge to consolidated profit and loss account
is stated net of expected recoveries.

2022 2021
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Note (Rupees in '000)
In hand
Local currency 4,594,195 4,294,590
Foreign currency 112,285 175646
4,706,480 4,470,236
With State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in
Local currency current accounts 6.1 9,042,458 11,755,480
Foreign currency current accounts 6.2 105,966 144,789
Foreign currency deposit accounts:
- Non Remunerative 6.3 104,727 96,290
- Remunerative 6.4 205,270 178410
9,458,421 12,174,969
With National Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current accounts 22,428 2,657 534
Local currency deposit accounts 6.5 7,977 20,579
30,405 2,678,113
Prize bonds 8,776 41514
35 14,204,082 19,364,832

This represents cash reserve required to be maintained with SBP as per the requirement of Section 22 of the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962.

This represents US Dollar Settlement Account maintained with SBP

This represents foreign currency (FCY) cash reserve maintained with SBP to comply with statutory reserve requirement
applicable on Group's FCY deposits.

This represents foreign currency special cash reserve maintained with SBRThe Group is entitled to earn profit which
is declared by SBP on a monthly basis. During the period, the SBP has declared 0% to 3.14% profits (2021 : Nil profits)

per annum.

This includes savings account with National Bank of Pakistan carrying mark-up at 14.5% (2021: 8.25%) per annum.
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7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

8.3

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

In Pakistan
In current account
In savings account

Outside Pakistan
In current accounts

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)
2,025 13,069
7.1 394,091 404,102
396,116 417,171
7.2 1,618,067 1,091,241
2,014,183 1,508,412

This includes savings account with commercial banks and microfinance banks carrying mark-up ranging from 14.5%
to 18.5% (2021:7.25% to 11.75%) per annum.

This includes Rs. 678.603 million (2021: Rs. 637.12 million) held in Automated Investment Plans. This balance is current
in nature and in case this goes above a specified amount, the Group is entitled to earn interest from the correspondent

banks at the agreed rates.

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse Repo)

Musharaka arrangements
Particulars of lending

In local currency
In foreign currencies

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)
82 &83 19,967,424 5,381,208
- 700,000
19,967,424 6,081,208
19,967,424 6,081,208
19,967,424 6,081,208

This represents resale agreement lending with commercial bank and financial institutions carrying mark-up in the range
of 15.75% to 16.20% (2021 10.50% : 10.70%) per annum maturing up to January 07,2022 (2021 January 07,2022 ).

Securities held as collateral against Lending to financial institutions

Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds

Total

2022 2021
gy BT, e
Bank Bank
collateral collateral
(Rupees in '000)
18,016,775 - 18,016,775 992,564 - 992,564
1,975,600 - 1,975,600 4,398,648 - 4,398,648
19,992,375 - 19,992,375 5391,212 - 5,391,212




9.

9.1

9.2

INVESTMENTS

Investments by types

Available-for-sale securities

Federal Government Securities
Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds
Pakistan Investment Bonds - Floater

Government of Pakistan - ljarah Sukuk

Shares
Listed
Mutual funds

Held-to-maturity securities
Federal Government Securities
Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds
Preference Shares - Unlisted
Term Deposit Accounts
Non-government debt securities
Term finance certificates- Listed
Term finance certificates- Unlisted

Total Investments

Investments by segments

Federal Government Securities
Market Treasury Bills
Pakistan Investment Bonds

Government of Pakistan - ljarah Sukuk

Shares
Listed companies
Unlisted companies

Non-government debt securities
Term finance certificates - listed
Term finance certificates - unlisted

Mutual Funds
Open ended
Islamic funds - REIT

Others
Term deposits accounts

Total Investments

2022 2021
COSt. / Provision Surplus / Carrying COS)[. / Provision Surplus / Carrying
Amortised for R Amortised for \
S (Deficit) Value L (Deficit) Value
cost diminution cost diminution
.......................... (Rupees in '000)
64,108,973 - (180,402)|| 63,928,571| | 42,881,078 - (64.239)| 42,816,839
17,616,725 - (1,265,020)|| 16,351,705| | 17,815,867 - (1,495,398) | 16,320,469
125,882,687 - (167,136)(125,715,551| | 93251,484 - (204,160)|| 93,047,324
4,000,008 - (14,598)|| 3,985,410/ | 3000017 - (10927)| 2,989,090
2,785,332 (342,757)|| (373,481)|| 2,069,094 | 2,596,504 (344,000) (93/489)| 2,159,015
215,049 (42,806) 19,492 191,735 215,049 (35,063) 29,450 209,436
214,608,774 (385,563) (1,981,145) 212,242,066 159,759,999 (379,063) (1,838,763) 157,542,173
29,678,201 - - 29,678,201 25,585 - - 25,585
11,343,755 - - 11,343,755| | 16,744,421 - - 16,744,421
77,708 (77,708) - - 77,708 (77,708) - -

- - - - 450,000 - - 450,000
224,235 - - 224,235 224,235 - - 224,235
858,949 (489,641) - 369,308 858,997 (416,445) - 442,552

42,182,848 (567,349) - 41,615,499 18,380,946 (494,153) - 17,886,793
256,791,622 (952,912) (1,981,145) 253,857,565 178,140,945 (873216) (1,838,763) 175,428,966
2022 2021
COSt. / Provision Surplus / Carrying COSt. / Provision Surplus / Carrying

Amortised for . Amortised for ‘
L (Deficit) Value . (Deficit) Value
cost diminution cost diminution
-------------------------- (Rupees in '000)

93,787,174 - (180,402)|| 93,606,772|| 42,906,663 - (64,239)|| 42,842,424
154,843,167 - (1,432,155)(|153,411,012]|127811,772 - (1,699,558)| 126,112,214
4,000,008 - (14,598)|| 3,985,410|| 3,000017 - (10927)|| 2,989,090
252,630,349 - (1,627,155) 251,003,194 173,718,452 - (1,774,724) 171,943,728
2,785,332|| (342,757) (373,481)|| 2,069,094|| 2596504 (344,000) (93/489)|| 2,159,015

77,708 (77,708) - - 77,708 (77,708) - -
2,863,040  (420,465) (373,481) 2,069,094 2674212 (421,708) (93/489) 2,159,015
224,235 - - 224,235 224,235 - - 224,235
858,949/ (489,641) - 369,308 858,997 (416,445) - 442,552
1,083,184  (489,641) - 593,543 1,083,232 (416,445) - 666,787
116,049 (42,806) (4,269) 68,974 116,049 (35,063) 19,010 99,996
99,000 - 23,760 122,760 99,000 - 10,440 109,440
215,049 (42,806) 19,491 191,734 215,049 (35,063) 29,450 209,436
- - - - 450,000 - - 450,000
256,791,622 (952,912) (1,981,145) 253,857,565 178,140,945 (873216) (1,838,763) 175428966
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9.3

94
94.1

942

Investments given as collateral

Federal government securities

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

Pakistan Investment Bonds 104,589,900 24,987,500
Market Treasury Bills - B

104,589,900 24,987,500
Provision for diminution in value of investments
Opening balance 873,216 811,727
Charge / reversals
Charge for the year 80,939 87,342
Reversals for the year - -
Reversal on disposals (1,243) (25,853)
Transfers - net 79,696 61,489
Amounts written off - -
Closing Balance 952,912 873,216
Particulars of classified debt securities
(Category of classification)

Non
performing performing Provision
investments investments
Category of classification
(Rupees in '000)

Domestic
Other assets especially mentioned - -
Substandard - -
Doubtful - _
Loss 971,115 873216
Total 971,115 873,216

9.4.2.1 The Group have availed the benefit of forced sale value of collateral against non-performing investment on the basis
of the instructions of the State Bank of Pakistan. Had the benefit not been taken by the Group, provision against non-
performing investment would have been higher by Rs. 24.7 million (2021: Rs.97.9 million). The resultant increase
in profit due to FSV benefit taken will not be available for distribution as cash and stock dividend to shareholders.

9.5

Quality of Available for Sale Securities

Particulars regarding quality of Available for Sale (AFS) securities

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed
Pakistan Investment Bonds

Market Treasury Bills

Government of Pakistan - ljarah Sukuk

Shares - Listed Companies
Refinery

Fertilizer

Cement

Power Generation & Distribution
Oil & Gas Marketing Companies
Commercial Banks

149

2022

2021

Cost

(Rupees in '000)

143,499,412 11,067,351
64,108,973 42,881,078
4,000,008 3,000017
211,608,393 156,948,446
7,682 7,682
531,870 628,710
63,745 63,745
364,285 267,863
597,630 499,881
1,220,120 [,128,623
2,785,332 2,596,504



Other investments (Mutual Funds)
Listed

AM2+

AA | AA-

A+ A-

Equity Securities - Listed Companies
Pakistan Refinery Limited

Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited
Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited
Thatta Cement Company Limited
Nishat Chunian Power Limited

Hub Power Company Limited

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited
Oil & Gas Development Company Limited
Pak Petroleum Limited

Pakistan State Oil Limited

Summit Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan

Bank AlHabib Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

United Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Silk Bank Limited

2022 2021

Cost

(Rupees in '000)

99,000 99,000
28,459 28,459
87,590 87,590
215,049 215,049

214,608,774 159,759,999

7,682 7,682
280,283 405,573
186,585 158,136

65,002 65,002
63,745 63,745
201,358 154,068
162,925 113,795
164,142 141,307
129,401 129,401
119,384 95,715
132,476 95,451
52,228 38,007
305,509 305,509
233,102 315716
39,007 39,768
85,390 -
205,598 87,726
80,853 70,724
207,721 243,315
62,941 65,864

2,785,332 2,596,504
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2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)
Cost
9.6 Particulars relating to Held to Maturity securities

Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed
Pakistan Investment Bonds 11,343,755 6,744,421
Market Treasury Bills 29,678,201 25,585

41,021,956 16,770,006
Preference Shares - Unlisted Company
Al-Arabia Sugar Mills Ltd 77,708 77,708
Non Government Debt Securities
Listed
Unrated 224,235 224235
Un-listed
AA 119,785 119,832
BBB+ 224,820 224,821
Unrated 514,344 514,344

858,949 858,997

Term deposit accounts
Microfinance Banks - 450,000

42,182,849 18,380,946

9.6.1 The market value of securities classified as held-to-maturity as at December 31,2022 amounted to Rs. 40,297.18 million
(December 31,2021: Rs.18,277.89 million).

9.7  the Bank has requested the SBP to allow reclassification of PIB's from AFS to HTM category on book value.
Reclassification request did not acceded, however SBP allowed Sindh Bank to stagger its mark to market losses
of PIB AFS portfolio on quarterly basis @ 25% starting from September 30, 2022 and to completed by June 30,
2023.

10 ADVANCES Performing Non Performing Total

Note 2022 2021 2022 202 | 2022 2021
(Rupees '000)

Loans, cash credits, agriculture,
running finances etc. 30,047,225|/25,697,729|134,567,552|137,075,254||64,6 14,777 62,772,983

Commaodity finance 0.2 | 5,205,042|| 8,195,361 - - 5,205,042|| 8,19536]
Net investment in finance lease 10.3 538,713|| 1,084,150 420,881 321,528 959,594/ 1,405,678

Islamic financing and related assets
Diminishing musharakah financing 104 | 1,021,768/| 1,191,226 11,898 14,127]] 1,033,666/ 1,205,353
ljarah financing under IFAS 2 10.5 11,371 23,159 - - 11,371 23,159
36,824,119 36,191,625 35,000,331 37410909 71,824,450 73,602,534

Bills discounted and purchased
(excluding market treasury bills)

Payable in Pakistan 386,782|| 375,343 - - 386,782 375,343
Payable outside Pakistan 5,738 - 3,405 3,405 9,143 3,405
392,520 375,343 3,405 3,405 395,925 378,748
Advances - gross 10.1 37,216,639 36566968 35,003,736 37414314 72,220,375 73,981,282
Provision for non-performing advances
- Specific provision - - 1126,192,048/|124,343,891 (26,192,048 ||24,343,89 |
- Specific provision on Leasing portfolio - - 903,104 896,640|| 903,104 896,640
- General provision against consumer
and small enterprise advances 19,997 12,124 - - 19,997 12,124
19,997 12,124 27,095,152 25240531 27,115,149 25252,655

Advances - Net of Provision 37,196,642 36554844 7,908,584 12,173,783 45,105,226 48,728,627




10.1  Particulars of advances (Gross)
In local currency
In foreign currencies

10.2
commercial banks.

10.3  Net investment in finance lease

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

72,220,375

73,981,282

72,220,375

73,981,282

This represents commodity financing provided to Food Department, Government of Sindh, in syndication with other

2022 2021
Over oneyear  Over five Over oneyear  Over five
Not later th: Not later th
otiater than and less than years and Total ot fater than and less than years and Total
one year one year
five years above five years above
(Rupees in '000)
Lease rental 326,395 538,791 - 865,186 527,296 677997 - 1,205,293
Residual value 217,996 19,886 - 237,882 84,187 278,181 - 362,368
Minimum lease payments 544,391 558,677 - 1,103,068 611,483 956,178 - 1,567,661
Un-earned income for future
periods (114,407) (29,067) - (143,474) (80,310) (81,673) - (161,983)
Present value of minimum
lease payments 429,984 529,610 - 959,594 531,173 874,505 - 1,405,678

10.3.1 This represents portfolio taken on the books of the Bank due to amalgamation of Sindh Leasing Company Limited.

10.4 Diminishing musharakah financing 2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)
Advance against musharakah 8,526 [,.816
Diminishing musharakah 1,025,140 1,203,537
1,033,666 1,205,353
10.5 ljarah financing under IFAS 2
Net book value of assets [0.5.1 11,371 23,159
Advance against ljarah financing
11,371 23,159
10.5.1 Particulars of assets under ljarah 2022
Cost Accumulated depreciation
Asat Additions/ Asat Asat Charge/ Asat B°;': ‘;i'“e des::z;gon
January 01 Settled December 31 January 0l Settled December 31 December 3 %
(Rupees in '000)
Vehicle 37,866 (21,642) 16,224 28,341 (14,322) 14,019 2,205  Over the
Plant and machinery 28,000 - 28,000 14,366 4,468 18,834 9,166 ljarah period
Total 65,866 (21,642) 44,224 42,707 (9,854) 32,853 11,371
2021
Cost Accumulated depreciation
. Book value Rate of
As at Additions/ As at As at Charge/ As at As at depreciation
January Ol Settled December 31 January Ol Settled December 31 December 31 %
(Rupees in '000)
Vehicle 42,595 (4729) 37,866 24,009 4,332 28,341 9525 Over the
Plant and machinery 48,000 (20,000) 28,000 28,584 (14,218) 14,366 13,634 ljarah period
Total 90,595 (24,729) 65,866 52,593 (9,886) 42,707 23,159
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2022 2021

10.5.2 Future ljarah payments receivable (Rupees in '000)

Not later than one year 11,371 8,586
Later than one year and not later than five years - 14,573
11,371 23,159

10.6 Advances include Rs.35,003.74 (2021: Rs. 37,414.31) million which have been placed under non-performing status

as detailed below:
2022 2021

Category of Classification Non Non

performing Provision performing Provision

loans loans
Note = eeceeeeeeee- (Rupees in '000) --------------

Domestic
Other Assets Especially Mentioned 10.6.1 52,185 - 29,037 -
Substandard 12,914 519 21,655 2,007
Doubtful 207,444 27,975 895,204 299,581
Loss 34,731,193 27,066,658 36468418 24,938,943
Total 35,003,736 27,095,152 37414314 2524053

10.6.1 This represents non-performing portfolio of agricultural and small and medium enterprise financing classified as
OAEM as per the requirements of the Prudential Regulations for Agricultural and Small and Medium Enterprise
Financing issued by the State Bank of Pakistan.

10.6.2 The Group has availed the benefit of forced sale value (FSV) on plant and machinery under charge and mortgaged
residential and commercial property (land and building only) held as collateral against non-performing advances
on the basis of instructions of the State Bank of Pakistan. Had the benefit not been taken by the Group, specific
provision against non-performing advances would have been higher by Rs.7,742.44 million (2021: Rs. | 1,680.22
million). The resultant increase in profit due to FSV benefit taken will not be available for distribution as cash and
stock dividend to shareholders.

10.6.3 Particulars of provision against advances

2022 2021
Specific General Total Specific General Total
(Rupees in '000)
Opening balance 25,240,531 12,124 25,252,655 19,501,319 7,488 19,508,807
Exchange adjustments - - - - - -
Charge for the year 2,726,401 7,873 || 2,734,274 || 5985,775 4,636 || 5990411
Reversals (860,610) - (860,610)|| (334,983) - (334,983)
1,865,791 7,873 1,873,664 5,650,792 4,636 5,655,428
Amounts charged off -
agriculture loans (4,478) - (4,478) 93,301 - 93,301
Net charge / (reversal)
during the year 1,861,313 7,873 1,869,186 5744093 4,636 5,748,729
Fair value adjustment on net
assets of Sindh Leasing Co. Ltd - - - 1,097 - 1,097
Amounts written off (6,692) - (6,692) (5,978) - (5978)
Closing balance 27,095,152 19,997 27,115,149 25240531 12,124 25252,655
10.6.3.1 Particulars of provision against advances
2022 2021
Specific General Total Specific General Total
(Rupees in '000)

In local currency 27,095,152 19,997 || 27,1 15,149|| 25,240,53 [2,124 125,252,655
In foreign currencies - - - - - -

27,095,152 19,997 27,115,149 25240531 12,124 25252,655




10.6.3.2 General provision against consumer loans represents provision maintained at an amount equal to 1% (2021: %)
of the fully secured performing portfolio and 4% (2021: 4%) of the unsecured performing portfolio as required
by the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP. General provision against Small Enterprises financing represents
provision maintained at an amount equal to 0% (2021: 0%) of the fully secured performing portfolio and 1% of
the unsecured performing portfolio as required by the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP.

1.2

1.3

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)
FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress 1.1 26,725 73,166
Property and equipment .3 1,340,419 1,282,018
Right of use assets [1.6 2,746,552 [,878,36 1
4,113,696 3,233,545
Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 4,325 4,396
Equipment 2,041 1,541
Advances to suppliers 20,359 67,229
26,725 73,166
Movement in Capital work-in-progress
Opening balance 73,166 24,900
Transfer in 211,216 53,701
Transfer out (257,657) (105,435)
Write off - -
Closing balance 26,725 73,166
Property and Equipment 2022
. Computer
imL;:;\?e:"lo;:ts ail::lrzgr: fe and office Vehicles Total
equipment
(Rupees in '000)
At January 1,2022
Cost / Revalued amount 1,327,578 565,447 1,739,565 390,935 4,023,525
Accumulated depreciation 512,703 445,688 1,536,232 246,884 2,741,507
Net book value 814,875 119,759 203,333 144,051 1,282,018
Year ended December 31,2022
Opening net book value 814,875 119,759 203,333 144,051 1,282,018
Additions 67,009 6,623 99,688 180,341 353,661
Movement in surplus on assets revalued
during the year - - - - -
Acquisitions through business
combinations - - - - -
Impairment loss recognised in the
profit and loss account - net - - - - -
Disposals 711) (10) (24) 617) (1,362)
Depreciation charge (67,172) (41,611) (106,423) (78,692) (293,898)
Exchange rate adjustments - - - - -
Other adjustments / transfers - - - - -
Closing net book value 814,001 84,761 196,574 245,083 1,340,419
At December 31,2022
Cost / Revalued amount 1,393,502 571,829 1,825,281 513,316 4,303,928
Accumulated depreciation 579,501 487,068 1,628,707 268,233 2,963,509
Net book value 814,001 84,761 196,574 245,083 1,340,419
Rate of depreciation (percentage) 5.00% 10.00%  33.33% & 20.0% 20.00%
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2021
. Computer
e e, ndofie  Vehides  Tou
equipment
(Rupees in '000)

At January 1,202
Cost / Revalued amount 1,316,822 561,644 1,688,779 389,718 3,956,963
Accumulated depreciation 440,762 393,197 1,436,575 246,347 2,516,881
Net book value 876,060 168,447 252,204 143,371 1,440,082
Year ended December 31,2021
Opening net book value 876,060 168,447 252,204 143,371 1,440,082
Additions ['1,456 4,393 60,219 58,228 134,296
Movement in surplus on assets revalued

during the year - - - - -
Acquisitions through business combinations - - - - -
Impairment loss recognised in the

profit and loss account - net - - - - -
Disposals (392) (27) (147) (30 (597)
Depreciation charge (65952) (53,054) (108,941) (57511) (285,458)
Exchange rate adjustments - - - - -
Other adjustments / transfers (6,297) - (2) (6) (6,305)
Closing net book value 814,875 119,759 203,333 144,051 1,282,018
At December 31,2021
Cost / Revalued amount 1,327,578 565447 1,739,565 390,935 4,023,525
Accumulated depreciation 512,703 445,688 1,536,232 246,884 2,741,507
Net book value 814,875 119,759 203,333 144,051 1,282,018
Rate of depreciation (percentage) 5.00% 10.00% 33.33% & 20.0% 20.00%

1.4 The cost of fully depreciated furniture and fixture, office and computer equipment still in use amounted to Rs. 1,749.28
million (2021: Rs.1,476.54 million).

I 1.4 Disposal
Descrintion Cost Net Book Sale Mode Of Parttculars of The
P Value Proceeds Disposal Purchaser
-------------------- (Rupees in '000)-----=-=e-muumnun--
Computers & Office Equipment
ltems with WDV of below Rs. 250,000/-
and cost of less than Rs. 1,000,000/- 15297 746 1,922 Negotiation Various
Motor Vehicles
Toyota Corolla XL 1,538 1,678 Tender Abdul Razzaq
......... do i | 664 - As Per HR Policy  Ishfaque Ahmed Soomro
......... dowii | 644 As Per HR Policy  Riaz Ahmed
Honda Civic 2,588 As Per HR Policy  Syed Nadeem Altaf
Suzuki Cultus 1,129 As Per HR Policy  Tarig Mahmood
......... do i [124 As Per HR Policy  Syed Akram Hussain Zaidi
......... doviii 1,129 As Per HR Policy  Mubasharuddin Khan
......... doiii, 1,250 - - As Per HR Policy  Rana Liaquat Ali Khan
......... do i 1,300 152 152 As Per HR Policy  Syed Sohail Abbas Zaidi




Description

......... do.

[tems with WDV of below Rs. 250,000/-

and cost of less than Rs. ,000,000/-

Cost Net Book Sale Mode Of Parttculars of The
Value Proceeds Disposal Purchaser
-------------------- (Rupees in '000)----==-=-mnumumumnun
1,250 - As Per HR Policy  Shoaib Naseem Khan
1,250 - As Per HR Policy ~ Zahid Mahmood
1,129 - As Per HR Policy  Hagq Nawaz
1,129 - As Per HR Policy  Beverly D'Souza
1,099 - As Per HR Policy  Arshad Abbas Soomro
1,010 - As Per HR Policy  Saima Aziz
1,250 - As Per HR Policy  Muhammad Saleem
1,250 - - As Per HR Policy  Arsalan Sattar
[,144 [53 |72 As Per HR Policy  Muhammad Yousif Kurio
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Syed Armaghan Al
1,054 - As Per HR Policy  Nizar Ali Tharani
1,054 - As Per HR Policy  Badruddin Alam
1,054 - As Per HR Policy  Ghulam Mustafa Shaikh
1,014 - As Per HR Policy  Karam Hussain Mallah
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Noor Mustafa Barohi
[,104 |84 |84 As Per HR Policy ~ Wajid Al
[,014 - - As Per HR Policy  Khushhal
1,054 - As Per HR Policy  Zeeshan Mirza
1,054 - As Per HR Policy  Omar Wagar
1,014 - As Per HR Policy  Muhammad Arif Ashraf
1,054 - As Per HR Policy ~ Zeeshan Zulfigar
1,054 - As Per HR Policy  Shakeel Ahmed
1,014 - As Per HR Policy  Intikhab Ashraf
1,054 - As Per HR Policy  Bu Ali Khan
1,034 - As Per HR Policy  Imran Khalid
1,054 - As Per HR Policy  Mohsin Ali Rahu
1,009 - As Per HR Policy  Muhammad Awais Baig
1,054 - As Per HR Policy  Syed Yasir Abbas
1,054 - As Per HR Policy  Naveed Hussain
1,054 - As Per HR Policy  Adnan Alam
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Sufia Laghari
[,104 129 129 As Per HR Policy  Khush Muhammad Ansari
1,054 - - As Per HR Policy  Syed Ahsan Al
264 757 Tender Various
7,648 - - As Per HR Policy  Various
57,959 617 3,071
73,256 1,363 4,993
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2022 202 |

(Rupees in '000)

1.6 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

12.1

Year ended December 31

Opening net book value 1,878,361 1,849,749
Additions 1,537,597 712,749
Disposals - -
Depreciation charge (669,406) (684,137)
Closing net book value 2,746,552 1,878,361

At December 31

Cost 4,945,865 3923,097
Accumulated depreciation (2,199,313) (2,044,736)
Net book value 2,746,552 1,878,361

Rate of depreciation (percentage) 10% to 100% 10% to 100%

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - Computer Software

At January |

Cost 380,220 298,694
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 263,549 227,540
Net book value 116,671 71,154
Year ended December 31

Opening net book value 116,671 71,154
Additions:

- directly purchased 43,584 81,526
Disposals - -
Amortisation charge (36,232) (36,009)
Other adjustments - -
Closing net book value 124,022 116,671
At December 31,

Cost 423,803 380,220
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 299,781 263,549
Net book value 124,022 116,671
Rate of amortisation (percentage) 20% 20%
Useful life 5 year 5 year

The cost of fully amortised software still in use amounted to Rs.227.23 million (2021: Rs. 188.78 million) .




DEFERRED TAX ASSETS-NET

Deductible Temporary Differences on

- Provision against advances - general

- Tax losses carried forward

- Provision for diminution in the value of investments
- Deficit on revaluation of investments

- Accelerated tax depreciation - right to use assets

- Others

Taxable Temporary Differences on

- Accelerated tax depreciation - tangible fixed assets
- Others

- Net investment in Lease Finance

- Accelerated tax amortization - intangible assets

Deductible Temporary Differences on

- Provision against advances - general

- Tax losses carried forward

- Provision for diminution in the value of investments
- Deficit on revaluation of investments

- Accelerated tax depreciation - right to use assets

- Others

Taxable Temporary Differences on

- Accelerated tax depreciation - tangible fixed assets
- Others

- Net investment in Lease Finance

- Accelerated tax amortization - intangible assets

2022

At Jan I, Recognised  Recognised At Dec 31,

2022 in P&L A/C in OCI 2022

(Rupees in '000)
8,424,857 692,962 - 9,117,819
3,319,583 461,689 1,717 3,782,989
247,735 (152,882) - 94,853
717,118 - 55,529 772,647
(11,049) (1,253) - (12,302)
714,855 356,157 - 1,071,012
13,413,099 1,356,673 57,246 14,827,018
(21,330) 15,920 - (5,410)
(197) (15,401) - (15,598)
(131,859) - - (131,859)
(5,927) (6,005) - (11,932)
(159,313) (5,486) - (164,799)
13,253,786 1,350,187 57,246 14,662,219
202 |

Atlan I, Recognised  Recognised At Dec 31,

2021 in P&L A/C in OCl 2021

(Rupees in '000)

6,461,736 1,963,121 - 8,424,857
3,118,099 201,993 (509) 3,319,583
94,853 152,882 - 247,735
261,175 - 455,943 717,118
(8,730) (2,319) - (11,049)
438,871 275,984 - 714,855
10,366,004 2,591,661 455434 13,413,099
(40491) 19,161 - (21,330)
(197) - - (197)
(131,859) - - (131,859)
(7,673) 1,746 - (5927)
(180,220) 20,907 - (159,313)
10,185,784 2,612,568 455434 13,253,786
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13.1

14.1

16.1

In this respect, the management of the Group have prepared projections which have been approved by the Board
of Directors of the Group. The projections involve certain key assumptions underlying the estimation of future taxable
profits, such as cost to income ratio of the Group, deposit composition, growth of deposits and advances, investment
returns, expected recoveries of classified advances, etc. The management believes that it is probable that the Group
will be able to achieve the profits projected in the projections and consequently the deferred tax asset will be fully
realized in the future.

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)

OTHER ASSETS

Income/ Mark-up accrued in local currency 4.1 4,331,108 3,107,249
Accrued commission income 19,730 7234
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 195,156 101,478
Receivable against sale of shares 56,982 268,770
Unrealised gain on forward forex revaluation - net - 130,799
Insurance premium receivable against agriculture loans 9,841 12,565
Stationery and stamps on hand 18,966 7,984
Dividend receivable - -
Receivable against | Link ATM settlement account 305,152 -
Advance Taxation - net 50,834 64,901
Insurance claims receivable 3,375 16,252
Other receivables 56,909 53,735

5,048,053 3,770,967

Income/ Mark-up accrued in local currency

- On loans and advances 1,697,226 753,170
- On investments 2,615,414 2349910
- Others 18,468 4,169

4,331,108 3,107,249

BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan 726,148 624,726
Outside Pakistan - -
726,148 624,726
BORROWINGS
Secured
Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan
- Under export refinance scheme 16.2 1,874,835 [,695919
- Under long term finance facility 16.3 59,879 89,819

Repurchase agreement borrowings - Secured
- State Bank of Pakistan(SBP) 164 105,000,000 || 25,000,000
- Other commercial banks / DFIs

105,000,000 25,000,000
Unsecured

- State Bank of Pakistan(SBP) [6.5 310,000 750,000
- Other microfinance bank

107,244,714 27,535,738

Particulars of borrowings with respect to Currencies
In local currency 107,244,714 27535738
In foreign currencies

107,244,714 27,535,738




16.2 These represent borrowings from SBP under export refinance scheme at the rates ranging from 8% to 10% (2021:
1.00% to 2.00%) per annum having maturity upto six months.

16.3 These represent borrowings from SBP under long term finance facility at the rate of 3% (2021: 3.00%) per annum having

maturity upto 5 years.

16.4 These represent repurchase agreement borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan at the rates ranging from 15.22% to
16.17% (2021: 10.12%) per annum maturing on February 24, 2023 (2021: February 18, 2022). The carrying value of
securities given as collateral against these borrowings is given in note 9.3.

16.5 This represent borrowings from SBP under LOC fund of Microfinance Bank Ltd at the rate of 6 month kibor +1% / -
196 (2021: 6 month kibor +1% / -1%) per annum having maturity upto 5 years.

17 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers

Current deposits

Savings deposits

Term deposits

Margin and other deposits

Financial Institutions
Current deposits

Savings deposits

Term deposits

Margin and other deposits

17.1 Composition of deposits

- Individuals

- Government (Federal and Provincial)

- Public Sector Entities
- Banking Companies

- Non-Banking Financial Institutions

- Private Sectors

2022 2021
én Local In Foreign Total In Local In Foreign Total
urrency currencies Currency  currencies
Rupees in '000

57,625,139 538,290 || 58,163,429 | 61,100,484 393,151 || 61,493,635
98,451,962 1,009,539 || 99,461,501|| 92,107,801 946,331 || 93,054,132
62,121,959 435,818 || 62,557,777| 58,783,628 411,867| 59,195495
480,506 - 480,506 563.852 - 563,852
218,679,566 1,983,647 220,663,213 212555765 [,751,349 214,307,114
53,242 24 53,266 47,372 19 47,391
897,189 - 897,189 [,657,129 - [,657,129
1,899,000 - 1,899,000 [,711,000 - [,711,000
120,044 - 120,044 120,044 - 120,044
2,969,475 24 2,969,499 3535545 19 3535564
221,649,041 1,983,671 223,632,712 216,091,310 [,751,368 217,842,678

2022 2021

(Rupees in '000)

33,467,773 24,032,190
150,415,341 153,369,167
3,580,365 2,709,765
264,863 258,453
2,648,298 3277111
33,256,072 34,195992
223,632,712 217,842,678

17.2 The SBP has set up a fully owned subsidiary — Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC), with an aim to provide protection
to small depositors of banks operating in Pakistan. The Corporation has been set up through promulgation of the
Deposit Protection Corporation Act, 2016, (the Act) and commenced its business with effect from Ol June 2018.
Membership of the Deposit Protection Corporation is compulsory for all banks scheduled under sub-section (2) of
section 37 of the State Bank of Pakistan Act, 1956. Under the arrangement, the objective of DPC would be to protect
the depositors to the extent of the guaranteed amount, in case a member bank is notified as a failed institution by SBP.

The framework provided by DPC lays down the methodology for arriving at Eligible Deposits, as well as determining
the premium amount payable under the regulations. The premium amount so determined are required to be deposited
by all banks with DPC on a quarterly basis.

As at 31 December 2022, the deposits eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements amounted to Rs. 39,403.1 |
million (2021: Rs. 32,255.45 million) and premium paid amounted to Rs.51.61 million (2021 : Rs. 46.01 million).
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)
18  OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency 4,776,890 3,059,322
Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currency 3,485 2,947
Accrued expenses 282,605 125,093
Net defined benefit liability 107,192 98,875
Payable against | Link ATM settlement account - 47,032
Provision for compensated absences 250,603 224,033
Payable to employees' provident fund 784 929
Payable against purchase of operating fixed assets 44,089 13,660
Payable against purchase of shares 309,248 205,890
Retention money 56,547 60,701
Federal excise duty / sales tax on services payable 1,835 4,599
Lease liability 18.1 2,896,585 2,129,702
Forex Fwd Reval Impact 692,112 -
Withholding tax payable 23,742 37,116
Acceptances - -
Security deposit against leasess 18.2 237,882 362,368
Others 395,962 264975

10,079,561 6,637,242

18.1 Lease liability

Opening balance 2,129,702 2,141,076
Impact of adoption of IFRS 16 - -
Additions / renewals 1,539,139 723,384
Borrowing cost 235,296 233,766
Payments (1,007,552) (968,524)
Closing balance 2,896,585 2,129,702
Current lease liability 901,394 942,341
Non current lease liability 1,995,191 [,187,361

2,896,585 2,129,702

18.2 These represent interest free security deposits received from lessees against lease contracts of Sindh Leasing Company
Limited was amalgamated into the Bank, and are adjustable against residual value of leased assets at the expiry of
the respective lease terms.

19 SHARE CAPITAL-NET

19.1 Authorised capital

2022 2021 2022 2021
Number of shares Number of shares
3,000,000,000 2,800,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 30,000,000 28,000,000

19.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up fully paid in Cash
share capital

2,552,442,817 1,971,013,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.|0 each 25,524,428 19.710,130
400,000,000 200,000,000 Right shares of Rs.10 each issued during the year 4,000,000 2,000,000

- 381,429,817 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 issued as consideration of amalgamation - 3,814,298
2,952,442,817 2,552,442,817 29,524,428 25,524,428

19.3 The Government of Sindh, through its Finance Department, owns 99.97% ordinary shares of the Bank.




20

21

21.1

22

23

23.1

23.2

23.2.1

2022 2021

SHARES DEPOSIT MONEY (Rupees in '000)
Opening balance 4,000,000 2,000,000
Shares deposit money - 4,000,000
Right shares issued during the year (4,000,000) (2,000,000)
- 4,000,000

To meet the CAR requirement, the sponsor of the Group, GoS has injected Rs 4 billion as an 'advance against issuance
of shares’ to support the Group's Capital Adequacy requirement, with the condition that this amount shall be returned
upon reversal of provision by the Bank against the Non Performing Advances. In this regard the Group has requested
SBP to approve this condition of sponsors.

2022 2021
PROPOSED ORDINARY SHARES TO BE ISSUED ON AMALGAMATION  '\Ot€ (Rupees in '000)
Opening balance - 3,814,298

Shares issued during the year 211 - (3,814,298)

As per the Scheme of Amalgamation during the year, the Bank issued 381,429,817 ordinary shares of the Bank to
the sole shareholder (Government of Sindh) of Sindh Leasing Company Limited on the basis of the swap ratio of |
(one) ordinary share of Sindh Bank Limited for every 0.9176 ordinary shares of Sindh Leasing Company Limited, as
consideration for the merger.

2022 2021

DEFICIT ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF DEFERRED TAX  Note (Rupees in '000)
Available-for-sale securities
Federal government securities (1,627,156) (1,774,724)
Fully paid ordinary shares - listed (373,481) (93,489)
Units of mutual funds (units / certificates) 19,492 29,450

(1,981,145) (1,838,763)
Related deferred taxation 772,645 717,116

(1,208500)  (1,121,647)

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

-Guarantees 23.1 4,475,012 4,635,678
-Commitments 232 167,300,904 52,600,08 |
-Other contingent liabilities

171,775,916 57,235,759

Guarantees:
Financial guarantees 695,773 1,059,301
Performance guarantees 2,684,368 151,016
Other guarantees 1,094,871 3,425,361
4,475,012 4,635,678
Commitments:
Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions
- letters of credit 549,961 536,689
Commitments in respect of:
- forward foreign exchange contracts 23.2.1 32,362,486 12,941,129
- forward lending, borrowings and credits 2322 | 134,388,457 39,122,263
Other commitments

167,300,904 52,600,081

Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts

Purchase 16,669,577 6,740,279
Sale 15,692,909 6,200,850
32,362,486 12,941,129
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2322

23.2.2.1

233

23.3.1

2332

2333

2334

2335

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)
Commitments in respect of forward lending, borrowings and credits
Forward repurchase agreement borrowing 106,368,612 25,103,970
Forward resale agreement lending 19,984,859 5,382,772
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and
other commitments to lend 232.2.1 8,034,986 8,635,521

134,388,457 39,122,263

Commitments to extend credit

The Group makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but these are revocable
commitments that do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn.

Contingencies

The Income Tax returns of the Bank have been filed up to the tax year 2022 (accounting year ended December
31,2021) and amendment of deemed assessment were carried out till tax year 2020, whereby certain disallowances
to the taxable income were made.

Appeals against amended orders were filed before Commissioner Inland Revenue Authority (CIRA), these appeals
decided in bank’s favor and thereby deleted the impugned demands.

With respect to Bank's operations in Azad Jammu & Kashmir (AJK), bank has filed income tax returns upto tax
year 2022 (accounting year ended December 31, 2021) with the tax authorities of AJK. The Commissioner has
issued amended assessment orders upto tax year 2019.The Bank has filed appeals which are pending at CIRA.

Government of Sindh through the Sindh WWF Act, 2014, has introduced levy of SWWHF. As per Sindh WWF Act,
2014, banks / Financial institutions are included in definition of “Industrial Establishment" Sindh WWF is imposed
at the rate of 2% to the total income. Since the Bank is trans provincial entity and the operations of the Bank in
also in other Provinces and in Azad Jammu & Kashmir as well, the Bank along with other banks have filed a suit
before Honorable Sindh High Court and challenged the vires of SWWF, which is pending for adjudication.

Sindh Leasing Company Limited - Amalgamated

The Income Tax returns of the Ex-Sindh Leasing Company Limited have been filed up to the tax year 2021
(accounting year ended December 31, 2020, interim period). ACIR initiated proceedings under section 122(5A)
of the Ordinance which were finalized through order, increasing taxable income to Rs. 40,242,222 and raising
additional tax demand of Rs. 2,974,42 1. The tax demand was duly paid under protest.

Appeal was filed before the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIRA) on March 22,2022 which was decided
in Bank’s favour and thereby deleting the whole of the impugned tax demand, accordingly, the refund application
filed.

Withholding tax monitoring proceedings of tax year 2015, 2018 and 2019 were initiated under section |76 of the
income tax ordinance, 2001 read with rule 44 of income tax rules, 2002 by tax authorities, however, order not
yet passed.

Significant Matters

Land Acquisition Officer Matiari and Deputy Commissioner Naushahro Feroze maintained accounts with two
branches of the bank located at Matiari since October 14,2022 and at Naushahro Feroze since December 31,
2014 respectively. The designated district government official(s) have made cash withdrawals to the tune of Rs. 5.7
Billion from the respective accounts as singly authorized signatory for land acquisition of Sukkur - Hyderabad
Motorway (M-6). The matter is under investigation by the government agencies with simultaneous recovery of cash
in process. The legal counsel has opined that the Bank has no financial exposure in this matter.




2022 2021

23.3.6 Other Contingent Liabilities (Rupees in "000)

Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 792,500 792,500

These mainly represent counter claims filed by the ex-employees of the Bank for damages purported to be sustained
by them consequent to the termination from the Bank's employment. Based on legal advice, the management is
confident that the matters will be decided in Bank's favour and the possibility of any outcome against the Bank is

remote and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.

2022 2021
24 MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EARNED Note (Rupees in '000)
On Loans and advances 24| 5,596,350 4,392,768
On Investments 29,816,335 17,032,008
On Lendings to financial institutions 1,331,570 639,863
On Balances with banks 98,700 105421
36,842,955 22,170,060
24.1  This includes income from Leasing business amounting to Rs.63.85 (2021: | 1 6.56) million.
25 MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EXPENSED
Deposits 16,424,938 10,344,503
Borrowings 14,524,511 6,403,756
Lease liability against right of use assets 231,927 233,765
Others - -
31,181,376 16,982,024
26 FEE & COMMISSION INCOME
Branch banking customer fees 62,642 46,706
Consumer finance related fees 2,189 [,186
Card related fees (debit cards) 213,977 162,838
Commission on trade 59,043 56,026
Commission on guarantees 51,888 41,787
Credit related fees 17,000 18,779
Commission on remittances including home remittances 20,223 23,772
Others 874 864
427,836 351,958
27 GAIN / (LOSS) ON SECURITIES
Realised 27.1 (157,712) (6,435)
Unrealised - held for trading - -
(157,712) (6,435)
27.1 Realised (loss) / gain on:
Federal Government Securities (22,658) 45,857
Shares of listed companies (135,054) (52,292)
Units of mutual funds - -
Others investments - -
(157,712) (6,/435)
28 OTHER INCOME
Incidental charges 799 799
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 3,630 284
Rent on premises shared 1,130 [,140
Prequalification application fee for tender 26 23
Godown charges 250 275
Others 1,730 -
7,565 2,521
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)
29 OPERATING EXPENSES

Total compensation expense 29.2 3,764,016 3,073,628
Property expense
Rent & taxes 32,373 19,870
Insurance 54,990 36,573
Utilities cost 408,588 274,792
Security 402,784 342,836
Repairs & maintenance 26,018 25,116
Depreciation 67,000 65,952
Depreciation- right of use assets 669,406 684,137

1,661,159 1,449,276
Information technology expenses
Software maintenance 128,645 67,544
Hardware maintenance 86,167 71,515
Depreciation 18,726 26,578
Amortisation 36,232 36,009
Network charges 14,700 [ 1,088
Others 45,935 51,492

330,405 264,226

Other operating expenses
Directors' fees and allowances 18,380 [1,545
Fees and allowances to Shariah Board 4,018 4,354
Legal & professional charges 28,501 57,205
Travelling & conveyance 52,649 40,050
NIFT clearing charges 33,872 24,732
Depreciation 208,171 192,928
Training & development 3,180 1,532
Postage & courier charges 25,814 24,640
Communication 130,312 [23,969
Stationery & printing 110,796 89,771
Marketing, advertisement & publicity 56,813 44,930
Donations 29.3 50,003 -
Auditor's Remuneration 294 13,441 [3,139
Repairs & maintenance 131,273 106,835
Brokerage and commission 9,280 12,239
Entertainment Expenses 62,650 54,374
Premium of deposit protection fund 51,609 46,007
Fees and subscription 75,647 66,182
Insurance expenses 16,760 3,177
Others 161,251 162,055

1,244,420 1,089,664

7,000,000 5,876,794

29.1  Total cost for the year included in other operating expenses relating to Janitorial outsourced activities is Rs. | 12.52
million (2021: 106.81 million). These expenses represent payments made to companies incorporated in Pakistan.




29.2

293

294

30

31

32

32.1

Total compensation expense

Managerial Remuneration

- Fixed

- Variable Cash Bonus / Awards etc.
Charge for defined benefit plan
Contribution to defined contribution Plan
Rent & house maintenance

Utilities

Medical

Conveyance

Employee old age benefits contribution
Leave Fare Assistance Allowances
Leave Encashment

Staff Insurances

Others staff

Details of donations

Note

Distribution of tents amounting to Rs. 50 mn was Provided under provincial Disaster Management Authority Program

in the province of Sindh
Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee
Fee for other statutory certifications

Special certifications and sundry advisory services

Out-of-pocket expenses

OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan

Others
PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET

Provisions / diminution in value of investments

Provisions against loans & advances
General provision

Net provision during the year
Fixed assets written off

Bad debts written off directly

TAXATION

Current
Prior years
Deferred

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Loss before tax

Tax on (loss) / income at applicable rates
Effect of prior year on current taxation
Effect of permanent differences

9.4.1

10.6.3

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)

2,363,049 1,873,837
12,349 12,664
104,137 99,431
122,801 104,790
602,965 521,898
123,274 105,444
123,350 105,443
114,356 97,701
17,602 14,889
65,868 12,809
40,905 57,903
69,874 65,594
3,486 1,225
3,764,016 3,073,628

50,003 -
11,083 10,597
1,266 [,134
549 798
543 610
13,441 13,139
9,834 67,640
9,834 67,640
80,939 87,342
1,864,879 5,748,729

4,309 -
1,869,188 5,748,729
2,327 2,297
1,952,454 5,838,368
483,674 294,416
(1,351,187) (2,612,568)
(867,513) (2,318,152)
(2,211,852) (6,018,288)
(862,622) (2,347,132)
(4,891) 28,980
(867,513) (2,318,152)
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33

34

35

36

36.1
37
37.1

37.1.1

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)

BASIC EARNINGS/ (LOSS) PER SHARE

Loss for the year (1,344,339) (3,700,136)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2,580,935,968 2,509,765,672
Basic loss per share (0.52) (1.47)

DILUTED EARNINGS/ (LOSS) PER SHARE

Loss for the year (1,344,339) (3,700,136)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares) 2,580,935,968 2,509,765,672
Diluted loss per share (0.52) (1.47)
2022 2021
Note (Rupees in '000)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Balance with Treasury Banks 6 14,204,082 19,364,832
Balance with other banks 7 2,014,183 1,508,412
16,218,265 20,873,244
2022 2021
------------- (Number) --------------
STAFF STRENGTH
Permanent 2,097 2,082
Temporary / on contractual basis 296 248
Total staff strength 36.1 2,393 2,330

In addition to the above 502 (2021:478) staff from outsourcing service companies were assigned to the Bank.
DEFINED BENEFIT AND CONTRIBUTION PLANS

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a recognised gratuity plan for all its permanent and full time employees in the management
cadre who have completed the minimum qualifying period of three years. Contributions are made to the fund in
accordance with the recommendations of an actuary. Employees are entitled to the benefits under the plan which

comprise of the last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service, subject to completion of minimum three
years services with the Group. The number of employees covered under the schemes are 2,286 (2021:2,135).

Principal actuarial assumptions

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at December 31,2022 using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Following are the significant assumptions used in the actuarial valuation:

2022 2021
-------------- (Percentage) -----------
- Discount rate 14.25% - 14.50% |1.75% - 12.25%
- Expected rate of increase in salaries-short term 10% to 13.5% 10.00% - 10.75%
- Expected rate of increase in salaries-long term 13.25% - 13.50% 10.75% - 11.25%
- Expected return on plan assets 14.25% 12.25%
- Duration (Years) 10.43 10.83

167




37.1.2 Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability

Present value of defined benefit liability
Fair value of plan assets
Payable to defined benefit plan

37.1.3 Movement in net defined benefit liability

Opening balance

Charge to profit and loss during the year
Remeasurement loss recognized in OCl
Bank's contribution

Closing balance

37.1.4 Charge for defined benefit plan

In profit and loss

Current service cost

Interest cost - net

Charge for the year

In other comprehensive income
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligation
Remeasurement loss on plan assets

37.1.5 Changes in present value of defined benefit liability

Opening balance

Current service cost

Interest cost

Past service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation
- Financial assumptions

- Demographic assumptions

- Experience assumptions

Closing balance
37.1.6 Fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets

Bank's contributions

Benefits paid

Actuarial loss on assets - experience assumptions
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

37.1.7 Plan assets comprise
Balance held in bank accounts

Note

37.1.5
37.1.6
37.1.3

37.14
37.14

37.1.7

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

755,215 631,568
(648,024) (532,693)
107,191 98,875
98,875 84,85 |
104,137 99,431
3,822 (556)
(99,643) (84.851)
107,191 98,875
98,171 95,266
5,966 4,165
104,137 99,431
(9,079) (8,498)
12,901 7.942
3,822 (556)
631,568 511,341
98,171 95,266
74,592 51,180
(30,175) (17,721
155 98
(185) -
(9,049) (8.596)
(9,079) (8,498)
765,077 631,568
532,693 426,490
68,626 47016
99,642 84,851
(30,175) (17.722)
(12,901) (7.942)
657,885 532,693
657,885 532,693
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37.1.8

37.1.9

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)
Discount rate (1% variation) 683,211 565910
Future salary growth (1% variation) 842,742 703,673
Future mortality (| year variation) 737,637 612,429

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does
provide an approximation of sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

The expected gratuity expense for the year commencing January 01, 2023 works out to Rs.108.66 million (2022:
Rs. 95.63 million).

37.1.10 Maturity analysis

37.1.11

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation works out to be 10.83 years. Expected benefit
payments for the next five years are:
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

(Rupees in '000)

Expected benefit payments 59,923 47,796 51,385 45,002 73,910
Risks Associated with Defined Benefit Plans
Investment Risks

The risk arises when the actual performance of the investment is lower than expectation. This is managed by formulating
the investment plan in consultation with the trustee and the actuary.

Longevity Risks

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan level
over the entire retiree population.

Salary Increase Risk
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is higher than what we assumed. Since the benefit is
calculated on the final Salary, the benefit amount increases similarly. The risk is managed by actuarial valuations and

accounting for benefits based on that.

Withdrawal Risk

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can pose a risk to the benefit obligation. The
movement of the liability can go either way.
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38.1

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a recognised provident fund plan for all its permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions
are made, both by the Group and its employees, to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary of the employees.
The minimum qualifying period of service for the purpose of the Group's contribution is one year. The contribution
made by the Group and its employees during the year amounted to Rs.246 million (2021: Rs.209.58 million). The
number of employees as at December 31,2022 eligible under the plan were 2,147 (2021:2082).

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Group grants compensated absences to all its regular employees as per service rules. Minimum qualifying period
for encashment is three years of service. Regular employees are entitled to 30 days privilege leave for each completed
year of service. Unutilized privilege leave is accumulated upto a maximum of 60 days which would be encashed at
the time of retirement from the regular service of the Group or severance of service except in case of dismissal.
This is encashable on the basis of last drawn gross salary. The Group recognises the liability for compensated absences
in respect of employees in the period in which these are earned up to the balance sheet date. The provision of
Rs.250.60 million (202 1: Rs.224.03 million) has been made on the basis of actuarial recommendations.

2022 202 |
(Rupees in '000)

Movement of compensated absences

Opening balance 224,032 179,686
Expense / (Reversal) for the year 40,906 52,693
Benefit paid during the year (14,335) (8,347)

Closing balance 250,603 224,032
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39 COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

39.1 Total Compensation Expense
2022

Directors

Ke Other
President / Y Material Risk

Executives Members
Non- Management
CEO g Takers/

Chairman  (other Shariah

than CEO) Executives Board Personnel C
ontrollers
(Rupees in ' 000")
Fees and Allowances 3,175 - 15,205 2,780 - - -
Managerial Remuneration
- Fixed - - - - 23,207 134,122 80,043
-Variable Cash Bonus / Awards - - - - - 1,000 -
Charge for defined benefit plan - - - - 1,437 9,854 6,228
Contribution to defined contribution plan - - - - 2,321 12,672 7,872
Rent & house maintenance - - - - 10,443 60,355 36,019
Utilities - - - - 2,321 13,413 8,004
Medical - - - - 2,321 13,413 8,004
Conveyance - - - 1,340 1,644 26,773 34,575
Bonus - - - - 3,622 21,420 13,286
Others 300 - - - [,150 16,365 11,326
Total 3,475 - 15,205 4,120 48,466 309,387 205,357
Number of Persons | - 9 2 2 31 36
2021
Directors
Chai ExEelifives Non- Members President / Key I\’Ia’gg{lerRisk
airman  (other Executives Shariah CEO Management Takers/
than CEO) Board Personnel Controllers
(Rupees in ' 000")
Fees and Allowances 2,325 - 9,220 3,780 - - -
Managerial Remuneration
- Fixed - - - - 23,784 114,706 67,475
- Variable Cash Bonus / Awards - - - - - 1,330 1,083
Charge for defined benefit plan - - - - [ 403 12,027 5,795
Contribution to defined contribution plan - - - - 2,379 10,321 6,603
Rent & house maintenance - - - - 10,702 51,618 30,364
Utilities - - - - 2,379 ['1,470 6,747
Medical - - - - 2,379 [1,470 6,747
Conveyance - - - 574 1,005 19,269 22,469
Bonus - - - - 3,964 17,524 10,086
Others 1,322 - 60 - 1,518 10,526 8213
Total 3,647 - 9,280 4354 49513 260261 165582
Number of Persons | - 8 3 2 35 37
39.1.1 The President and Chief Executive Officer and certain executives of the Group are provided with free use of Group

maintained cars.

39.1.2 The term "Key Management Personnel" means the following functional responsibilities:




39.1.3

39.2

393

(@) Any executive or key executive, acting as second to CEO, by whatever name called, and including the Chief
Operating Officer (COQO) and Deputy Managing Director:

(b) Any executive or key executive reporting directly to the CEO / President or the person mentioned in (a)
above.

The term 'Material Risk Taker' and 'Material Risk Controller' have the same meaning as defined in revised guidelines
on remuneration practice issued by the State Bank of Pakistan vide BPRD circular No. | of 2017.

The terms Directors/ Executive Directors/ Non-Executive Directors, CEO and Key Executives have same meaning
as defined in Prudential Regulations (PRs) for Corporate and Commercial Banking. For the purpose of these disclosures
Key Executive will also include Executives who have direct reporting line to the President/CEO or BoD or its
Committees.

Meeting Fees paid to Directors for participation in Board and Committee Meetings

2022
For Board Committee
. Risk Human Special o
Sr. Name of Directors For Bgard Aud]t Management I.T.. Resource ‘& Asset Nomlne.mon Total )
No. Meetings ~ Committee Committee Committee Remuneration Management Committee Amount Paid

Committee Committee
Amount Rs. 000

| Mr. Anis Ahmed Khan 1,800 - - 375 200 600 200 3,175
2 Mr. Sajid Jamal Abro 1,650 175 575 - 200 600 200 3,400
3 Mr. Asif Jahangir 2,050 400 200 175 - - - 2,825
4 Mr. Javaid Bashir Sheikh 2,050 750 575 - - - - 3,375
5 Mr. Mohammed Aftab Alam 1,450 400 - 375 - 600 200 3,025
6 Mr. Adnan Ali Khan 750 - - 200 200 - - 1,150
7 Mrs. Masooma Hussain 600 350 - - - - - 950
8 Mr.Abdul Quddus Khan 80 - - - - - - 80
9 Mr. Abdul Sattar Jumani 40 - - - - - - 40
10 Dr. Noor Muhammad Soomro 40 - - - - - - 40
Il Mr. Ghulam Mustafa Suhag 80 - - - - - - 80
12 Mr.Farooq Ahmed 40 - - - - - - 40
13 Ms.Naila Masood 40 - - - 20 - - 60
14 "Mr. Shamsuddin Khan 40 - - - 20 - - 60
15 "Mr. Sikandar Abbasi 80 - - - - - - 80

Total Amount Paid 10,790 2,075 1,350 1,125 640 1,800 600 18,380

2021
For Board Committee
. Risk Human Special o
Sr. Name of Directors For Bgard Audllt Management I.T‘ Resource & Asset Nomination Total
No. Meetings ~ Committee C &e! Committee Remuneration Management Committee  Amount Paid
ommittee C . .
ommittee  Committee
Amount Rs. 000

| Mr. Javaid Bashir Sheikh 1,550 950 575 - - - - 3,075
2 Mr. Anis Ahmed Khan 1,550 - - 200 575 - - 2,325
3 Mr. Sami Ul Hag Khilji 500 - - 200 400 - - [,100
4 Mr. Asif Jahangir 1,050 |75 - - 175 - - 1,400
5 Mrs. Masooma Hussain 1,550 950 575 - - - - 3,075
6 MrAbdul Sattar Jumani 110 - - - - - - [0
7 Mr. Farooq Ahmed [0 - - - - - - 10
8 Mr. Noor Muhammad Soomro 110 - - - - - - 10
9 Mr. Shamsuddin Khan 60 - - - 20 - - 80
10 Ms.Naila Masood [10 - 30 - 20 - - 160

Total Amount Paid 6,700 2,075 1,180 400 1,190 - - |'1,545
Remuneration paid to Shariah Board Members

2022 2021
Items Chairman Member I;\’IE::IIT?EQ: Chairman Member lli{,leesrlrd]gg
Amount Rs. 000

Managerial Remuneration (Fixed) 1,561 1,517 - 1,836 [,291 653
Fuel Allowances 470 470 - |55 287 132
Total Amount 2,031 1,987 - 1991 1,578 /85

Total Number of Persons | | - | | |
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40.1

40.2

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

IFRS |3 "Fair Value Measurement" defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, is based on quoted market price.
Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficient
reliability due to absence of current and active market for assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates
for similar instruments. The provision for impairment of loans and advances has been calculated in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy as stated in note 5.17 to these financial statements.

The repricing profile, effective rates and maturity profile are stated in note 44.2.6 to these financial statements.

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly
different from their carrying values since assets and liabilities are either short term in nature or in the case of customer
loans and deposits are frequently repriced.

Fair value of financial assets

IFRS 13 requires the Group to make fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has following levels:

Level I: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3:  Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The table below analyses the financial and non-financial assets carried at fair values, by valuation methods. For financial
assets, the Group essentially carries its investments in debt and equity securities at fair values.Valuation of investments
is carried out as per guidelines specified by the SBP.

2022
Fair Value

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------=-=n=n=----

On balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value
Available-for-sale securities

Pakistan Investment Bonds - 142,067,256 - 142,067,256
Market Treasury Bills - 63,928,571 - 63,928,571
Shares of listed companies 2,069,094 - - 2,069,094
Term finance certificates - Listed - - - -

Units of mutual funds 68,975 122,760 - 191,735
ljarah Sukuk - GoP - 3,985,410 - 3,985,410

Sukuk bonds

2,138,069 210,103,997 - 212,242,066

Off balance sheet financial instruments
Foreign exchange contracts (purchase) - 16,669,577 - 16,669,577
Foreign exchange contracts (sale) - 15,692,909 - 15,692,909




On balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value
Awvailable-for-sale securities

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Market Treasury Bills

Shares of listed companies

Units of mutual funds

ljarah Sukuk - GoP

Off balance sheet financial instruments
Foreign exchange contracts (purchase)

Foreign exchange contracts (sale)

2021

FairValue

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
——————————————————— (Rupees in '000) -----------------

- 109,367,793 - 109,367,793

- 42,816,839 - 42,816,839
2,159,015 - - 2,159,015
99,996 109,440 - 209,436

- 2,989,090 - 2,989,090
2,259,011 1557283,162 - 157,542,173
- 6,740,279 - 6,740,279

- 6,200,850 - 6,200,850

The valuation techniques used for the above assets are disclosed below.

Item

Valuation techniques and input used

funds

Fully paid-up ordinary shares /close end mutual

Fair value is determined on the basis of closing quoted market prices
available at the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Open ended mutual funds

Fair value is based on redemption prices as at the close of the business
day.

Pakistan Investment Bonds / Market Treasury Bills

Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived
using the PKRV rates (Reuters page).

Government of Pakistan (GoP) - ljarah
Sukuks

Fair values derived using the PKISRV rates announced by the Financial
Market Association (FMA) through Reuters.

Term Finance, Bonds and Sukuk certificates

Investments in debt securities (comprising term finance certificates,
bonds, sukuk certificates and any other security issued by a company
or a body corporate for the purpose of raising funds in the form of
redeemable capital) are valued on the basis of the rates announced
by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance
with the methodology prescribed by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.
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41 SEGMENT INFORMATION

41.1  Segment Details with respect to Business Activities
: . Commercial
others
(Rupees in '000)

Profit & Loss
Net mark-up/return/interest income 16,703,966 385,984 (11,428,371) 5,661,579
Inter segment revenue - net (22,136,445) - 22,136,445 -
Non mark-up / interest income 606,009 453 482,395 1,088,857
Total Income (4,826,470) 386,437 11,190,469 6,750,436
Segment direct expenses (101,900) (4,027) (5,375,967) (5,481,894)
Inter segment expense allocation (125,281) (30,618) (1,372,041) (1,527,940)
Total expenses (227,181) (34,645) (6,748,008) (7,009,834)
Provisions (80,939) (13,816) (1,857,699) (1,952,454)
(Loss) / Profit before tax (5,134,590) 337,976 2,584,762 (2,211,852)
Balance Sheet
Cash & Bank balances 9,432,651 429,997 6,355,617 16,218,265
Investments 253,802,777 54,788 - 253,857,565
Net inter segment lending 750,000 (750,000) 181,249,550 181,249,550
Lendings to financial institutions 19,967,424 - - 19,967,424

Advances - performing 47,748 1,742,765 35,406,130 37,196,643

- non-performing - 32,880 7,875,703 7,908,583

Others 4,903,213 211,034 18,833,743 23,947,990
Total Assets 288,903,813 1,721,464 249,720,743 540,346,020
Borrowings 105,059,879 310,000 1,874,835 107,244,714
Subordinated debt - - - -
Deposits & other accounts - 588,762 223,043,950 223,632,712
Net inter segment borrowing 180,782,307 467,243 - 181,249,550
Others 2,440,114 93,084 8,272,511 10,805,709
Total liabilities 288,282,300 1,459,089 233,191,296 522,932,685
Equity 621,513 262,375 16,529,447 17,413,335
Total Equity & liabilities 288,903,813 1,721,464 249,720,743 540,346,020
Contingencies & Commitments 158,715,957 - 13,059,959 171,775,916
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2021

Trading and Retail Corporate Comlmercial
salgs banking ﬁngnce banking and fotal
others
(Rupees in '000")

Profit & Loss
Net mark-up/return/interest income I'1,358,794 309,000 - (6,479,758) 5,188,036
Inter segment revenue - net (15927,013) - - 15927013 -
Non mark-up / interest income 185,749 591 - 390,138 576,478
Total Income (4,382,470) 309591 - 9,837,393 5764514
Segment direct expenses (97,564) (227,720) - (4477,571) (4,802,855)
Inter segment expense allocation (114,158) (19,001 - (1,008,420) (1,141579)
Total expenses (211,722) (246,721) - (5485,991) (5,944,434)
Provisions (87,343) (15452) - (5,735,573) (5,838,368)
(Loss) / Profit before tax (4,681,535) 47418 - (1,384,171 (6,018,288)
Balance Sheet
Cash & Bank balances 12,158,168 438,752 - 8,276,324 20,873,244
Investments 174,953,381 475,585 - - 175,428,966
Net inter segment lending 750,000 (750,000) - 172,676,536 172,676,536
Lendings to financial institutions 6,081,208 - - - 6,081,208
Advances - performing 48,256 [,132,445 - 35,374,143 36,554,844

- non-performing - ['1,445 - 12,162,338 12,173,783
Others 4,778,330 197,863 - 15,398,776 20,374,969
Total Assets 198,769,343 1,506,090 - 243,888,117 444,163,550
Borrowings 25,089,819 750,000 - [,695919 27535738
Subordinated debt - - - - -
Deposits & other accounts - 234272 - 217,608,406 217,842,678
Net inter segment borrowing 172,476,511 200,025 - - 172,676,536
Others 349,767 102,446 - 6,809,755 7261968
Total liabilities 197,916,097 1,286,743 - 226,114,080 425,316,920
Equity 853,246 219,347 - | 7,774,037 18,846,630
Total Equity & liabilities 198,769,343 1,506,090 - 243,888,117 444,163,550
Contingencies & Commitments 43,427,871 - - 13,807,888 57,235,759

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties of the Group comprise associated undertakings, directors, staff retirement funds and key management
personnel (including their associates).

Transactions with related parties includes deposits, advances and other banking services which are carried out on an
arm's length basis. Transaction with executives and key management persons are undertaken at terms in accordance
with employment agreements and service rules. Contributions to and accruals in respect of staff retirement benefit
plans are made in accordance with the terms of the benefit plan. Remuneration of the President & Chief Executive
Officer and directors are determined in accordance with the terms of their appointment.

Government of Sindh (GoS) through its Finance Department holds 99.95% shareholding in the Group and therefore
entities which are owned and / or controlled by the GoS, or where the GoS may exercise significant influence, are
related parties of the Group.The Group in the ordinary course of business enters into transactions with Government-
related entities. Such transactions include lending to, deposits from and provision of other banking services to such
entities. However, it is impracticable to disclose transactions with all other entities owned or controlled by GoS.

The details of balances and transactions with related parties, other than those disclosed under respective notes, during
the year are as follows:
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2022 2021
; Key Other related : Key Other related
Directors management parties Directors management parties
personnel personnel
Investments (Rupees in '000)
Opening balance - - - - - -
Investment made during the year - - - - - -
Investment redeemed /
disposed off during the year - - - - - -
Closing balance - - - - - -
Advances
Opening balance - 211,252 - - 201,487 -
Addition during the year - 77,693 - - 23,311 -
Repaid during the year - 104,370 - - 34,450 -
Transfer in / (out) - net - 38,155 - - 20,904 -
Closing balance - 222,730 - - 211,252 -
Other Assets
Interest / mark-up accrued - 233 - - 158 -
Other receivable - - - - - 50
- 50 - - 158 50
Deposits and other accounts
Opening balance 767 40,596 2,138,735 22,930 68,200 2,079,063
Received during the year 20,783 923,785 16,435,032 162,069 433,815 20,942,544
Withdrawn during the year 19,132 732,137 16,736,272 184,201 412,641 20,882,872
Transfer in / (out) - net 2,683 71,934 - (31 (48,778) -
Closing balance 5101 304,178 1,837,495 767 40596 2,138,735

Other Liabilities

Premium payable - - - - _
Interest / mark-up payable 21 3,949 28,249 22 321 16013

21 3,949 28,249 22 321 16013




42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

43

2022 2021
Di manat(ee);nent Other related Di manfiyment Other related
irectors g parties irectors g parties
personnel personnel

Income: (Rupees in ‘000)
Mark-up / return / interest earned - 8,079 4,492 - 7,857 -
Fee and commission income 2 27 39 3 14 36
Net gain on sale of securities - - 232 - - 251
Other income - - 1,130 - - [, 140
Expense:
Mark-up / return / interest paid 6l 7,820 200,472 272 2,951 145,250
Remuneration paid - 253,087 - - 214470 -
Contribution to provident fund - 17,570 - - 10,280 -
Provision for gratuity - 17,512 - - 12,729 -
Other staff benefits - 27,569 - - 23,617 -
Directors' meeting fee 18,380 - - 10,975 - -
Other expenses 500 - - 1,322 - -
Insurance premium paid - - 125,748 - - 123,999
Others:
Sale of Government Securities - - 5,544,300 - - 3,755,500
Purchase of Government Securities - - 119,668 - - 1,575,000
Gratuity paid - - 5,863 - 4,647 -
Leave encashment paid - - - - 2,126 -
Expenses recovered under agency
arrangement - - 77 - - 128
Insurance claims settled - - 26,032 - - 3269

As at the date of consolidated statement of financial position, loans/advances and deposits related to government related
entities and its related entities amounted to Rs. 5,205.04 million (note 10.2) and Rs. 109,724.26 million (note 7). The above
includes deposits amounting to Rs. 34,328.51 (2021: Rs.30,744.37) million received through the Finance Department,
Government of Sindh.

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)

CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):

Paid-up capital (net of losses) 17,095,030 14,451,825
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):

Eligible Common Equity Tier | (CET |) Capital 3,343,643 6,719,213
Eligible Additional Tier | (ADT 1) Capital - -
Total Eligible Tier | Capital 3,343,643 6,719,213
Eligible Tier 2 Capital 19,997 10,967

Total Eligible Capital (Tier | + Tier 2) 3,363,640 6,730,180
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43.1

Risk Weighted Assets (RWA:s):

Credit Risk
Market Risk
Operational Risk
Total

Common Equity Tier | Capital Adequacy ratio
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio

Notional minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP
Common Equity Tier | minimum ratio

Tier | minimum ratio

Total capital minimum ratio

Total capital minimum ratio plus CCB

Approach followed for determining Risk Weighted Assets

Credit Risk
Market Risk
Operational Risk

Leverage Ratio (LR):
Eligible Tier-1 Capital
Total Exposures
Leverage Ratio (%)

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):
Total High Quality Liquid Assets
Total Net Cash Outflow
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%)

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):
Total Available Stable Funding
Total Required Stable Funding
Net Stable Funding Ratio

2022

2021

(Rupees in '000)

28,233,237 30,836,591
6,537,413 12,089,179
10,052,361 7,692,311
44.823,01 | 50,618,081
7.46% 13.27%
7.46% 13.27%
7.50% 13.30%
6.00% 6.00%
7.50% 7.50%
10.00% 10.00%
11.50% [1.50%
Comprehensive  Comprehensive
Maturity Maturity
Basic Indicator Rasic Indicator
2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)
3,343,643 6,719,213
350,271,053 265,491,048
0.95% 2.53%
132,719,755 126,415,608
37,666,184 28,640,693
352% 441%
159,888,541 167,053,194
78,670,959 65,172,730
203% 256%

The full disclosures on the Capital Adequacy, Leverage Ratio & Liquidity requirements as per SBP instructions issued from
time to time shall be placed on the website. The link to the full disclosures shall be short and clear and be provided within
this note such as, the link to the full disclosure is available at http://www.sindhbankitd.com/financials/basel-statements.
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44.1

44.1.1

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's risk management framework encompasses the culture, processes and structure and is directed towards the
effective management of potential opportunities and threats to the Group. The prime objective of the Group’s risk
management strategy is to abandon the traditional approach of ‘managing risk by silos" and to put in place integrated risk
and economic capital management capabilities that will enable the Group to achieve integrated view of risks across its
various business operations and to gain strategic advantage from its risk management capabilities.

The Board of Directors (BOD) keeps an oversight on the Group-wide risk management framework and approves the
risk management strategy and policies of the Group. The Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC), ensures that the
Group maintains a complete and prudent integrated risk management framework at all times and ensures that the risk
exposures are maintained within acceptable levels. BRMC is responsible for reviewing the extent of design and adequacy
of risk management framework. BRMC oversight ensures that risks are managed within the level of tolerance and risk
appetite of the Group.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability is impaired
resulting in economic loss to the Group. The objective of credit risk management is to keep credit risk exposure within
permissible level, relevant to the Group’s risk appetite and capital, to maintain the soundness of assets and to ensure
returns commensurate with risk. The Group takes necessary measures to control such risk by evaluating, measuring and
monitoring credit exposures.

The Group has a comprehensive pre-approval evaluation process of credit risk embedded within Risk Management Division.
The risk evaluation function is an integral part of Credit Risk Management Framework and is independent from the risk
taking function. The credit evaluation department will independently identify actual and potential risks both on individual
and on portfolio basis including adherence to relevant internal policies, procedures and related regulatory guidelines.

In addition to monitoring credit limits specified in the Prudential Regulations of the State Bank of Pakistan, the credit limit
structure of the Group includes internal limits as established by the BOD and senior management. Credit Limits along
with credit concentration is monitored on a regular basis and any exceptions are reported to the relevant authorities for
their timely action where necessary.

The Group uses comprehensive Approach for assessing the capital charge for Credit risk.

Lendings to financial institutions

Details of Lending to financial institutions and provision held by sectors

. Non Performing Provision
Gross Lendings Lendings held
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

(Rupees in '000")
Public/ Government - -
Private 19,967,424 6,081,208 - - - -
Total 19,967,424 6,081,208 - - - -
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44.1.2 Investments

Segmental information by the class / nature of business, distribution and provision held is given below:

Invgr;ﬁws:nts Non Performing Prcf)\\glsdlon
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)

Government of Pakistan 252,606,591 173,718,453 - - - -
Banks 1,788,960 2,147510 278,701 279945 278,701 279944
Cement 63,745 63,745 34,923 34,923 34,923 34,923
Fertilizer 531,870 628,710 22,684 22,684 22,684 22,684
Financial 238,809 215049 42,806 35,063 42,806 35,063
Petroleum 192,385 141,141 6,449 6,449 6,449 6,449

Power (electricity), Gas & Water 777,210 634,286 - - - -
Sugar 592,052 592,051 592,051 592,051 567,350 494,153
Total 256,791,622 178,140945 977,614 ~ 971,115 ~ 952913 873216

44.1.2.1 Credit risk by public / private sector
Gross Non Performing Provision
Investments Investments held
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
(Rupees in '000")

Public/ Government 253,403,110 174,566,113 6,449 6,449 6,449 6,449
Private 3,388,512 3574832 _ 971,165 964,666 946,464 866,767
Total 256,791,622 178,140,945 977,614 971,115 952913 873216
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44.1.3.1

Advances

Segmental information by the class / nature of business and by distribution of advances, Non performing advances &

provision held is given below:

Pharmaceuticals
Agriculture business
Manufacturing of textile
Cement

Transport, storage and communication

Wholesale and retail trade

Mining and quarrying

Hotel and restaurants

Petroleum

Media channels

Manufacture of basic iron and steel

Sugar

Automobile and transportation
equipment

Chemicals and chemical products

Financial

Rice & Wheat

Construction, real estate and societies

Food

Insurance

Power, electricity and gas
Domestic Appliances
Education

Individuals

Others

Total

Credit risk by public / private sector

Public/ Government
Private
Total

Advances (Gross)

Non Performing

Provision held

Advances
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
(Rupees 000)

268,796 69,822 - - - -
1,376,383 1,561,830 1,203,409 1,321,325 1,112,904 1,055014
802,264 814,823 43,863 33,186 33,186 33,186

64,377 64,377 - - - -

57,824 343,550 - - - -
1,623,116 1558247 462,575 463,950 350,511 277924

6,782,029 5,075453 - - - -

865,234 981,130 - - - -
3,039,883 3213557 2,022,460 2,022,460 2,022,460 2,022,460
2,220,936 1,576,852 - 1,475,685 - 392,830
2,256,314 2,187,544 1,756,740 1,756,740 1,642,645 1,532,889
20,559,081 20,424,172 17,122,073 17,623,859 12,350,339 12,024,843
2,446,607 2,469,659 2,434,209 2,434,209 2,299,625 1,940,286
1,121,652 1,194,117 1,103,884 1,103,884 1,079,225 1,062,925
1,828,881 1939927 1,177,884 1,177,884 480,446 447,069

699,487 695,151 - - - -
2,959,973 4,024,784 2,596,716 2,901,023 1,828893 1,559,387
5,508,539 8,348,167 152,806 152,806 152,806 147,536

1,467 3,254 - - - -
8,900,159 9462932 2,948,239 3,030,104 2,626,535 2026974

1,659,365 1,557,208 - - - -
117,555 18,663 11,898 15,732 1,481 14,419
1,897,753 1,409,410 2,004 6,921 1,702 1,943
5,162,700 4,986,653 1,964,976 1,894546 1,102,394 700,846
72,220,375 73,981,282 35,003,736 37,414,314 27,095,152 257240,531

Advances (Gross)

Non Performing

Provision held

Advances
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)
5,210,287 8,195,361 -

67,010,088 65785921 35,003,736 37,414,314

27,095,152 25,240,531

72,220,375 73,981,282 35,003,736 37414314

27,095,152 25,240,531




SINDHﬁANK
A1)

Powm To Ths Peoes =% ®

44.14  Contingencies and Commitments

Segmental information by the class / nature of business and by distribution of Contingencies and Commitments is given

below:
2022 2021
---------- (Rupees in '000) ------------
Chemical and pharmaceuticals 27,730 20,000
Manufacturing of textile 63,926 74,805
Transport, storage and communication 128,900 128,500
Wholesale and retail trade 1,107,525 909,285
Petroleum 116,991 116,991
Manufacture of basic iron and steel 11,543 108,031
Sugar 21,223 33,590
Automobile and transportation equipment 49,802 44,666
Financial 159,565,957 44,274,652
Construction, real estate and societies 289,365 633,753
Domestic Appliances 14,000 366,444
Power, electricity and gas 1,454,425 1,527,171
Education 30,830 3,830
Others 858,713 358,520
Total 163,740,930 48,600,238
2022 2021
44.1.4.1 Credit risk by public / private sector ~ cemeeeeee (Rupees in '000) ------------
Public/ Government 105,000,000 41,161
Private 58,740,930 48,559,077
Total 163,740,930 48,600,238

44.1.5 Concentration of Advances

The Group's are top 10 exposures (funded and non-funded) aggregated Rs. 28,724.62 million (2021: Rs. 30,297.41 million)

as follows:
2022 2021
---------- (Rupees in '000) ------------
Funded 28,670,815 29,800,814
Non Funded 53,801 496,595
Total Exposure 28,724,616 30,297,409

44.1.5.1 The sanctioned limits against these top 10 exposures aggregated Rs. 32,461.52 million (2021:Rs. 36,612.81 million).
44.1.5.2 Total Funded Facilities Classified
Classified funded facilities of the group's top 10 exposures are as follows:
2022 2021

Classified Provision held Classified Provision held
(Rupees in '000")

OAEM - - - -
Substandard - - - -
Doubtful - - - -
Loss 10,175,435 7,074,074 10,345,023 7,113,124
Total 10,175,435 7,074,074 10,345,023 7,113,124




44.1.6 Advances - Province/Region-wise Disbursement & Utilization

442

Name of
Province /
Region

Punjab

Sindh

KPK including FATA
Balochistan
Islamabad

AJK including Gilgit-
Baltistan

Total

Name of
Province /
Region

Punjab

Sindh

KPK including FATA
Balochistan
Islamabad

AlK including Gilgit-
Baltistan

Total

Market risk

2022
UTILIZATION
AJK
Disbursements KPK incldding
Punjab Sindh including  Balochistan Islamabad Gilgit-
FATA Baltistan
(Rupees in '000")
22,827,862 22,827,862 - - - - -
34,643,340 - 34,643,340 - - - -
246,989 - - 246,989 - - -
1,975,405 - - - 579,775 1,395,629 -
1,112,975 - - - 1,112,975 -
24,007 - - - - - 24,007
60,830,578 22,827,862 34,643,340 246,989 579,775 2,508,604 24,007
2021
UTILIZATION
AJK
Disbursements , , KK . incIquing
Punjab Sindh including ~ Balochistan Islamabad Gilgit-
FATA Baltistan
(Rupees in '000")
20,612,020 20,578,071 32,336 - 1,613 - -
31,655,002 23,097 31,629,596 - 2,309 - -
[1,764 - I'1,764 - - -
642,881 - - - 642,881 - -
873,522 1,881 - - - 871,641 -
83,790 - - - - - 83,790
53,878,979 20,603,049 31,661,932 1,764 646,803 871,641 83,790

Market Risk is the risk of loss in earnings and capital due to adverse changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices and market conditions. Market Risk management aims to provide risk management practices that are
integrated in key strategic, capital and financial planning process and day-to-day business processes across the Group. The
Group's market risk mangement policies set out risk management parameters, governance and control framework as
well as reporting arrangements.

The Group have developed a market risk management framework to efficiently and effectively monitor and manage
market risk in every transaction of Banking and Trading Book.
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44.2.1

4422

Balance sheet split by trading and banking books

2022 2021
Bankin Tradin Bankin Tradin
bookg bookg Total boo|<g bookg Total
(Rupees in '000")
Cash and balances with
treasury banks 14,204,082 - 14,204,082 19,364,832 - 19,364,832
Balances with other banks 2,014,183 - 2,014,183 [,508,412 - 1,508,412
Lendings to financial
institutions 19,967,424 - 19,967,424 6,081,208 - 6,081,208
Investments 253,857,565 - 253,857,565 175,428,966 - 175,428,966
Advances 45,105,226 - 45,105,226 48,728,627 - 48,728,627
Fixed assets 4,113,696 - 4,113,696 3,233,545 - 3,233,545
Intangible assets 124,022 - 124,022 116,671 - 116,671
Deferred tax assets 14,662,219 - 14,662,219 13,253,786 - 13,253,786
Other assets 5,048,053 - 5,048,053 3,770967 - 3,770,967
359,096,470 - 359,096,470 271,487,014 - 271487014

Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risk is defined as the current or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from adverse
movements in currency exchange rates. It refers to the impact of adverse movement in currency exchange rates
on the value of open foreign currency positions. The objective of the foreign exchange risk management is to minimize
the adverse impact of foreign exchange rate movements on the assets and liabilities mismatch (tenor and position)
and maximize earnings. The Group limits its currency exposure to the extent of statutory net open position prescribed
by the SBP except in the cases where exemption is provided by SBP. Foreign exchange open and mismatch positions

are controlled through close monitoring and are marked to market on a daily basis.

2022
s Off-balance Net foreign
Assets Liabilities . currency
sheet items
exposure
(Rupees in '000)
Pakistan Rupee 356,951,360 339,748,523 (976,669) 16,226,168
United States Dollar 1,145,576 1,637,318 976,669 484,927
Great Britain Pound 754,313 163,013 - 591,301
Euro 15,559 - - 15,559
Japanese Yen 184,824 134,282 - 50,542
Saudi Riyal 1,404 - - 1,404
UAE Dirham 6,528 - - 6,528
Chinese Yen 36,906 - - 36,906
359,096,470 341,683,135 - 17,413,335
2021

L Off-balance Net foreign

Assets Liabilities . currency

sheet items
exposure
(Rupees in '000)

Pakistan Rupee 269813526  250,886,07 (539,429) 18,388,026
United States Dollar 1,150,568 1,418,470 539,429 271,527
Great Britain Pound 310,086 235336 - 74,750
Euro 164518 100,507 - 64,01 |
Japanese Yen [,259 - - [,259
Saudi Riyal 9,533 - - 9,533
UAE Dirham 37,390 - - 37,390
Chines Yen 134 - - |34
271487014 252,640,384 - 18,846,630




44.2.3

44.2.4

44.2.5

Foreign exchange risk

2022 2021

Banking Trading Banking Trading
Impact of 1% change in foreign exchange rates on:  book Book book Book

(Rupees in '000)

- Profit and loss account (2,117) (9,767) 679 (5,394)
- Other comprehensive income - - .

Equity position risk
Equity position risk in trading book arises due to change in price of shares or levels of equity indices.

The Group's equity and mutual fund exposure is managed within the SBP limits for overall investment and per scrip
exposure. In addition, there are internal limits for trading positions as well as stop loss limits, dealer limits, future
contracts limits and continuous funding system limits.

2022 2021

Banking Trading Banking Trading
Impact of 5% change in equity prices on : book Book book Book

(Rupees in '000)

- Profit and loss account - -
- Other comprehensive income (839,543) - (122,308) -

Yield / interest rate risk

Yield / interest rate risk reflects the degree of vulnerability of an organization to adverse changes in mark-up / interest
rates. Such risk taking is normal in a financial institution and could be an important source of profit earning. However,
excess yield / interest rate risk may create a serious threat to a Group's returns and capital base. ALCO, Treasury
Division and RMD monitor the repricing / mismatch risks, basis risks, yield curve risks, and option risks on a continuous
basis to minimize the yield / interest rate risk.

2022 2021

Banking Trading Banking Trading
Impact of 1% change in interest rates on : book Book book Book

(Rupees in '000)

- Profit and loss account - -
- Other comprehensive income (6,780,309) - (1,551,744) -
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444 Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems and external
events.

The Group strives to manage operational risk within acceptable levels through sound operational risk management
practices.

The Group has set up a separate Operational Risk Management (ORM) Unit. ORM Unit resides within Risk Management
Division (RMD). Its responsibility is to implement Operational Risk management tools across the group for effective
measurement and monitoring of operational risk faced by different areas of the Group.

45.  GENERAL

45.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee.

46. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 08 2023.

Chairman President and
Chief Executive Officer

1al Officer

W )
L/ y A Zw\/{%l .
e —
Director irector Chief Fina
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Notice Of 12th Annual General Meeting

NOTICE is hereby given that the 12th Annual General Meeting of Sindh Bank Limited will be held on March 30, 2023 at 10.00 a.m at Sindh Bank's
Head Office, Federation House, Clifton, Karachi, to transact the following business:-

A-Ordinary Business:

|- To confirm the minutes of 07th Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 16th November, 2022.

2- To receive, consider and adopt the Audited consolidated/un-consolidated Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended 3|st December, 2022,
together with Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon and pass necessary resolutions in this regard.

3- To consider and approve appointment of new Auditors of the Bank for the year 2023 and fix their remuneration.

B-Special Business:

A. To approve payment of remuneration and provision of certain facilities to the President/CEO of the Bank.

B. To grant post facto approval for the payment of remuneration to non-executive Directors and payment of 20% remuneration of the fee of Board / Committee
Meetings for performing extra services other than directorship to the Chairman of Board, as per BPRD Circular No.05 of 2021.

C. Any other business with the permission of the chair.
A statement of material facts under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 relating to aforesaid special business to be transacted is appended below:

By order of the Board;

Muhammad Irfan Zafar
Company Secretary

NOTES:

i. A member entitled to attend and vote at the |12th Annual General Meeting of the Bank may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend and
vote instead of him / her. The proxy shall have the right to attend, speak and vote in place of the member appointed him at the meeting.

ii. ~ The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member(s) or by his / her Attorney, duly authorized in writing. If the member is a Corporation,
its common seal should be affixed to the instrument.

ii. The Proxy Form duly completed, must be deposited at the Bank's Registered Office at 3rd Floor, Federation House, Abdullah Shah Ghazi Road, Clifton,
Karachi not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

iv. CDC account holder or sub-account holder appointing a proxy should furnish attested copies of his / her own as well as the proxy's CNIC / Passport
with the proxy form. The proxy shall also produce his / her original CNIC or passport at the time of meeting. In case of corporate entity, the Board
of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form.

The Share transfer books of the company will remain closed from March 24,2023 to March 30, 2023 (both days inclusive). CDC Transaction IDs
received in order at the Registered Office of the Company up to the close of business on March 22,2023 will be considered as on time for the
determination of shareholder's entitlement to attend and vote at the meeting. Members are required to notify immediately changes, if any, in their
registered address.

STATEMENT U/S 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 CONCERNING THE SPECIAL BUSINESS
This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business given in above Special Business of above agenda, to be transacted at the
12th Annual General Meeting of Sindh Bank Limited (the "Bank") to be held on March 30, 2023:

Item No. | of Special Business:
The Shareholders' approval is sought for the payment of remuneration and provision of certain facilities to the President/CEO of the Bank. The
following resolution may be passed:

"RESOLVED THAT the payment of remuneration to the President/CEO for the Year-2022 a gross sum of Rs.24,000,000/- in addition to bonus and
other perquisites as per his term of appointment be and are hereby approved.”

Item No.2 of Special Business:

The meeting fee payable to the non-executive members of the Board approved by the Board of Directors in its 87th meeting held on 29.04.2021
@ Rs.200,000/- for attending Board meetings & Rs.175,000/- for attending Board's Committees meeting, thereafter the Board in its 95th meeting
held on 02nd June, 2022 approved directorship fee @ Rs.250,000/- for Board meetings and Rs.200,000/- for its Sub-Committee meetings. The decision
of the Board, in terms of Article 104 of the Articles of Association of the Bank requires approval of the shareholders in Annual General Meeting as
per SBP Regulations. Further, payment of 20% extra Services paid to the Chairman during the currency of Year-2022, as per already approved criteria
by the Shareholders in its | Ith AGM held on 30.03.2022, as per SBP's CGRF-2021. The non-executive members of the Board and the Board
Committees are interested in the payment of fee and executive members of the Board have no interest in the matter. The following resolution may
be passed: -

"THE SHAREHOLDERS RESOLVE TO approve post facto approval for the payment of fee to the non-executive Directors during
the Year-2022 from | st Jan-2022 to 02nd June, 2022 [@ Rs.200,000/- for Board meetings & Rs.175,000/- for its Committees meetings]
& thereafter till 31st Dec-2022 [@ Rs.250,000/- for Board meetings & Rs.200,000/- for its Committees meetings].

"THE SHAREHOLDERS FURTHER RESOLVE TO give post facto approval for the payment of extra 20% of the amount of each
Board meeting fees for providing extra services to the Chairman during the Year-2022, as earlier approved by the Shareholders
in its | 1th AGM held on 30.03.2022, as per SBP's CGRF-2021.




Pattern of Shareholdings

AS ON DECEMBER 31,2022

# Of Shareholders Shareholdings' Slab Total Shares Held
6 I To 100 6
31 101 To 500 15,500
36 501 To 1000 36,000
31 1001 To 5000 104,500
5 5001 To 10000 50,000
4 10001 To 15000 52,001

I 15001 To 20000 20,000
I 20001 To 25000 25,000
2 25001 To 30000 60,000
I 45001 To 50000 50,000
4 95001 To 100000 400,000
I 195001 To 200000 200,000
I 2999995001 To 3000000000 2,951,429,810
124 2,952,442,817
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Categories of Shareholders
As On December 31,2022

No.of Category wise

Category Shareholders Shares No.of Share %
° Held Holders
I Individuals 410,000 3 0.01%
2 Investment Companies
3 Joint Stock Companies
4 Director, Chief Executive, and their spouse and minor children
Anis A. Khan I I 0.00%
Javaid Bashir Sheikh I I 0.00%
Sajid Jamal Abro I I 0.00%
Asif Jahangir I I 0.00%
Mohammed Aftab Alam I I 0.00%
Adnan Ali Khan I I 0.00%
Mrs Shaista Bano Gilani I I 0.00%
(She has been co-opted on 30/9/2022 and SBP approval
was received on 17/2/2023)
Sub-Total 7 7
5  Executives /| Employees / Group employees 603,000 I3 0.02%
6  NIT/ICP
7 Associated Companies,undertakings and related parties
8  Banks, DFIs,NBFls, Insurance companies, Modarbas & Mutual Funds
9  Foreign Investors
10 Co-operative Societies
Il Charitable Trusts
12 Others-Government of Sindh , through its Finance Department 2,951,429,810 [ 99.97%
TOTAL 2,952,442,817 124 100.00%
Shareholders holding ten percent or more voting interest in the listed company
Total Paid -up Capital of the company 2,952,442,817
10% of the paid-up capital of the company 295,244,282
Name(s) of Shareholder(s) No. of Shares held Percentage
(%)
Governemnt of Sindh, through its Finance Department 2,951,429,810 99.97
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POWER TO THE PEOPLE

SOUTH REGION
KARACHI AREA

Mr. Abdul Rauf Chandio

Group Business Head

South Region

Tel:021-35642101-2

Fax: 021-35642104

Email: rauf.chandio@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Shahzad Hussain

Area Manager

Area |, Karachi

Tel: 021-35290331

Email: shahzad.khowaja@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Dilawar Ahmed Dakhan

Area Manager

Area ll, Karachi

Tel: 021-36646423

Email: dilawar.dakhan@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Ayaz Ahmed Jagirani

Area Manager

Area lll, Karachi

Tel:021-34535131

Email: ayaz.jagirani@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Aijaz Ali Shaikh

Area Manager

Area IV, Karachi

Tel: 021-5130662-3

Email: aijaz.shaikh@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Zahid Nosherwani

Area Manager

AreaV, Karachi

Tel: 021-35846658

Email: zahid.nosherwani@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Shafique Ahmed

Area Manager

Area VI, Karachi

Tel: 021-34968976

Fax: 021-34834583

Email: shafique.chandio@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Aijaz Ali Bugti

Area Manager

Area VI, Karachi

Tel: 021-32526863, 32526864

Fax: 021-32526865

Email: aijaz.bugti@sindhbankitd.com

Mr. Husn-e-Kamil

Officiating Area Manager

Area VI, Karachi

Tel: 021-36614461

Email: husne.kamil@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Abdul Waheed

Officiating Area Manager

Area IX, Karachi

Tel: 021-32467891

Email: abdul.waheed@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Ghulam Mustafa Shaikh
Officiating Area Manager

Area X, Karachi

Tel: 021-35640032

Email: mustafa.shaikh@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Faisal Haroon Badshah

Branch Manager /

Area Manager

Islamic Banking - Karachi

Tel: 021-35316805

Fax: 021-35316807

Email: faisal.haroon@sindhbankltd.com

BALOCHISTAN AREA

Mr. Haq Nawaz

Area Manager

Balochistan Area |

Tel: 081-2865681

Fax: 081-2865682

Email: haq.nawaz@sindhbankltd.com

Mr.Wali Muhammad Attar
Officiating Area Manager
Balochistan Area Il

Tel: 0838-710135,0838-710136
Fax: 0838-710138

Email: wali.attar@sindhbankltd.com

SINDH RURAL REGION

Syed Assad Ali

Group Business Head

Sindh Rural Region

Tel: 021-35829376

Fax: 021-35870543

Email: assad.ali@sindhbankitd.com

Mr. Jamil Ahmed Shaikh

Area Manager

Hyderabad Area |

Tel: 022-933006 |

Email: jamil.shaikh@sindhbankitd.com

198
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Mr. Bashir Ahmed Wassan

Area Manager

Hyderabad Area Il

Tel: 022-9201460

Email: bashir.wassan@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Mansoor Ahmed

Officiating Area Manager

Hyderabad Area llI

Tel: 022- 3816373

Email: mansoor.ahmed@sindhbankitd.com

Mr. Zeeshan Ata Memon
Officiating Area Manager

Hyderabad Area IV

Tel: 022- 2610704

Email: zeeshan.atta@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Kazim Hussain Qadri

Area Manager

Larkana Area |

Tel: 074-4040753

Email: kazim.hussain@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Abdul Majid Khoso

Area Manager

Larkana Area Il

Tel: 072-2576325

Email: majid.khoso@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Bux Ali

Officiating Area Manager
Larkana Area Ill

Tel: 0254-551578

Email: bux.ali@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Zeeshan Qureshi

Officiating Area Manager

Mirpurkhas Area

Tel: 022-2653170

Email: zeeshan.qureshi@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Kashif Memon

Area Manager

Thatta Area

Tel: 029-8550569

Email: kashif. memon@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Kashif Hussain Khuwaja
Officiating Area Manager

Badin Area

Tel: 029-7862035

Email: kashif.hussain@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Badar Uddin Jatoi

Officiating Area Manager

Naushahro Feroze Area

Tel: 024-2481550

Email: badar.jatoi@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Manjhan Khan Jatoi

Officiating Area Manager

Khairpur Area

Tel: 024-3715407

Email: manjhan.jatoi@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Zaheer Ahmed

Officiating Area Manager

Sukkur Area

Tel: 071-562396

Email: zaheer.ahmed@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Shakil Ahmed

Area Manager

Ghotki Area

Tel: 072-3684432

Email: shakil.ahmed@sindhbankltd.com

PUNJAB CENTRAL REGION

Mr. Farhan Ashraf Khan

Group Business Head

Central Region

Tel: 042-99264343

Fax: 042-99264342

Email: farhan.khan@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Rizwan Mahmood Khan

Area Manager

Lahore Area-I & Chief Manager

Tel: 042-99264334

Fax: 042-99264341

Email: rizwan.mahmood@sindhbankltd.com

Ms. Shazia Andleeb

Area Manager

Lahore Area Il & Chief Manager

Tel: 042-99268880, 99268883

Fax: 042-99268882

Email: shazia.andleeb@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Salman Satti

Area Manager

Lahore Area Ill & Chief Manager

Tel: 042-37180190-2

Email: salman.satti@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Shoaib Naseem Khan

Area Manager

Lahore Area IV

Tel: 042-99264339

Email: shoaib.khan@sindhbankltd.com

Number of Branches

Mr. Mubashar Uddin Khan

Area Manager

Gujranwala Area

Tel: 055-3840015

Fax: 055-9200993

Email: mubashar.khan@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Syed Ali Raza

Area Manager

Multan Area

Tel: 061-9330296

Email: ali.raza1@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Shafqat Ali Raja

Area Manager

Islamabad & Rawalpindi Area

Tel: 051-2206330

Email: shafqat.raja@sindhbankltd.com

NORTH REGION
KPK & MIR PUR AJK AREA

Mr. Rehman Ullah Khattak

Group Business Head

North Region

Tel: 091-5250602

Email: rehmanullah.khattak@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Farooq Khan

Area Manager

KPK-I

Tel: 091-5822122

Email: farooq.khan@sindhbankitd.com

Mr. Johar Ayub Khan

Area Manager

KPK-II

Tel: 091-2600028

Email: johar.khan@sindhbankltd.com

Mr. Intikhab Ashraf

Area Manager

AJK / Gilgit Baltistan

Tel: 05822-920630, 05822-920620-6 12
Email: intikhab.ashraf@sindhbankltd.com

ISLAMIC BANKING DIVISION

Mr. Faisal Mujeeb

Officiating Head of Islamic
Banking Division

Tel: 021-35829404

Email: faisal. mujeeb@sindhbankltd.com

I South Region - Karachi 93
2 Balochistan Branches 16
3 Sindh Rural Region 97
4 Punjab Central Region 101
5 North Region KPK & Mirpur AJK Area 23

| Tonl 330



Form of Proxy

I/We, , being member of Sindh Bank Limited and holding _ ordinary
share as per CDC Participant ID & Account No. , do hereby appoint
Mr s/o or failing him
Mr slo as my Proxy in my absence to attend and vote for me

and on my behalf at 12th Annual General Meeting of the Bank to be held on 30th March 2023 at 10:00 a.m at the Head

Office of Sindh Bank Limited, Federation House, Clifton, Karachi, and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand this day of 2023.
[. Witness
Signature Member’s Signature
on Rs.5.00
CNIC No. Revenue Stamp
Address
2. Witness (Signature should agree with

the specimen signature

Signature Registered with the Bank)

CNIC No.

Address

NOTES:

I. A member entitled to attend and vote at the |2th Annual General Meeting of the Bank may appoint any person
as his/her/its proxy to attend and vote instead of his/her/its. The proxy shall have the right to attend, speak and
vote in place of the member appointed him at the meeting.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member(s) or by his/her/its Attorney, duly authorized
in writing. If the member is a Corporation, its common seal should be affixed to the instrument.

3. The Proxy Form duly completed, must be deposited at the Bank's Registered Office at 3rd Floor, Federation
House, Abdullah Shah Ghazi Road, Clifton, Karachi not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

4. CDC account holder or sub-account holder appointing a proxy should furnish attested copies of his/her/its own
as well as the proxy's CNIC / Passport with the proxy form.The proxy shall also produce his/her/its original
CNIC or passport at the time of meeting. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power
of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form.
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330 Online Branches in 169 Cities

@ 0800-33322 www.sindhbank.com.pk o sindhbanklimitedofficial ' )| sindhbankitd Or:ompanysindh-bank-limlted



. r g o
.\. . gl ;
l i ‘ L ol o ’

*
IN MEMORY OF SHAHEED MOHTARMA BENAZIR BHUTTO bw*ﬁwmﬂmw
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ff} Sindh Bank Limited
Head Office:
,érd Floor, Federation House, Abdullah Shah Ghazi Road,
_ ’g Clifton, Karachi-75600.

1 UAN: +92-21-111-333-225

e
@ 0800-33322 @ www.sindhbank.com.pk 0 BEIRE 2 klimitedofficial sintihbankltd @ companysindh-bank-limited
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